AMADOR COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION CENTER BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 810 Court Street Jackson, CA 95642

Please Note: All Board of Supervisors meetings are tape-recorded.

Anyone who wishes to address the Board must speak from the podium and should print their name on the Board Meeting Speaker list, which is located on the podium. The Clerk will collect the list at the end of the meeting.

Public hearing items will commence no sooner than the times listed on the agenda. Closed Session agenda items may be heard before or after scheduled public hearings, dependent upon progression of the agenda.

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

DATE: Monday, February 05, 2018

TIME: 10:00 AM

LOCATION: COUNTY ADMINISTRATION CENTER

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS

810 Court Street Jackson, CA 95642

REGULAR SESSION: 10:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA: Discussion items only, no action to be taken. Any person may address the Board at this time upon any subject within the jurisdiction of the Amador County Board of Supervisors; however, any matter that requires action may be referred to staff and/or Committee for a report and recommendation for possible action at a subsequent Board meeting. Please note - there is a three (3) minute limit per topic.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Approval of agenda for this date; any and all off-agenda items must be approved by the Board (pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2

APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA: Items listed on the consent agenda are considered routine and may be enacted by one motion. Any item may be removed for discussion and possible action, and made a part of the regular agenda at the request of a Board member(s).

1. CONSENT AGENDA:

1.a. Human Resources: Amador County Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 1021 Memorandum of Understanding

Suggested Action: Please adopt the subject resolution approving the Employee Bargaining Agreement for the period of October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2019 between the

(AGENDA) (February 5, 2018)

County of Amador and the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 1021 and authorize the chair to sign and execute the agreement on behalf of the County.

2. CLOSED SESSION:

2.a. County Negotiators: Brian Oneto, Lynn Morgan, Jon Hopkins & Chuck Iley

Property: APN: 044-540-010

Negotiating Parties: Mark Cunningham Under Negotiation: Terms & Conditions

Suggested Action: Discussion and possible action

2.b. County of Amador v. The United States Department of the Interior; In the United States Court of Appeal, Ninth Circuit, Case No. 15-17253
Suggested Action: Discussion and possible action relative to the existing litigation (Government Code 54956.9(d)(1))

2.c. County of Amador v. Department of the Interior, et al: In the United States Court of Appeal,
District of Columbia Circuit, Case No. 16-5082
 Suggested Action: Discussion and possible action relative to the existing litigation.
{Government Code 54956.9 (d)(1)}

ADJOURNMENT: Until Tuesday, February 13, 2018 at 8:30 a.m.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board staff, at (209) 223-6470 or (209) 257-0619 (fax). Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting. Assisted hearing devices are available in the Board Chambers for public use during all public meetings.

Pursuant to Government Code 54957.5, all materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors which are provided to a majority or all of the members of the Board by Board members, staff or the public within 72 hours of but prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection, at and after the time of such distribution, in the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 810 Court Street, Jackson, California 95642, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except for County holidays. Materials distributed to a majority or all of the members of the Board at the meeting will be available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the Board or County staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials that are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

(AGENDA) (February 5, 2018)

Board of Supervisors Agenda Item Report

Submitting Department: Human Resources Meeting Date: February 5, 2018

SUBJECT

Human Resources: Amador County Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 1021 Memorandum of Understanding

Recommendation:

Please adopt the subject resolution approving the Employee Bargaining Agreement for the period of October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2019 between the County of Amador and the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 1021 and authorize the chair to sign and execute the agreement on behalf of the County.

4/5 vote required:

No

Distribution Instructions:

Human Resources, Auditor

ATTACHMENTS

- Memo SEIU MOU.pdf
- Res SEIU 2018.doc
- SEIU 2017-19 MOU.pdf



AMADOR COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

• Administration (209) 223-6456

•Benefits (209) 223-6361 •Risk Management (209) 223-6392

County Administration Center 810 Court Street Jackson, California 95642 Facsimile: (209) 223-6426 Website: www.co.amador.ca.us

To: Board of Supervisors

January 30, 2018

From: Judy Dias, Human Resources Director

Subject: Agenda item for February 5 Consent Agenda: SEIU 1021 2017-19 Memorandum of Understanding

This memo and the attached documents request that the Board approve the 2017-19 Memorandum of Understanding between the County and Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1021. A tentative agreement was ratified by the SEIU membership on January 25, 2018. The new Memorandum of Understanding would be effective October 1, 2017, and continue until September 30, 2019.

The consequence of approving these requested actions will be to ratify and approve for signature the Memorandum of Understanding between Amador County and SEIU. If not approved, the tentative agreement will not be finalized.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF AMADOR, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF:

RESOLUTION APPROVING EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT WITH THE AMADOR COUNTY SERVICE EMPLOYEE INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU) 1021 FOR OCTOBER 1, 2017 – SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

RESOLUTION NO. 18-XXX

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Amador, State of California, that said Board does hereby approve the employee bargaining agreement by and between the County of Amador and the Service Employee International Union (SEIU) 1021on the terms and conditions contained therein for the period of October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2019.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of said Board is hereby authorized to sign and execute said agreement on behalf of the County of Amador.

The foregoing resolution was duly passed and adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Amador in a regular meeting thereof, held on the 5th day of February 2018, by the following vote:

or randor in a regular	i incerting thereof, here on the 5 day of February 2010, by the following vo
AYES:	Richard Forster, Lynn Morgan, Patrick Crew, Frank Axe and Brian Oneto
NOES:	None
ABSENCE:	None
	Chairman, Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:	
JENNIFER BURNS, O Board of Supervisors, California	
Deputy	

GENERAL EMPLOYEES REPRESENTATION UNIT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1	
AGREEMENT	6
SECTION 2	7
EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	7
SECTION 3	8
WAIVER OR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	8
SECTION 4	9
EMBODIMENT	9
SECTION 5	10
SEVERABILITY	10
SECTION 6	11
WAIVER OF NEGOTIATIONS	11
SECTION 7	12
NONDISCRIMINATION	12
HARASSMENT	12
SECTION 8	
COUNTY RIGHTS	
CALL-OFFS.	
SECTION 9	
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	
PERSONNEL FILES	
SECTION 10	16
RECOGNITION	16
SECTION 11	17
UNION RIGHTS	17
NEGOTIATING REPRESENTATIVES	
NOTICE OF INTENT TO OPEN NEGOTIATIONS	
OTHER UNION RIGHTS	
UNION STEWARDS	
COPEDEDUCTIONS	
SECTION 12	20
CONCERTED ACTIVITIES	
SECTION 13	21
SAFETY CONDITIONS	21
SAFETY EQUIPMENT	
WORK-RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS	21
Unsafe Equipment/Conditions	21

RIGHT TO REFUSE UNSAFE WORKSAFETY COMMITTEE	
SECTION 14	
PROBATIONARY PERIOD	
TIME FRAMES	
PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS	23
TERMINATION DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD	
RETURN TO PREVIOUS POSITION	
EXTRA-HELP EMPLOYEESPermanent Status	
STEP ADVANCEMENTS	
NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION	
SECTION 15	25
PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS	25
Purpose	25
APPRAISERS	25
PARTICIPATORY NATURE	25
FORMS	25
PERMANENT EMPLOYEES	25
PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD	
PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS FOR EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE PASSED PROBATION	26
Review	
EMPLOYEE'S RIGHT TO RESPOND	26
APPEALS	
Training	26
SECTION 16	27
EXTRA-HELP EMPLOYEES	28
Workweek	27
WORKWEEKSECTION 17	27 28
WORKWEEKSECTION 17SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL	
WORKWEEKSECTION 17SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALLLAYOFFS	
WORKWEEKSECTION 17SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALLLAYOFFSSENIORITY	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17. SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL. LAYOFFS SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17. SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL. LAYOFFS SENIORITY. CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED. REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE. LAYOFFS	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS. SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS. BUMPING RIGHTS. PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING.	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS. SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS. BUMPING RIGHTS. PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF LIST DURATION OPEN POSITIONS	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS. SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS. BUMPING RIGHTS PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF LIST DURATION OPEN POSITIONS RIGHT OF RECALL	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS BUMPING RIGHTS PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF LIST DURATION OPEN POSITIONS RIGHT OF RECALL SECTION 18.	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS. SENIORITY. CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED. REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS. BUMPING RIGHTS. PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING. TIES IN SENIORITY. RECALL FROM LAYOFF. LIST DURATION. OPEN POSITIONS. RIGHT OF RECALL SECTION 18. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS.	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS BUMPING RIGHTS PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING. TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF. LIST DURATION OPEN POSITIONS RIGHT OF RECALL SECTION 18 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS JUST AND SUFFICIENT CAUSE	
WORKWEEK SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL LAYOFFS SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE LAYOFFS BUMPING RIGHTS PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF LIST DURATION OPEN POSITIONS RIGHT OF RECALL. SECTION 18 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS JUST AND SUFFICIENT CAUSE PROCEDURES	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17 SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL. LAYOFFS. SENIORITY CATEGORIES OF SENIORITY DEFINED. REDUCTIONS IN SENIORITY NOTICE. LAYOFFS. BUMPING RIGHTS. PART-TIME/FULL-TIME/EXTRA-HELP BUMPING. TIES IN SENIORITY RECALL FROM LAYOFF. LIST DURATION. OPEN POSITIONS RIGHT OF RECALL SECTION 18 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS JUST AND SUFFICIENT CAUSE PROCEDURES. PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE DISCIPLINE	
WORKWEEK. SECTION 17	

STEP 2. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER	34
APPEAL TO STEP 3	3
STEP 3. EVIDENTIARY HEARING	
Costs	
ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE	3
SECTION 19	3
GRIEVANCES	
Information	
TIMELINESS	
No Loss of Pay	
STEP 1. AGENCY/DEPARTMENT/EMPLOYEE	
STEP 2. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER	
SECTION 20	
SICK LEAVE AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
SICK LEAVE - ELIGIBILITY	3
DEFINITION OF ILLNESS OR INJURY	
UNUSED SICK LEAVE	
COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO)/VACATION LEAVE	
DOCTOR'S RELEASE	3
CONCURRENT USE OF SDI/SICK LEAVE/VACATION LEAVE	
Worker's Compensation Insurance	
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	
JURY DUTY OR TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF COUNTY	
PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE (PNL)	
EXAMINATIONS OR INTERVIEWS	
MILITARY LEAVE	
CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK	
FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA/CFRA)	
MATERNITY/CHILD BONDING LEAVE	
SEARCH AND RESCUE	
OTHER LEAVES	
No Break in Service	
UNAUTHORIZED ABSENCE	
REINSTATEMENT	4
SECTION 21	4
HOLIDAY LEAVE	
ELIGIBILITY	
ADDITIONAL PAID HOLIDAYS	
SATURDAY OR SUNDAY	
PART-TIME HOLIDAY ACCRUAL	
PAY FOR HOLIDAYS WORKED	
ALTERNATIVE WORK SCHEDULE HOLIDAY LEAVE	4
ECTION 22	
VACATION LEAVE	4
ELIGIBILITY AND ACCRUAL	4
ECTION 23	
HOURS OF WORK	
Workday	
STAFFING SCHEDULES	
ALTERNATIVE WORK SCHEDULES	4

Lunch Breaks	40
REST PERIODS	
DUTY-FREE BREAKS, LUNCHES	
FLSA COMPLIANCE	
FLEXIBLE SCHEDULES FOR EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT	
WORKWEEK	
CANCELED SHIFTS.	
STANDBY COMPENSATION.	
OVERTIME COMPENSATION	
COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO)	
SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS	
CALL-BACK PAY	
SECTION 24	53
HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	53
Major Medical Insurance Coverage	
HEALTH INSURANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE	
OTHER BENEFITS PROVIDED BY COUNTY	
EMPLOYEES COVERED BY NON-COUNTY MAJOR MEDICAL INSURANCE	
BOTH SPOUSES EMPLOYED BY COUNTY	54
ELIGIBILITY	
RIGHT TO PURCHASE ADDITIONAL BENEFITS	54
REGULAR PART-TIME COVERAGE	
ENROLLMENT	55
DEFERRED COMPENSATION ANNUITY PROGRAM	
DISABILITY INSURANCE	
PERSONAL BELONGINGS	
MILEAGE AND TRAVEL ALLOWANCES	
PERS RETIREMENT COVERAGE	
RETIREES' PERS ADMINISTRATIVE FEE	
SAFETY SHOE ALLOWANCES	
EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAM	
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP)	
HEALTH EXAMINATIONS OR FITNESS FOR DUTY TESTS	
SECTION 125 OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE	
SECTION 25	
CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES	59
EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS	59
RECLASSIFICATIONS	59
TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENTS	59
PROMOTIONS	
POSITIONS WITH AUTOMATIC PROGRESSION	60
WAGES	60
WARRANTS	61
STEP ADVANCEMENTS	61
LONGEVITY INCREASES	62
MISCELLANEOUS STIPENDS	62
SECTION 26	63
OPEN POSITIONS	63
DISCLOSURE BY APPLICANTS	
NOTICE	
FILLING OF POSITIONS	
OF OWN AS	
SECTION 27	

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES	65
SECTION 28	66
LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	66
SECTION 29	67
RECOMMENCEMENT OF NEGOTIATIONS	67
SECTION 30	68
TERM, WITNESSES, AND SIGNATORS	68
SIGNATURE PAGE	69
APPENDIX A	70
DEFINITIONS	70
APPENDIX B	75
GENERAL UNITHOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN – EFFECTIVE 10/1/17	75
PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEESGENERAL UNIT GRANDFATHERED EMPLOYEES	
HOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN –EFFECTIVE 1/1/18	
PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES	
GENERAL UNIT GRANDFATHER EMPLOYEES	84
APPENDIX C	85
MERIT SYSTEM POSITIONS	
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES	
APPENDIX D SIDE LETTERS	86
OUTREACH TECHNICIAN ASSIGNED TO ASSIST IN PUBLIC HEALTH FUNCTIONS	
MEDICAL ASSISTANT DIFFERENTIAL	
ROAD CREW LEAD WORKER STIPEND	
DATA FROM COUNTY-ISSUED ELECTRONIC DEVICES.	
BILINGUAL STIPEND.	
VOLUNTARY REDUCED SCHEDULES	92
INDEX	93

SECTION 1

AGREEMENT

- 1.1. This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the County of Amador, California, hereinafter referred to as the "County", and the General Employees Representation Unit of the Service Employees International Union Local 1021, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".
- **1.2.** This Agreement was reached pursuant to, and in accordance with, the provisions of California Government Code §3500-3510.
- **1.3.** The following appendices, attached hereto, are incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Agreement:

Appendix A: Definitions

Appendix B: Classifications and Wages

Appendix C: Merit System Positions

- 1.4. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon the County and the Union, or its successors, for the period from October 1, 2017 or the date of its ratification and adoption by the Board of Supervisors, whichever is later, through September 30, 2019; but for any period subsequent to September 30, 2019, all matters within the scope of representation, as defined by California Government Code §3504, or its successors, shall be subject to renegotiation by the County and the Union in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and of California Government Code §3500-3510, or its successors.
- 1.5. All rights, privileges, powers, and authority stipulated by state and/or federal law shall be adhered to by the County and the Union until such time as those rights, privileges, powers, and authority are changed by state and/or federal law.

SECTION 2

EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

- **2.1.** The provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over County policies, practices, procedures, and resolutions to the extent inconsistent herewith and over state law to the extent permitted by state law.
- 2.2. Except as provided in Sections 5 and 6 below, the County shall have the right to adopt, eliminate, or revise any County policies, practices, procedures, or resolutions, so long as they are not inconsistent with the specific terms of this Agreement, provided it does not involve a matter which is subject to required negotiations under the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act.
- 2.3. Certain positions of County employment within the Department of Social Services are required by State Law to be covered by the Merit System Personnel Standards of the State Personnel Board, which are set forth in Title 2, Division 5 of the California Code of Regulations. Some Sections within this Agreement, including but not necessarily limited to Section 17 Seniority/Layoffs/Recall and Section 18 Disciplinary Actions, contain provisions that may directly conflict with the Merit System Personnel Standards. To the extent any provisions of this Agreement are directly in conflict with the Merit System Personnel Standards, the Merit System Personnel Standards shall supersede and take precedence over those provisions. The positions subject to the Merit System Personnel Standards are set forth in Appendix C.

SECTION 3

WAIVER OR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

3.1. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute any future waiver or breach of this Agreement.

SECTION 4

EMBODIMENT

- **4.1.** This Agreement sets forth the full and complete Agreement between the County and the Union on all subjects contained herein and shall supersede all prior formal or informal agreements, memoranda of understanding, policies, practices, procedures, or resolutions thereon.
- **4.2.** There are no valid or binding representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, oral, or otherwise, between the County and the Union, except those embodied herein.

SECTION 5

SEVERABILITY

- 5.1. If, during the term of this Agreement, there exists any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order issued by governmental authority other than the County which shall render invalid, or restrain compliance with, or enforcement of, any provision of this Agreement, such provision shall be immediately suspended and be of no effect hereunder so long as such law, rule, regulation, or order shall remain in effect. Such invalidation of a provision of this Agreement shall not invalidate any remaining provisions, which shall continue in full force and effect.
- **5.2.** In the event of such severance of a provision of this Agreement, the County and the Union shall, within thirty (30) days of a request by either party, recommence meeting and negotiating upon a replacement, if any, for such severed provision.

SECTION 6

WAIVER OF NEGOTIATIONS

6.1. Except as otherwise provided by Sections 1.4, 2.2, 5, 29, and 30 of this Agreement, the County and the Union, or its successors, expressly waive and relinquishes the right, during the term of this Agreement, to meet and negotiate further with respect to any subject within the scope of representation, as defined by California Government Code §3504, or its successors, whether or not any such subject is covered by this Agreement, and whether or not any such subject was negotiated, or was within the contemplation or knowledge, of either the County or the Union during negotiations leading to this Agreement; provided, however, that such waiver of negotiations shall not be construed to apply to any classes which are not listed in Appendix B, and which may be added to this employee representation unit, or its successor. No provision of this, or any other Section, shall preclude negotiations on any subject during the term of the Agreement if the County and the Union mutually agree to negotiate any provision hereof. If the County proposes to change anything which is subject to meeting and conferring under the law during the term of this Agreement, the County will notify the Union and will negotiate on that specific issue, if requested to do so.

SECTION 7

NONDISCRIMINATION

- 7.1. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied, subject to state and/or federal law, without discrimination because of mental, physical or sensory handicap, age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, race, color, national origin, creed, religion, political affiliation, union activity, or membership or non-membership in any employee organization.
- 7.2. The County and the Union shall share jointly in the responsibility for application of Section 7.1.

HARASSMENT

7.3. Harassment may be summarized as follows: Harassment consists of any unwelcome verbal or physical conduct directed toward an employee or member of the public doing business with the County, or an employee's participation in creating a hostile work environment. It is described in full in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual, which is available in each County department. This policy will be made available to all employees when employment starts. The County policy will also be made available when changes occur in state or federal law. Harassment is cause for disciplinary action as set forth in Section 18. Courtesy, consideration for others, and acknowledgment that the workplace is for working are the collective basis for avoiding harassment.

SECTION 8

COUNTY RIGHTS

- **8.1.** The County retains to itself solely, exclusively, and without limitation, all rights, privileges, powers, and authority conferred upon the County by law, except as such rights, privileges, powers, and authority are expressly abridged by this Agreement. Such rights, privileges, powers, and authority shall include, but shall in no way be limited to, the following:
 - A. The right to manage the County generally and to determine all issues of policy.
 - B. The right to determine the extent, necessity, and organization of all County services, operations, and functions.
 - C. The right to expand, reduce, or discontinue any County service, operation, or function.
 - D. The right to determine and/or change the nature, manner, and means of all County services, operations, and functions, including, but in no way limited to, the financing, facilities, locations, equipment, and technology of such services, operations, and functions.
 - E. The right to determine and/or change the financing, facilities, locations, equipment, methods, means, technology, organizational structures, and numbers and composition of the County's work force.
 - F. The right to determine, change, allocate, assign, issue, schedule, and withdraw all equipment by which County services, operations, and functions are to be conducted.
 - G. The right to allocate, assign, establish, and schedule all work by which County services, operations, and functions are to be conducted as long as work assignments are related to the affected employee's classification descriptions.
 - H. The right to utilize volunteers or inmate workers. No employee shall be required to transport or monitor inmate workers unless said duty is set forth in the employee's job description at the time of hire or as amended with consent of the affected employee and Union. Inmate workers shall be selected in accordance with the Amador County Sheriff's Department Inmate Workers Policy. Further, no employee shall be required to supervise or monitor said inmate workers as inmates but may be required to direct inmate workers as to how to perform work for the County at the employee's job site. No employee shall be responsible for an inmate worker's conduct, whereabouts, productivity or responsiveness to instructions provided by the employee. Any inmate harassing an employee shall be immediately removed upon an employee's request.
 - I. The right of participation in mutual aid agreements and/or pacts.
 - J. The right to contract or subcontract any services, operations, or functions.
 - K. The right to lay off employees for non-disciplinary reasons.
 - L. The right to discipline employees for just and sufficient cause.

- M. The right to recruit, examine, hire, classify, reclassify, promote, train, transfer, assign, appraise, and retain employees. Employee rights relevant to reclassifications are set forth in Section 25.1. hereof. Employee rights relevant to temporary assignments to a higher class are set forth in Section 25.4. hereof.
- N. The right to determine and/or change class specifications and to classify or reclassify employees in accordance with class specifications. This includes the right to hire any new employee at any step in any applicable classification. The recognition of this right does not alter its status as a management right not subject to the meet and confer process.
- O. The right to determine, and/or change, productivity, performance, programs, and standards, including, but in no way limited to, the quality and quantity of work to be performed by employees.
- P. The right to maintain order and efficiency at all County facilities and operations.
- Q. The right to determine, change, promulgate, and enforce rules and regulations to promote the safety and health of employees and\or the public.
- R. The right to determine, and/or change, policies, practices, procedures, and standards for the hiring, promotion, and/or training of employees.
- S. The right to restrict the activities of employee organizations on County property and/or County time
- T. The right to take all lawful steps to carry out or protect any County service, operation, function, equipment, facility, or employee or member of the public during any work stoppage, strike, work slowdown, or other job action against the County by its employees, or during any bona fide emergency.
- U. The right to adopt, eliminate, or revise all County policies, practices, procedures, resolutions, or ordinances which are not in conflict with a specific provision of this Agreement.

Call-Offs

- 8.2. The County may direct an employee to leave his/her worksite if there is insufficient work for said employee to do. Said employee shall not receive any pay, but shall receive other benefits for the time after which he/she has been directed to leave.
- **8.3.** Call-offs shall be voluntary, or, if necessary, in order of inverse seniority within the classification in which there is insufficient work.
- **8.4.** Any employee called off pursuant to this Section may designate said call-off time as vacation leave, holiday leave, or compensatory time off (CTO) to the extent said employee has accrued said leave or compensatory time off (CTO) in order to make up a full work day.
- 8.5. An employee called off after reporting to work without first having received notice of being called off for work that day as set forth in Section 23.14., et seq., shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay for that day.

SECTION 9

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Representation

- **9.1.** Employees of the County shall have the right to form, join, and participate in the activities of employee organizations of their own choosing. Employees shall also have the right to refuse to join, or participate, in the activities of employee organizations.
- 9.2. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit any employee from representing him/herself individually, or from appearing in his/her own behalf in his/her employment relations with the County.

Personnel Files

- 9.3. Any employee shall have the right, upon request, to inspect and copy all material in his/her personnel file, with the exception of material which the County is permitted, or required by law, to withhold from the employee.
- 9.4. Such request, inspection, and copying shall be made at a time when the employee is not required to be on duty.
- **9.5.** Any employee shall have the right to attach to any material in his/her personnel file, in accordance with this Section, his/her comments thereon.
- 9.6. Such attachment shall be made at a time when the employee is not required to be on duty.
- 9.7. At the time of such attachment to his/her personnel file, the employee and the person causing the entry into the employee's personnel file, of the material to which such attachment is made, shall affix to such attachment their signatures and the date of attachment.
- 9.8. If the person causing the entry of the material to which such attachment is made is not available at the time such attachment is made, the Human Resources Director shall sign and date such attachment in his/her stead.
- 9.9 An employee may request removal of a letter of reprimand from his or her personnel file. Such request shall be submitted in writing by the employee to the Human Resources Director. The letter shall be removed from the employee's personnel file if no disciplinary action has been taken against the employee in the two years since the letter to be removed was issued.

SECTION 10

RECOGNITION

- 10.1. The County hereby reaffirms its exclusive recognition of the Union as the exclusive representative of all employees in the General Employees Representation Unit established by Resolution 6058, which includes clerical, technical, professional, blue collar, and supervisory employees.
- 10.2. The Union, in turn, recognizes the persons designated by the Board of Supervisors to represent the County in the negotiation of this Agreement and agrees that all negotiations leading to the ratification and implementation of this Agreement, along with all amendments and successors thereto, shall be conducted exclusively with the persons so designated.
- 10.3. All newly created positions assigned to the General Employees Representation Unit, represented by the Union, shall be assigned to such representation unit in accordance with the provisions of Section 17(g) of Resolution 5369, or its successors.

SECTION 11

UNION RIGHTS

Negotiating Representatives

11.1. The County shall allow a reasonable number of representatives designated by the Union and reasonable time off work, which shall not exceed a total of one hundred sixty-six (166) hours, without loss of pay or benefits. Such time off work shall be for formal negotiations with the County for purposes of reaching a successor to this Agreement on wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment.

Notice of Intent to Open Negotiations

11.2. At least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement, or as set forth in Sections 24, the Union shall notify the Human Resources Director, in writing, of the names of the representatives designated by the Union to negotiate with the County in accordance with Sections 11.1 and 29 of this Agreement. The Union shall notify the Human Resources Director, in writing, of the name of the newly designated representative not less than one (1) week prior to the time such representative is to commence meeting and negotiating with the County.

Agency Shop

- 11.3. For the term of this Agreement, all employees in the bargaining unit represented by the Union shall be required, as a condition of continued employment, either to join the Union or to pay the Union a service fee in an amount not to exceed the standard initiation fee, periodic dues, and general assessments of the Union. This requirement shall not apply to any employee who is a member of a bona fide religion, body, or sect which has historically held conscientious objections to joining or financially supporting public employee organizations. Such individuals shall not be required to join or financially support the Union as a condition of employment, but will be required, in lieu of periodic dues, initiation fees, or agency shop fees, to contribute to a non-religious, non-labor, charitable fund which is mutually acceptable to the Union and the employee, and is exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Union shall indemnify and hold the County harmless from any loss, claim, liability or expense (including without limitation the County's attorneys' fees and costs) arising from or related in any manner to the payment of service fees and costs or any other terms of this Agency Shop provision. It is also agreed that neither any employee nor the Union shall have any claim against the County for any deduction made or not made, unless a written claim of error is submitted to the County Auditor within thirty (30) calendar days after the date such deduction was or should have been made.
- 11.4. Proof of such payments shall be made on a monthly basis to the employer as a condition of continued exemption from the requirement of financial support to the Union, and the employer will, upon request of the Union, demonstrate such continued payment.
- 11.5. The service fee payment will be used by the Union for purposes of collective bargaining, contract administration, and pursuing matters affecting wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment.
- 11.6. It shall be the employer's responsibility, once notified by the Union of the amount of the service fee as determined by the Union, to provide the Union with a list of all persons in the bargaining unit, and their addresses in order that the Union can notify such individuals of their obligations under this Agreement, and pursuant to Government Code Section 3502.5. Thereafter, service fees from non-members shall be collected by payroll deductions and distributed to the Union on a monthly basis. The Union will be notified no later than thirty (30)

days after the event of any additions or deletions of the names of persons as employees in the bargaining unit to whom this provision is applicable.

11.7. As currently required by Government Code Section 3502.5(d), the Union shall keep an adequate itemized record of its financial transactions and shall make available annually to the County and to all members of the bargaining unit, within sixty (60) days after the end of the Union's fiscal year, a detailed written financial report thereof in the form of a balance sheet and an operating statement, certified as to accuracy by the Union President and Treasurer, or corresponding principal officer, or by a certified public accountant. If the Union is required to file financial reports under the Labor-Management Disclosure Act of 1959 covering employees in the bargaining unit, or is required to file financial reports pursuant to Government Code Section 3546.5, it may satisfy the financial reporting requirements of this Section by providing the County with a copy of such financial reports. In the event that case law, or subsequent legislation, amends these requirements, this Section shall be deemed amended to conform thereto.

Other Union Rights

- 11.8. The Union shall have the following additional rights:
 - A. <u>Union Access</u>. Access, at times which do not interfere with County operations, to areas, except restricted areas, in which County employees work.
 - B. <u>Use of Facilities</u>. Use, without charge, of County buildings at reasonable times for Union matters. With the exception of normal wear and tear, the Union shall be responsible for any damage to County property caused by such use.
 - C. <u>Union Bulletin Boards</u>. Use, without charge, of reasonable space on any County bulletin boards.
 - D. <u>Union Communications</u>. Use, without charge, of any County interoffice communications systems for transmission of information concerning Union matters. Such use shall not extend to the use of the U.S. Mail or to the making of long distance telephone calls at County expense.
 - E. <u>Access to Information</u>. Review, at reasonable times, of any public material in the possession of the County.

Union Stewards

- **11.9.** The following shall apply to Union Stewards.
 - A. The Union shall have the right to elect stewards whose purpose is to avoid and/or solve employee-related difficulties prior to those issues escalating into grievance situations.
 - B. The Union Stewards will perform their duties according to the following guidelines:
 - Step #1: Initial contacts from fellow employees may take place on work time if brief in nature and will be kept short. This time is not tracked as release time or time off from work.
 - Step #2: Union Stewards will seek to set an appointment to discuss the situation with the employee who made the initial contact during non-work hours.
 - Step #3: If necessary and appropriate, the Union Steward will attend formal meetings with the impacted parties to resolve the difficulty. This meeting time is tracked as release time. The Chief Steward will track release time and report used time to the Human Resources Director.

Step #4: Union stewards will be strongly encouraged to attend monthly Labor-Management Meetings. The Union will inform the Human Resources Director of the names of the stewards, their primary area of representation, and any changes in those names before the steward will be allowed any release time.

- C. The Union shall have the right to elect up to ten (10) stewards who will be given time off without loss of pay or benefits to attend formal meetings such as those identified in Step #3 or hearings held pursuant to Sections 18 or 19 as limited by this section. Such time off will be scheduled with the steward's immediate supervisor and shall not unduly disrupt the work of any employee.
- D. Except for evidentiary hearings which are the final step in Sections 18 and 19 proceedings ("evidentiary hearings"), an employee may be represented at any meeting held pursuant to said sections by either one steward, one Union representative, or one attorney. The foregoing notwithstanding, one steward may attend or represent an employee at an evidentiary hearing along with one or more Union representatives or attorneys.
- E. Training for the position of Union Stewards will be handled by the Union.
- F. The paid County time for formal meetings for Union Stewards shall be a maximum of 40 hours for all stewards as a group for each year of the Agreement (October 1 to September 30) and shall be with the approval of their Department Heads as to scheduling. The stewards' bank of hours shall be jointly administered by the Chief Steward representative and the Human Resources Director.

Cope Deductions

11.10. Employees may voluntarily elect to have contributions deducted from their paychecks for SEIU Local 1021's COPE fund. Such deductions shall commence with the pay period beginning after the Auditor's receipt of the employee's written authorization for the deduction. Deductions shall continue until the employee revokes the authorization by written notice to the Auditor. The County shall transmit the amounts deducted once per month in a check separate from Union dues. Increases or decreases in the monthly amount of the deduction may be made no more than once every six months unless the employee elects to terminate deductions. In such latter case, if the employee desires to resume COPE deductions, he or she may do so after six months have elapsed since the date on which the deduction was last made. This provision only requires the County to deduct the entire amount authorized. Partial deductions will not be taken, except that the County may elect to spread the deductions over more than one pay period in the month of the deduction if it deems such administratively preferable. This provision does not require the County to retroactively deduct authorized amounts if, at the time the deduction is due, the employee's pay is insufficient to cover the COPE deduction after all other deductions are made.

SECTION 12

CONCERTED ACTIVITIES

- 12.1. The Union and the County agree that there shall be no strike, work stoppage, work slowdown, job action, picketing, or other refusal or failure by employees of the County to fully and faithfully perform their job functions and responsibilities, nor shall there be any other interference of a similar, or related nature, with the operation of the County by the Union, or by its officers, agents, or members during the term of this Agreement, including Union compliance with the request of another employee organization to engage in such activity.
- 12.2. The Union recognizes the duty and obligation of its officers and agents to comply with the provisions of this Agreement and to make every effort to induce all employees to comply with provisions of this Agreement. In the event of a strike, work stoppage, work slowdown, job action, picketing, or other refusal or failure by employees of the County to fully and faithfully perform their job functions and responsibilities, or other interference with the operation of the County by employees who are represented by the Union, the Union agrees in good faith to take all necessary steps to cause those employees to cease such action.
- **12.3.** As a condition of continued employment, all employees shall be responsible for adhering to the provisions of this Section. Accordingly, violation of any provisions of this Section by an employee shall constitute just cause for disciplinary action against the employee by the County.
- 12.4. The above provision of this Section notwithstanding, the County does not waive and expressly retains any and all legal and equitable remedies which the County may have against the Union and its officers, agents, or members, or which the County may have against any employee who is represented by the Union.

SECTION 13

SAFETY CONDITIONS

13.1. The County and the Union agree that the need for safe working conditions shall be of importance.

Safety Equipment

- 13.2. With the exception of items of personal clothing, the County agrees to provide such health and safety equipment as may be required by the County, or by federal, and/or state law, rule, regulation, or order.
- 13.3. Employees shall use the safety and health equipment provided by the County. Alternate safety and health equipment furnished by employees must meet State Division of Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA), or American National Standards Institute (ANSI) safety requirements, and approved in advance of its use by the management employee who is the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, for an employee requesting the use of alternate equipment. The employee shall be responsible for returning County-owned safety and health equipment to the issuing department upon termination, or upon the request of any of the employee's supervisors.

Work-Related Injury or Illness

13.4. If an employee is injured on the job, he/she should report the injury immediately to his/her supervisor. Injured employees have the right to see a physician of their choice for diagnosis and treatment, if a physician has been pre-designated. If the injury or illness is NOT a medical emergency, the supervisor and employee shall, prior to the end of the employee's shift, contact the County designated provider to report the injury. If the injury is a medical emergency, call 9-1-1 to provide immediate medical assistance, then call the County designated provider to report the injury. The Supervisor may call the injury in independently if the employee is not able to participate. For further information on Injured Employee Protocol, refer to the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual, which is available in each County department or online on the County's internal website.

Unsafe Equipment/Conditions

13.5. As soon as practicable, an employee shall notify his/her immediate supervisor, and/or the Department Safety Officer, and the Department Head about any unsafe equipment or unsafe working condition. The immediate supervisor shall investigate, or cause to be investigated, reports of unsafe equipment, or unsafe working conditions, and shall advise the affected employees of any corrective actions to be taken. If the employee still believes that the situation is unsafe, the matter shall be referred to the Risk Manager as soon as possible by the supervisor. The employee will not be required to work with the alleged unsafe equipment or unsafe working condition until a decision has been rendered by the immediate supervisor or the Risk Manager, if the matter has been referred to the Risk Manager. If the Risk Manager is not available on a timely basis, the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall investigate the matter and make the decision for the Risk Manager.

Right to Refuse Unsafe Work

13.6. No employee shall be disciplined for having refused to work with equipment, or under conditions that they believe are unsafe, provided they do not continue to refuse to perform the work once an authorized representative of the State Division of Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA), or the Risk Manager, or his/her designee, have

determined the situation to be safe. An employee who unreasonably refuses to perform work is subject to discipline.

Safety Committee

13.7. The Union may appoint up to three employees to serve on the County's Safety Committee. Notice of such appointments and any changes thereto shall be delivered in writing to the County's Human Resources Director and the employees' Department Heads.

SECTION 14

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Time Frames

- 14.1. A new hire employee shall be required to serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months from the date of his/her employment. A permanent employee who is promoted shall be required to serve a probationary period of six (6) months from the date of his/her promotion. A regular employee who has not completed the initial twelve (12) month probationary period who is promoted shall serve the minimum six (6) month promotional probationary period in addition to the incomplete portion, if any, of the twelve (12) month new hire probationary period. The probationary period for Professional employees is covered in Section 27.4. Newly hired probationary employees may use accrued sick leave, but are not eligible to use vacation leave for the first six months in the position. Upon successful completion of his/her probationary period, such employee shall be granted permanent status.
 - A. Probationary periods will be extended by the amount of any time spent on unpaid leave. When a probationary period is extended, the respective employee's anniversary date shall also change in accordance with the extension.
 - B. In addition and in some cases, it may be necessary to extend the probationary period in order to further review performance. When a probationary period is extended beyond the sixth (6th) or twelfth (12th) month, it must be mutually agreed upon, put in writing, and signed by the Human Resources Director, the Agency/Department Head or his/her designee, the Union, and the employee. When a probationary period is extended, the respective employee's anniversary date shall also change in accordance with the extension.
 - C. Suspensions: A period of disciplinary suspension during the probationary period shall not be counted in calculating the probationary period.

Performance Appraisals

14.2. During the probationary period, the County will endeavor to provide each employee with a performance appraisal at least every three months as a means of determining such job characteristics as adjustment to employment conditions, integration in the work force, job learning progress, attendance, and any other feature of the individual's job that is significant to the employee's retention, decision-making, and the prospects of job success. During this period of employment, each employee should receive close supervision, instruction, review of work, training, and any other guidance that is supportive of the employee's opportunity for success on the job.

Termination During Probationary Period

- 14.3. A new probationary employee may be terminated for any lawful reason at any time during the probationary period. A "lawful reason" includes the employee's failure to perform satisfactorily his or her duties during the probationary period.
 - A. <u>Notice</u>. A new probationary employee who is terminated shall be given written notice of said action.
 - B. <u>Exceptions</u>. A new probationary employee who is terminated shall have no right to appeal or to

23

grieve the termination except as may be required by law.

Return to Previous Position

- 14.4. A promoted probationary employee may be returned to his/her previous position for any lawful reason at any time during the probationary period. A promoted probationary employee returned to his/her previous position shall be placed at the same range and step held prior to being promoted. A "lawful reason" includes the employee's failure to perform satisfactorily his or her duties during the probationary period. A promoted probationary employee may not be terminated from employment for failing to satisfactorily complete his/her probationary period, but may be terminated for just and sufficient cause as set forth in Section 18.
 - A. <u>Notice</u>. A promoted probationary employee who is returned to his/her previous position shall be given written notice of said action.
 - B. <u>Exceptions</u>. A promoted probationary employee who is returned to his/her previous position shall have no right to appeal except as may be required by law.

Extra-Help Employees

14.5. Employees shall not attain permanent status for extra-help service, nor shall any period of extra-help service be considered part of the probationary period required of any employee.

Permanent Status

14.6. Appraisals are to be completed and processed before the end of the employee's probationary period. In the extraordinary event that a probationary employee is not appraised or does not receive a timely report of appointment to permanent status, the probationary employee shall remain on probationary status for a maximum of one additional month, unless the employee's probationary status has been extended in writing in lieu of termination. If, at the conclusion of the additional month of probationary status, the employee has not received a report of appointment to permanent status or has not been terminated, the employee shall automatically achieve permanent status.

Step Advancements

14.7. After six (6) months of continuous employment, a new or promoted employee is entitled to the appropriate step advancement. (See Section 25.17.)

New Employee Orientation

- **14.8.** The County shall provide orientation to new employees no later than forty-five (45) days after they begin work. The orientation shall be conducted in the manner as outlined in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual.
- **14.9.** The Union shall have unpaid time contiguous with the County's new employee orientation to present the Agreement and other issues of interest to the Union and its membership.

SECTION 15

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS

Purpose

- **15.1.** The preparation and use of performance appraisals is intended for the mutual benefit of the County and its employees. Performance appraisals should be used:
 - A. To identify the appraiser's expectations for the employee's job performance;
 - B. To acknowledge above-standard performance;
 - C. To prescribe the means and method of converting deficiencies to a required level of performance;
 - D. To encourage two-way communication between employees and their appraisers as to how to improve the work environment to increase morale and efficiency (refer to Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual.

Appraisers

- 15.2. Employees shall be appraised by a supervisor, an Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, who shall have personal knowledge of the job performance of the employee.
- **15.3.** The appraising supervisor, Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall be referred to herein as an "appraiser".
- 15.4. Each employee shall be assigned an appraiser for the purposes of education, supervision, and appraisal.

Participatory Nature

15.5. Appraisals are intended to be participatory in nature involving the employee's input as much as the appraiser's. Both the employee and the appraiser shall separately complete the County appraisal form and then meet to discuss and share their results. The appraiser shall then complete a final version to be placed in the employee's personnel file.

Forms

15.6. All appraisers shall use the official form provided by the County. This form shall be made available from, and distributed by, the Department of Personnel.

Permanent Employees

15.7. Permanent employees shall be appraised once per year within sixty (60) days of the anniversary of their date of hire or promotion. The County may perform additional appraisals whenever it perceives the need for such appraisal.

Performance Appraisals During Probationary Period

- 15.8. The employee's appraiser shall endeavor to provide an appraisal of the employee at the end of every three month period during the probationary period. At the end of the probationary period, if retention of the employee is warranted, the appraiser shall request from the Human Resources Department, a report of appointment approving the probationary employee's change of status from probationary to permanent.
- 15.9. The Human Resources Department shall maintain a calendar of all required appraisals and shall notify, in writing, the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, no less than twenty one (21) calendar days prior to the date when an employee's appraisal is required by this Agreement.
- **15.10.** The Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for ensuring that an appraisal and report of appointment, or report of termination, or other appropriate document, is completed.

Performance Appraisals for Employees Who Have Passed Probation

15.11. The County agrees that regular performance appraisals are necessary to better communications between the employee and the supervisor. Additionally, the County agrees that employees should be advised of any performance concerns that the supervisor may have prior to the issuance of a performance evaluation.

Review

15.12. Any appraisal, when completed, shall be reviewed with the employee by the appraiser during the employee's working hours, without loss of pay or benefits to the employee. No appraisal shall be placed in any employee's personnel file, or other County record, until the appraisal has been reviewed with the appraised employee. Both the appraiser and the appraised employee shall affix to the appraisal their signatures and the date of review. The employee's signature shall not indicate that he/she agrees with the contents, conclusions, or recommendations of the appraisal, but only that the employee has read the appraisal and has had an opportunity to discuss it with the appraiser. The appraiser shall not add material to the appraisal after the employee and the appraiser have signed the appraisal form.

Employee's Right to Respond

15.13. Any employee who wishes to respond to his/her appraisal may, during the employee's working hours, make such a written response within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving said appraisal. The response shall be appended to the appraisal and included in the employee's personnel file. Both the appraiser and the appraised employee shall affix to such written response their signatures and the date upon which the appraiser receives such written response. The appraiser shall provide to the employee a copy of such written response.

Appeals

15.14. Appraisals shall not be subject to the appeal or grievance procedures.

Training

15.15. The County shall provide training and/or written guidance to all appraisers.

SECTION 16 EXTRA-HELP EMPLOYEES

- 16.1. From time to time, needs may arise for short-term, non-permanent positions in various positions and departments in the County. The County retains the right to hire limited-term employees to fill such extra-help positions. Employees hired for extra-help positions shall not attain regular or permanent status for extra-help service, nor shall any period of extra-help service be considered part of the probationary period required of any employee.
- 16.2. The County agrees to give special consideration to regular and permanent part-time employees expressing interest in additional working hours in an extra-help capacity, provided they meet all of the qualifications for the particular assignment and the assignment does not conflict with their regular or permanent part-time position, or result in overtime compensation.
- 16.3 For extra-help positions that are needed on a last-minute, short-term basis, e.g. clerical pool, County strives to maintain a list of interested, qualified, screened candidates. In order to locate candidates for last-minute needs, the County reserves the right, upon approval of the Human Resources Director, to utilize several sources of potential candidates, including but not limited to employment services such as Mother Lode Job Training, private staffing companies, schools and colleges. The County agrees to give special consideration to County employees who have terminated their regular or permanent full-time or part-time position with the County; provided, however, that the employee is in good standing with the County and that the employee meets all of the qualifications for the particular assignment and does not exceed 999 hours in any given fiscal year. The County and the Union agree to meet and confer if concerns arise regarding use of extra-help employees.

Workweek

- **16.4.** The workweek or work period established in lieu of a workweek for extra-help employees shall be the same as that for full-time employees for purposes of overtime compensation (Section 23.22).
- 16.5. No extra-help employee shall have a right to work any fixed number of hours in any week or in any month nor are Extra Help employees eligible for daily overtime. The number of hours that an extra-help employee works shall be determined on a periodic as-needed basis by the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee.
- 16.6. Extra-help employees are limited to working no more than nine hundred ninety-nine (999) hours per fiscal year in a temporary, seasonal, on-call, or other capacity. Extra-help employees do not receive seniority, vacation, sick leave, holiday pay, health benefits, PERS benefits, longevity pay, POST certificate incentives, hazardous duty pay, or other benefits (with the exception of shift differentials) incentives, and conditions of employment specifically provided for regular or permanent full-time or regular or permanent part-time employees except those mandated by state or federal law. Extra-help employees, with the exception of Professional employees, may be hired at Step A, B, or C, but at no higher step, and shall not advance from the step at which they are hired. Extra-help employees who are classified as Professional Employees pursuant to Section 27 hereto may be hired at Step A, B, C, D, or E, and shall not advance from the step at which they are hired. Extra-help employees are at will and do not have a probationary period or achieve permanent status.
- 16.7 The provisions of this Section shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

SECTION 17

SENIORITY/LAYOFFS/RECALL

Layoffs

During budget development each year, the County will notify the Union if lay-offs are anticipated and will meet with the Union to consider alternatives to lay-offs.

17.1. A layoff is defined as the involuntary separation or permanent reduction in work hours of a permanent employee. The County will give a notice of anticipated layoff as soon as possible, but no later than 21 calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff. Seniority shall be the determining factor for order of lay-off, bumping and recall. The County shall meet and confer with the Union regarding layoff impacts as soon as possible but no later than 21 calendar days prior to the date of scheduled layoffs.

Seniority

- 17.2. Seniority shall be determined as follows:
 - A. Regular and permanent full-time employees shall receive one (1) month of seniority credit for each month of service within each of the seniority categories as outlined below.
 - B. Regular and permanent part-time employees shall receive seniority credit by pro-rating their hours in paid status as a percentage of the monthly full-time equivalent.
 - C. Extra-help employees do not accrue seniority.
 - D. Continuous full-time or part-time service shall be used in calculating seniority. Any separation from County service, other than due to layoff, of two weeks or more, shall constitute a break in service. Separation does not include authorized leaves of absence.

Categories of Seniority Defined

- **17.3.** Seniority shall be defined as follows:
 - A. Class seniority is time spent working in a particular class.
 - B. Class series is cumulative seniority within a classification series.
 - C. County seniority is date of hire in a regular County position. County seniority does not include time spent performing Extra Help work.

Reductions in Seniority

- **17.4.** Seniority shall be reduced for:
 - A. Any suspensions of more than thirty (30) calendar; and

B. Any leave of absence, without pay, for more than 30 days (unless prohibited by law).

Notice

17.5. Employees' seniority, status, and class for the purpose of determining the order of layoffs shall be fixed as of the date the Board of Supervisors determines that layoffs shall occur and designates the positions to be laid off.

Layoffs

- 17.6. Layoff of permanent employees shall occur within their regularly assigned class and shall be in order of their seniority within their regularly assigned class so that employees with the least within-class seniority are laid off first provided that:
 - A. Extra Help employees shall be laid off first in any affected classification.
 - B. Employees on initial probation in the affected class are to be laid off before permanent employees.
 - C. Non-Merit Systems employees do not have the right to displace any employee who holds a Merit Systems position regardless of seniority. Employees under "Merit System Rules" will be governed by the layoff requirements of the Local Agency Personnel Standards Section 17502 through 17519.

Bumping Rights

- 17.7. Permanent employees subject to layoff shall have the right to displace (bump) less senior employees in the following order provided they meet the current qualification of class to which they are bumping:
 - A. Employees affected by layoff may bump the least senior employee in his/her class.
 - B. If the affected employee is the employee with the least seniority within the class, the employee may bump using his/her seniority by taking a position within his/her position's classification series (i.e. Office Assistant III would bump to Office Assistant II), and bumping the employee with the least classification series seniority in the lower class. Employees who promote up through a classification series may use all the time in the series to determine seniority in bumping down to a classification held before.
 - C. If the affected employee is still least senior, he/she may bump into the last class for which he/she completed probation.
- 17.8. Extra-help and regular (i.e. probationary) employees do not have bumping, recall, or re-employment rights.

Part-Time/Full-Time/Extra-Help Bumping

17.9. A permanent part-time employee may bump a full-time employee or vice versa if they have greater seniority, in each case taking the bumped position with the budgeted hours. Permanent part-time and full time employees have the right to bump extra help employees performing work in the affected classification. Regular (i.e. probationary) and Extra Help employees do not have any bumping rights.

Ties in Seniority

17.10. In the event of a tie in classification seniority, the tie breaker will be total County seniority and (if necessary)

Recall from Layoff

17.11. Permanent employees laid off shall be placed on a recall list. Recall lists will be developed for each classification series for which there has been a layoff. Employees with the greatest classification seniority shall be recalled first to open positions provided the open position is no higher in class than the position previously held by the employee. Employees may choose to forego recall and remain on the recall list if the open position is a lower class than the position previously held by the employee. If an employee accepts a recall to an open position, that employee is removed from the recall list.

List Duration

17.12. Recall rights are for a period of one (1) year following layoff.

Open Positions

17.13. Permanent employees who have been laid off will be interviewed prior to considering other candidates for vacancies in any department for the class they occupied, or any class in which they held permanent status and continue to meet class qualifications for a period of one (1) year, provided the employee keeps his/her contact information current with the Human Resources Department.

Right of Recall

- **17.14.** The right of recall shall not accrue beyond the date on which the employee declines or fails to respond. Response is due within twelve (12) working days to a telephone, mailed and e-mailed notice of recall from layoff, or one (1) year from the date of layoff, whichever occurs first, and upon expiration of such right, such employee shall be deleted from the recall lists. Employees are required to keep all contact information current with the Human Resources Department. Employees declining recall into a lower class shall not be deleted from the recall list.
- 17.15. An employee recalled from layoff shall be granted restoration of all sick leave and seniority available to such employee as of the date of layoff. The period of layoff shall, upon recall from layoff, be considered an unpaid leave of absence and shall not be considered a break in service.

SECTION 18

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

Just and Sufficient Cause

- **18.1.** Disciplinary action shall consist of any of the following County actions taken against an employee for just and sufficient cause:
 - A. Just and sufficient cause for County disciplinary action taken against a probationary, temporary, or extra help employee shall consist of any lawful reason.
 - B. Just and sufficient cause for County disciplinary action taken against a permanent full-time or parttime employee shall consist of any of the reasons set forth herein or other conduct which constitutes just and sufficient cause. All evidence supporting disciplinary charges must be timely in relation to the incidents which are the basis for the proposed discipline. This does not preclude evidence of prior notice to the employee of similar conduct or prior disciplinary action against that employee.
 - i. Evident unfitness or unsuitability for service.
 - ii. Incompetence.
 - iii. Inefficiency.
 - iv. Inexcusable neglect of duty.
 - v. Violation of any concerted activities provision.
 - vi. Absence from duty without leave authorized in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
 - vii. Insubordination or willful disobedience.
 - viii. Refusal or knowing failure to perform work in accordance with County or state job safety requirements.
 - ix. Fraud in securing employment with the County.
 - x. Harassment in, or affecting, the work environment.
 - xi. Engaging in any employment, activity, or enterprise which is clearly incompatible, or in conflict with, or detrimental to, duties as a County employee, or to the duties, functions, or responsibilities of his/her department.
 - xii. Improper political activity.
 - xiii. Dishonesty.

- xiv. Misuse, malicious damage, or theft of County property.
- xv. Conviction of any felony or misdemeanor committed while on duty, involving moral turpitude, or directed against the County or any County employee.
- xvi. Accepting a plea of nolo contendre to any felony or misdemeanor described in section xv.
- xvii. Discourteous treatment of another employee or a member of the public while on duty, or off duty, if the discourteous treatment relates to County employment. Failure to maintain harmonious relations with other County employees while on duty.
- xviii. Use of, or being under the influence of, any controlled substance as defined by California Health and Safety Code 11007, or its successors while on duty; at any County worksite; or at any public place while wearing or displaying clothing, badges, or insignia identifying the employee as a County employee.
- xix. Use of, or being under the influence of, alcohol while on duty; at any County worksite; or at any public place while wearing or displaying clothing, badges, or insignia identifying the employee as a County employee.
- xx. Breach of confidentiality as covered in departmental policies and County-wide policy as governed by the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual.
- xxi. Engaging in inappropriate discriminatory activity against one (1) or more persons protected under state or federal law as described in Section 7 of this Agreement.
- xxii. Inability or incapacity to perform assigned job duties.

Procedures

- 18.2. Any person authorized by the Board of Supervisors may initiate disciplinary action (the "initiator").
- **18.3.** There shall be no right of appeal from any disciplinary action except by a permanent full-time or part-time employee.

Progressive Discipline

- 18.4. The County shall use progressive discipline when the County believes that progressive discipline shall serve the dual purposes of providing both a corrective warning and a penalty to an employee whom the County intends to retain as an employee after the discipline. The County may begin discipline at any level, depending on the employee's conduct. Progressive discipline shall not be required when the County believes dismissal to be the appropriate discipline because of the employee's conduct.
- 18.5. An initiator may discuss with the County Administrative Officer the appropriate level of discipline prior to beginning any disciplinary action. Such discussion shall not prevent the County Administrative Officer from being the Step 2 decision maker as set forth in Section 18.15, et. seq.

Discipline

- 18.6. Disciplinary actions shall consist of written reprimands, suspension, demotion, or dismissal and shall begin with notice to the employee. Any notice to an employee of a proposed action shall be in writing. Such notice shall contain the following information:
 - A. The name, work address, and work telephone number of the initiator.
 - B. The proposed disciplinary action.
 - C. A statement of the alleged facts constituting the basis for the proposed action.
 - D. A true and complete copy of any supporting written documentation of the alleged facts upon which the proposed disciplinary action is based.
 - E. The tentative date upon which such proposed action will take effect.
 - F. A statement of the employee's right, prior to the effective date of such proposed action, to a Skelly meeting with a County-designated Skelly Officer at which meeting the employee shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to respond orally or in writing, to the charges.
 - G. A statement of the employee's right to be accompanied by a union representative during such meeting.
 - H. A statement of the employee's right to appeal the decision of the Skelly Officer as provided below.

Employee Notification

- 18.7. Service of the above notice on the affected employee shall be made either in person or by certified mail addressed to the employee's last known mailing address on file with the Human Resources Department.
- 18.8. If the affected employee cannot be served in person or by certified mail addressed to the employee's last known mailing address on file with the Human Resources Department, or if for any reason the affected employee refuses or fails to take receipt of the notice, service shall be deemed complete three (3) calendar days after the attempted service.
- 18.9. Service of a true and complete copy of the above notice, including all accompanying documentation, shall also be made upon a Union representative, the Human Resources Director, and the County Administrative Officer on or before the date on which service of such notice is made upon the affected employee.

Step 1. Skelly Rights

- **18.10.** Within fourteen (14) calendar days after notice of a proposed action, the affected employee may request a meeting with a County-appointed Skelly Officer to present any facts or argument the employee wishes to present in contravention or mitigation of the charges. The time and place of the Skelly meeting shall be determined by the Skelly Officer. The employee may respond to the charges with his/her oral or written statements, or with written statements of others. This meeting is not an evidentiary hearing.
- **18.11.** The parties may agree, in writing, to have the County make a tape or audio-visual recording of the meeting. The County shall make a copy of such recording available to the employee upon request within seven (7) calendar days from the close of such meeting.
- 18.12. The failure of an employee to timely request or appear for a Skelly meeting shall constitute a waiver of the

employee's right to a Skelly meeting. In case of such waiver the County shall be entitled to rely on the facts set forth in the notice described in section 18.1 above. Waiver of the Skelly meet does not waive the employee's right to appeal the disciplinary action to the County Administrative Officer or, thereafter, to an Arbitrator.

18.13.

- A. If the employee waives the Skelly meeting, the County may implement the proposed disciplinary action at any reasonable time after the time limit for requesting the Skelly meeting expires in the absence of such a request, or after the scheduled date for the Skelly meeting, if requested, which the employee does not attend, whichever is later.
- B. If the employee does not waive the Skelly meeting the proposed disciplinary action will remain in abeyance pending the conclusion of the Skelly meeting and any extension thereof ordered by the Skelly Officer for further investigation or additional time for the meeting. After the conclusion of the Skelly meeting, the Skelly Officer may sustain, reduce, or vacate the proposed decision, subject to the appeal rights set forth below.
- C. The Skelly Officer may return a proposed disciplinary action to the Initiator for further investigation and possible amendment of charges and proposed discipline on the introduction of newly acquired evidence. Such evidence must be evidence that the County could not have reasonably discovered or acquired during the initial investigation. In the case of such after-acquired evidence, the Initiator shall provide the employee a revised notice of charges on the employee taking into account the modified evidence and charge(s). The Skelly Officer shall grant the employee no less than a seven (7) day period in which to amend the employee's presentation to the Skelly Officer to address the additional or modified evidence and charge(s).
- D. If, in light of the evidence and argument, the Skelly Officer decides that a basis for disciplinary action has been demonstrated, in the form and degree proposed by the Initiator or in a reduced form or degree, the Initiator shall give written notice thereof and its effective date to the employee.
- **18.14.** Within seven (7) calendar days after the effective date of the disciplinary action the employee a may appeal the disciplinary action to the County Administrative Officer.

Step 2. County Administrative Officer

- **18.15.** Notice of any appeal shall be in writing, shall set forth clearly the factual and legal bases for the appeal, and shall be filed with the County Administrative Officer and the Human Resources Director within the time limit stated in Sections 18.14.
- **18.16.** The County Administrative Officer may conduct an investigation or informal hearing, which shall not be an evidentiary hearing, and render a decision within twenty one (21) calendar days of receiving the notice of appeal. The County Administrative Officer may uphold, modify, or revoke the proposed disciplinary action. The County Administrative Officer shall give written notice of his or her decision to the employee, the Union, the Human Resources Director, the Skelly Officer (if any), and the Initiator. The same limitation on the increase of disciplinary action as described in section 18.13.C above applies to the County Administrative Officer.

Appeal to Step 3

18.17. The Union may appeal the decision of the County Administrative Officer, issued pursuant to Step 2 above, to Step 3 within ten (10) working days of being given notice of the County Administrative Officer's decision or, if the County Administrative Officer does not respond to the appeal, within ten (10) work days of the deadline for the County Administrative Officer's decision. The Union shall submit any appeal to Step 3 by written notice to the Director of Human Resources.

Step 3. Evidentiary Hearing

18.18. The employee or the Union may appeal the Step 2 decision as follows.

By default, appeals of suspension, demotion or dismissal will be heard by a Hearing Officer from the State Office of Administrative Hearings.

As an alternative to the State Office of Administrative Hearings, SEIU Local 1021 may elect to appeal suspensions, demotions or dismissals of employees to an Arbitrator selected through State Mediation and Conciliation Service (SMCS). The Union shall include such election in its notice to the Director of Human Resources submitting the matter to step 3. The Director of Human Resources will initiate arrangements for the State Office of Administrative Hearings to hear the dispute or request a list of seven (7) neutral arbitrators from SMCS, as dictated by the Union's election pursuant to this subsection. If the Union elects arbitration, the parties will alternately strike names to select the arbitrator, with the initial order of striking determined by lot. However, nothing herein shall preclude the Parties' representatives from selecting an arbitrator by mutual agreement. The costs of the arbitrator and court reporter (if agreed upon) shall be shared equally.

The Parties further agree to accept the Arbitrator's or Hearing Officer's award as final and binding on them.

- **18.19.** The County and Union shall make available for testimony in connection with this procedure any individual whose appearance is requested by the County, employee or his/her representative, to the extent the individual's availability is reasonably within the requested Party's control.
- 18.20. An employee witness required to appear in connection herewith shall suffer no loss of pay or benefits.

Costs

18.21. Except as provided above, each party shall pay the costs of preparing and presenting its own case.

Administrative Leave

- **18.22.** If any initiator decides to conduct an investigation into the activities of an employee which may lead to disciplinary or criminal action against the employee, or an employee has been given notice of proposed discipline which has not yet become effective, the initiator may, by written notice and upon approval by the Human Resources Director, place said employee on administrative leave.
- **18.23.** The notice shall state the reason for placing the employee on administrative leave.
- 18.24. During the period of administrative leave, the employee shall be entitled to all pay and benefits normally accruing to said employee but said employee shall remain away from his/her workplace and shall not carry out any duties related to his/her job.
- 18.25. The employee may discuss his/her placement on administrative leave with the initiator at a Step 1 meeting, but there shall be no right of appeal from placement on administrative leave; provided, however that this subsection shall not prevent an employee from appealing any disciplinary action taken which is the cause for the initiator's placing the employee on administrative leave.
- **18.26.** If no disciplinary action, or other charge, follows the placement on administrative leave, all notices and other references to the employee's placement on administrative leave shall be removed from the employee's personnel file.

SECTION 19

GRIEVANCES

Information

- 19.1. Grievances may only concern the County's misapplication, misinterpretation, or violation of a law or this Agreement. Employees are strongly encouraged by both parties to this Agreement to meet with their immediate supervisor to discuss the issue that they are concerned about prior to filing a formal grievance. Any grievance filed shall include the following information:
 - A. The state, federal, or local law, or the specific provision of this Agreement alleged to have been misapplied, misinterpreted, or violated.
 - B. The facts pertinent to the grievance, including the names, dates, places, and incidents necessary for an understanding of the grievance.
 - C. The alleged adverse effect upon the grievant resulting from said alleged misapplication, misinterpretation, or violation.
 - D. The remedy for such alleged adverse effect sought by the grievant.

Timeliness

- 19.2. Failure by the County to adhere to decision deadlines of this procedure shall automatically establish the right of a grievant to appeal to the next Step. Failure by a grievant to adhere to a submission deadline at any step of this procedure shall mean that the grievant accepts the last decision made thereon and that the grievant waives any right to further appeal of the grievance; however, nothing in this Section shall be construed to prevent the parties from extending either a decision deadline, or a submission deadline, by written mutual agreement.
- 19.3. A grievant may terminate a grievance at any time by giving written notice to the other party of such termination.

No Loss of Pay

- 19.4. The County shall allow an employee and/or his/her Union steward reasonable time off work, without loss of pay or benefits, in order to deliver a grievance to his/her Department/Agency Head or to attend a grievance hearing during normal working hours.
 - A. In the case of multiple grievances on the same issue, the County may elect to resolve the issue by having one (1) joint hearing on all the grievances.

Step 1. Agency/Department/Employee

- 19.5. Within twenty (20) calendar days of when the grievant could reasonably have known of the event or condition which forms the basis of the grievance, the grievance shall be presented, in writing, to the grievant's Agency/Department Head.
 - A. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the grievance, the parties shall meet and attempt to resolve the grievance.
 - B. Within five (5) working days of such a meeting, the grievant's Agency/Department Head shall serve written notice of the decision to the grievant.
 - C. If a grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the grievant at Step 1, the grievant may appeal the grievance in writing to the County Administrative Officer within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written decision or within ten (10) working days after the decision deadline at Step 1 has elapsed.

Step 2. County Administrative Officer

- 19.6. The County Administrative Officer may conduct an investigation and/or hearing and render a decision within 15 working days. If either party is dissatisfied with the decision of the County Administrative Officer he/she may appeal the decision to Step 3 within five (5) working days of being given notice of the decision. If the County Administrative Officer does not respond to the appeal within the time limits, the employee may appeal to Step 3 within five (5) working days of the expiration of the 15-day period by filing a written request with the Director of Human Resources.
- 19.7. The cost of hearings before the Arbitrator shall be paid sixty-five percent (65%) by the losing party and thirty-five percent (35%) by the winning party. The parties shall jointly ask the Arbitrator to decide which party is the losing party for the purpose of determining which party pays sixty-five percent (65%) of the costs of the hearing.
- 19.8. Any appeal arising from a Step 2 decision shall be submitted to arbitration and the arbitrator shall be selected from a list provided by the State Mediation and Conciliation Service (SMCS). The Director of Human Resources will request a list of seven (7) names from SMCS and the parties will strike names to select the arbitrator.

The parties further agree to accept the Arbitrator's award as final and binding on them.

19.9. The Union has the right to intervene in a grievance and present its case when the Union does not represent the grievant and contends that a possible outcome of the grievance would be detrimental to other employees who are not grievants.

SECTION 20

SICK LEAVE AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Sick Leave - Eligibility

- 20.1. Permanent full-time and permanent part-time employees shall earn and accrue paid sick leave in regular increments each pay period of employment up to a maximum of ninety-six hours per year.
 - A. Sick leave shall not be earned for time compensated by State Disability Insurance (SDI); while on Temporary Family Disability Leave or while on an unpaid leave of absence. Leave is only accrued for County-paid hours.
 - B. Any probationary employee who suffers a work-related injury shall be allowed to use accrued sick and vacation leave, in that order, to compensate said employee for any loss of earnings when the cause is work-related and a worker's compensation claim has been filed and accepted by the County.
 - C. Sick leave shall not be earned by, or granted to, employees for extra-help or for standby or overtime service.
- **20.2.** Employees qualifying for Family Medical Leave (FMLA) or California Family Rights Act Leave (CFRA) as discussed in this section shall utilize accrued sick leave, vacation, and compensatory time off (CTO) in conjunction with said leave; however, said employee shall have the option of retaining up to 100 hours of accrued sick leave and up to 40 hours of accrued vacation leave on the books.
- 20.3. The sick leave earned by an employee shall be available to the employee upon accrual.

Definition of Illness or Injury

- 20.4 Sick Leave may be used for the following:
 - A. Actual illness or injury to the employee;
 - B. Family Leave: Actual illness or injury to the employee's immediate family;
 - C. Medical or dental appointments for immediate family as specified in 20.18 and 20.19; or
 - D. Any qualifying injury or illness as governed by the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), including Workers' Compensation illness or injury.

Unused Sick Leave

20.5. Unused sick leave shall accrue from year to year. When an employee accrues a minimum of 500 sick leave hours and up to a maximum of 1,000 sick leave hours, said employee may be paid in cash for one-half of the number of accrued sick leave hours upon simultaneous retirement and receipt of PERS benefits only.

Compensatory Time Off (CTO)/Vacation Leave

- 20.6. Unless expressly electing otherwise, an employee who exhausts his/her unused sick leave shall utilize his/her unused compensatory time off (CTO) until all unused compensatory time off (CTO) is exhausted, whereupon the employee shall utilize his/her unused vacation leave until his/her unused vacation leave is exhausted.
- **20.7.** An employee may elect not to utilize his/her available compensatory time off (CTO) and/or available vacation leave up to a maximum of 40 hours of said accrued leave in accordance with the above provision by giving written notice of such election to the Personnel prior to exhaustion of the employee's available sick leave.

Doctor's Release

- 20.8. The County may require from an employee a written release from a licensed health care practitioner for the employee's return to duty and verification of illness or injury after any absence due to illness or injury. However, an employee absent due to an alleged occupational injury or illness shall provide to the County a written release from a licensed health care practitioner for the employee's return to duty before being permitted to resume his/her employment duties following any absence due to occupational injury or illness.
- 20.9. Subject to the limitations under applicable law, when an employee has missed more than three (3) continuous days of employment he/she must submit to the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, on a form provided by the County or comparable documentation from a physician, a statement of the illness or the injury, identifying a physician seen, if any, and other supporting facts that may be deemed appropriate. That statement must be submitted to the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, within five (5) calendar days, unless the medical condition otherwise prevents the employee from submitting said form. All information contained in this form will be treated as confidential.

Concurrent Use of SDI/Sick Leave/Vacation Leave

20.10. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE AND FAMILY TEMPORARY DISABILITY INSURANCE.

Disability insurance benefits shall be extended to employees in accordance with the terms and conditions of the State Disability Insurance Program (including the Family Temporary Disability Insurance Program). Each employee shall contribute to the plan through payroll deductions, which deductions are hereby expressly and irrevocable authorized without individual written authorizations. Accrued sick leave shall be used to supplement the disability benefit and must be exhausted prior to the use of compensatory time off (CTO) and vacation leave. The total compensation from accrued leaves and disability benefits shall not exceed the employee's base salary at the time of disability. Disability benefits will be considered the primary benefit and used leave accruals will be treated as secondary to supplement the employee's earnings. The employee shall make the choice to apply or not to apply for disability insurance benefits.

- A. Waiting Period. State Disability Insurance benefits are payable after a seven (7) day waiting period. The employee shall use their sick, compensatory time off (CTO) and vacation leave during this waiting period before State Disability Insurance/Family Temporary Disability Insurance benefits start.
- B. Coordination of Pay. Accrued sick leave may be used to supplement the disability benefit and must be exhausted prior to the use of compensatory time off (CTO) and vacation leave. The total compensation from accrued leaves and disability benefits shall not exceed the employee's base salary at the time of disability. Base salary shall equal the pay which the employee would have received had they worked their regular hours in their most regularly assigned class, but not in any temporarily assigned higher class, during the day of leave. Disability benefits will be considered the primary benefit and used leave accruals will be treated as secondary to supplement the employee's

- earnings. The employee shall make the choice to apply or not to apply for disability insurance benefits.
- C. **Option to Retain Leave.** Upon a written request, an employee shall have the option of retaining up to 100 hours of sick leave and 40 hours of vacation leave accrual on the books.
- D. **No Leave Accruals.** Sick leave shall not be earned for time compensated by State Disability Insurance (SDI) or Family Temporary Disability Insurance or while on an unpaid leave of absence. Leave is only accrued for County-paid hours.
- E. Employee Requirement. If the employee requests coordination of pay, the employee shall be required to inform the Auditor-Controller department of the first day of paid disability through the last day of paid disability by providing a copy of their payment stubs so that their normal base pay can be coordinated with paid State Disability Insurance (SDI)/Family Temporary Disability Insurance received.

Workers' Compensation Insurance

20.11. WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE. Workers' compensation insurance benefits, also referred to as temporary disability benefits, shall be extended to employees in accordance with the terms and conditions as outlined in the Amador County Policies and Procedures Manual, and the State of California. Accrued sick leave shall be used to supplement the employee's temporary disability benefit and must be exhausted prior to the use of compensatory time off (CTO), and vacation leave. The total compensation from accrued leaves and temporary disability shall not exceed the employee's base salary at the time of temporary disability. Temporary disability payments will be considered the primary benefit and used leave accruals will be treated as secondary to supplement the employee's earnings.

- A. Waiting Period. There is a three (3) day waiting period during which time the employee shall use their available sick leave, compensatory time off (CTO), and vacation in that order. The three (3) day waiting period will be waived if the injury to the employee required hospitalization immediately, and/or the employee is taken off work for more than fourteen (14) days that need not be consecutive.
- B. Coordination of Pay. Accrued sick leave shall be used to supplement the temporary disability benefit and must be exhausted prior to the use of compensatory time off (CTO) and vacation leave. The total compensation from accrued leaves and temporary disability benefits shall not exceed the employee's base salary at the time of the temporary disability. Base salary shall equal the pay which the employee would have received had they worked their regular hours in their most regularly assigned class, but not in any temporarily assigned higher class, during the day of leave. Temporary disability benefits will be considered the primary benefit and used leave accruals will be treated as secondary to supplement the employee's earnings.
- C. **Option to Retain Leave.** Upon a written request, an employee shall have the option of retaining up to 100 hours of sick leave and 40 hours of vacation leave accrual on the books.
- D. Leave Accruals. Leave shall not be earned for time compensated by Workers' Compensation Insurance or while on an unpaid leave of absence. Leave is only accrued for County-paid hours.
- E. **Risk Manager Requirement.** The Risk Manager, or designee shall inform the Auditor-Controller department of the first day of paid temporary disability benefits through the last day of paid temporary disability benefits by providing a copy of the payment stubs paid to the employee so that

the employee's normal base pay can be coordinated with temporary disability benefits received.

Bereavement Leave

- 20.12. A regular or permanent employee shall be granted up to three (3) work days of paid bereavement leave on account of the death of any member of his/her immediate and extended family. This includes the employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, the employee's biologic or adopted children, siblings, and the employee's biologic or adoptive parents. Employees may extend bereavement leave by using an additional two (2) paid sick leave days.
- 20.13. The County may require, upon an employee's return from bereavement leave, appropriate verification of the employee's absence from work on account of the death of a member of his/her extended family.
- 20.14. Unless expressly electing otherwise, an employee who does not have available sick leave or desires to take additional bereavement leave may request to utilize his/her available compensatory time off (CTO) or, if all CTO is used, vacation days.

Jury Duty or Testimony on Behalf of County

- 20.15. Any regular or permanent employee absent from work for service as a juror, or absent from work for appearance as a witness in response to a subpoena to testify for the County of Amador, shall be granted paid leave of absence for the time necessary in going to, returning from, and serving or appearing in such capacity. Any fees received by the employee for such service or appearance shall be remitted to the County.
- 20.16. The County shall require, prior to, and/or following, an employee's use of such leave, appropriate verification of the employee's need to be absent from work for service as a juror, or for appearance as a witness, in response to a subpoena to testify for the County.

Personal Necessity Leave (PNL)

- 20.17. No more than six (6) days annually of a regular or permanent full-time employee's available sick leave may be taken for reasons of personal necessity. A part-time employee shall be entitled to a maximum of personal necessity leave in proportion to the ratio of hours worked by the part-time employee during the previous three (3) months from when said part-time employee requests the personal necessity leave compared to the hours to be worked by a full-time employee in three months.
- 20.18. Personal Necessity Leave may be taken for any urgent personal medical or emotional need, emergency or catastrophic situation, including, but not limited to, required care of the employee's immediate family due to serious illness; routine or other preventive medical care for the employee or his/her immediate family; and catastrophic destruction of the employee's property.
- 20.19. Notification of personal necessity leave must be given prior to the employee's taking said personal necessity leave, except in cases of bona fide emergency. In the case of an emergency, the employee is still required to notify his/her supervisor prior to the beginning of the employee's regular work day or as soon as feasible after the start of the shift.
- 20.20. The employee is responsible for utilizing Personal Necessity Leave appropriately and used in accordance with Section 20.19. The employee is responsible for certifying that PNL is being used appropriately and is not required to disclose the circumstances for PNL to his/her supervisor. The employee may be requested to provide verification for PNL used for catastrophic destruction of the employee's property. Unjustified use of personal time off may be cause for disciplinary action.

Examinations or Interviews

- **20.21.** Regular or permanent employees shall be granted paid leave of absence for purposes of taking qualifying or promotional examinations for County service, or for interviewing for other employment with the County.
- 20.22. The County shall require, prior to, and/or following, an employee's use of such leave, appropriate verification that such examination or interview is scheduled at a time when the employee is required to be working for the County.

Military Leave

- 20.23. An employee absent for purposes of a health examination required for the Armed Forces of the United States shall utilize his/her unused sick leave for such absence.
- 20.24. The County shall require, prior to, and/or following, an employee's use of such leave, appropriate verification that such health examination is scheduled at a time when the employee is required to be working for the County.
- 20.25. Employees shall be granted other paid, and unpaid leaves of absence, and reinstatement rights following such leaves, in accordance with the provisions of California Military and Veterans Code §389, 395, 395.01, 395.02, 395.03, 395.05, 395.1, 395.3 and 395.4, or their successors.
- 20.26. Any regular or permanent full time employee who is involuntarily called to full time active military duty during the remaining term of this Agreement shall be entitled to receive those County health insurance benefits which he/she was receiving while he/she is on active military duty for a period not to exceed 180 days from the date he/she enters active military service; provided, however, if the employee and his/her dependents are provided health insurance or coverage through the military the employee shall not be entitled to receive County health insurance benefits.

Catastrophic Leave Bank

- 20.27. A catastrophic leave bank may be established for permanent full-time and permanent part-time employees who qualify to receive leave donations as outlined in the Amador County Policies and Procedures Manual. The employee can apply for catastrophic leave bank in addition to applying for and receiving State Disability Insurance and/or Workers' Compensation Insurance benefits.
 - A. Applying For Donations. The catastrophic leave bank is not continually in existence. The employee must first exhaust all their available leave banks. Vacation leave and/or sick leave may only be donated into the bank. Leave donations into the Requestor's catastrophic leave account will be based upon the donator's monetary (money) value of the donations. The maximum number of days that will be authorized per request is 30.

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA)

20.28. The County shall comply with federal and state laws regarding family medical leave, as outlined in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual which is available in each County department and online at the County's internal website. Family medical leave shall run concurrently with any other authorized leave (i.e. disability, worker's compensation, etc.). Employees may use accrued leave for purposes of FMLA/CFRA, as outlined in said Policy. Permanent employees with one (1) or more years of continuous service are entitled to take a maximum of twelve (12) work weeks of leave during a rolling twelve (12) month period. The twelve (12) month

period shall begin in accordance with County Policies and Procedures and may be used for any of the following purposes:

- A. <u>Child Bonding Leave</u>. Child Bonding leave can be taken by an eligible employee for the birth, adoption, or foster-care placement of a child in order to care for the child.
- B. <u>Family-Care Leave</u>. Family-care leave can be taken by an eligible employee for care of an immediate family member who has a serious health condition.
- C. <u>Self-Care Leave</u>. Self-care leave can be taken when an eligible employee is unable to perform the essential functions of the position that the employee holds because of a serious health condition.

Maternity/Child Bonding Leave

- 20.29. An employee who is not eligible for leave under the Family Medical Leave Act, as outlined in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual and the Family Rights Act (California Government Code §12945.2) may be granted one (1) month of Child Bonding Leave in addition to the period of time the employee is considered medically disabled as a result of the pregnancy or birth of the child in accordance with State law. Any employee who is eligible for leave under the Family Medical Leave Act and the Family Rights Act may take a maximum of twelve (12) weeks of family medical leave in addition to the period of time the employee is considered medically disabled as a result of the pregnancy or birth of a child for a maximum of seven (7) months.
- 20.30. In cases where both parents of a child are employed by the County, both parents will not be granted leave concurrently, nor in amounts totaling more than four (4) months combined leave in a twenty-four (24) month period for both parents.
- 20.31. Employees must utilize sick leave, vacation and compensatory time off (CTO) while on family medical leave; except that employees shall have the option of retaining up to 40 hours of accrued vacation leave and up to 100 hours of accrued sick leave on the books. Employees taking Pregnancy Disability Leave are not required to utilize vacation leave.
- 20.32. Upon returning from family medical leave, the employee will be employed in the same, or comparable classification, within the department.

Search and Rescue

20.33. Employees who are members of a County or State search and rescue team who miss work due to their volunteer duties may use accrued compensatory time off (CTO), and/or vacation leave in compensation for their duties.

Other Leaves

- 20.34. In addition to those leaves of absence above, a leave of absence, with or without pay, may be granted for any period of time and upon any terms acceptable to it and the employee, as governed by the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual. Except as otherwise required by law, during the period of the unpaid leave, insurance benefits are not paid by the County and leave benefits do not accrue.
- 20.35. An employee's pay for any period of absence under any provisions of this Section shall equal the pay which the employee would have received had he/she worked his/her regular hours and regular days in his/her most regularly assigned class, but not in any temporarily assigned higher class, during the period of absence.

No Break in Service

- 20.36. No absence under any paid leave provision of this Agreement shall be considered a break in service for any employee, and all benefits accruing to an employee under the provisions of this Agreement shall continue to accrue during such absence. Absence under any unpaid leave provision of this Agreement shall not be considered a break in service, but all other benefits accruing to an employee under this Agreement shall cease to accrue for the duration of any such unpaid leave of absence with the exception of Health and Welfare benefits as may be provided through other leaves such as FMLA, CFRA or Catastrophic Leave listed above. If the employee is not eligible for FMLA or CFRA, the County will cease the County contribution toward Health and Welfare benefits (health, dental, vision and life insurances) thirty (30) calendar days after the approved paid leave is exhausted. The employee shall be responsible for the employee's share of the benefits until the County's share of benefits terminates. At such time the employee shall be responsible for the full cost of the benefits in accordance with COBRA regulations.
- 20.37. The County may, at its discretion, deny to any employee either paid or unpaid leave of absence under any provisions of this Agreement during any work stoppage, strike, work slowdown, or other job action against the County by its employees, or during any bona fide emergency for which the County deems it necessary to have its employees work.
- 20.38. Full-time and part-time employees may use vacation leave, holiday leave, sick leave, personal leave, and other types of paid leave only on days and during the hours on which they have been scheduled to work.

Unauthorized Absence

20.39. Any employee's unauthorized absence, i.e., absence from his/her duty without leave authorized in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, for five (5) or more consecutive working days shall constitute an automatic voluntary resignation by such employee from his/her employment with the County, effective as of the last date on which the employee worked. Any employee's failure to return to County service within five (5) working days of the expiration of his/her leave of absence authorized in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or to secure from the County extension of such leave of absence, shall constitute an automatic voluntary resignation by such employee from his/her employment with the County, effective as of the date of expiration of his/her leave of absence.

Reinstatement

20.40. Reinstatement of an employee to his/her employment with the County following his/her automatic voluntary resignation may be granted by the Board of Supervisors through the Human Resources Director, upon petition by the employee to him/her for such reinstatement. If the position vacated by the employee has been filled by a regular or permanent employee for a period greater than three (3) months, or if the petitioning employee fails to provide an explanation, and/or supporting evidence, satisfactory to the Board of Supervisors as to the sufficiency of the causes for his/her unauthorized absence, or for his/her failure to return to County service upon expiration of his/her leave of absence, or to secure from the County extension of his/her leave of absence, reinstatement shall be denied.

SECTION 21

HOLIDAY LEAVE

Eligibility

21.1. Regular and permanent full-time employees shall be granted paid holiday leave for the following holidays:

New Year's Day	January 1
Martin Luther King's Birthday	
President's Day	Third Monday-February
Memorial Day	Last Monday-May
Independence Day	July 4
Labor Day	
Columbus Day	Second Monday in October
Veteran's Day	November 11
Thanksgiving	Fourth Thursday-November
Day after Thanksgiving	Friday following Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve	December 24
Christmas Day	

Additional Paid Holidays

21.2. Any days declared by the President, and/or by the Governor of California, and which also may have been approved by resolution of the Board of Supervisors, as a public day of fast, public day of mourning, public day of Thanksgiving, or public holiday for County employees, shall entitle a regular or permanent employee to paid holiday leave for such days.

Saturday or Sunday

21.3. When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding workday which is not a holiday shall be deemed the holiday. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following workday which is not a holiday shall be deemed the holiday. Employees who are required by their Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, to work on a holiday which falls on a Saturday or Sunday shall have that workday treated as a holiday and not the preceding workday if the holiday is on a Saturday or the succeeding workday if the holiday falls on a Sunday. If an employee works on a Sunday which is a holiday and also works on the following Monday, only the actual holiday would be treated as a paid holiday.

Part-Time Holiday Accrual

- **21.4.** Regular or permanent part-time employees shall earn paid holiday leave prorated based on the number of the Employee's regularly scheduled workweek hours.
- 21.5. Holiday leave shall not be earned by, or granted to, employees for extra-help or for standby or overtime service.
- 21.6. An eligible employee shall be in paid status on his/her regular working day immediately preceding a holiday

45

Pay for Holidays Worked

21.7. A regular or permanent employee who is required, or permitted, to work on a holiday shall be granted compensation at a rate equal to the holiday plus time and one-half the employee's straight time rate of pay for all such hours worked; provided, however, that a regular or permanent employee who is required, or permitted, to work on a holiday may elect, in lieu of such compensation, to be granted compensatory paid holiday leave at a rate equal to one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's straight time rate of pay for all such hours worked and to receive for the holiday on which he/she is required, or permitted, to work the straight time rate of pay for his/her most regularly assigned class. Regular or permanent part-time employees required to work on a holiday shall receive time and one-half the employee's straight time rate of pay plus, if requested by the employee, available holiday time to a maximum of eight (8) hours.

Alternative Work Schedule Holiday Leave

- 21.8. Upon Department Head approval, employees may select one of the following options when a holiday falls on an employee's regular day off with the exception of the Road Crew who shall utilize alternative B as identified below:
 - A. Revert back to a 5/8 schedule during the work period of the holiday; or
 - B. Be paid for 8 hours of holiday pay, and any difference in the number of hours used on that holiday can be taken from vacation and/or CTO leave. If vacation and/or CTO leave is not available, the employee will be docked for the difference in pay; or
 - C. Change the regular day off to a day other than the holiday within that the work period.
- **21.9.** Holiday leave shall not be earned for time compensated by State Disability Insurance (SDI) or while on an unpaid leave of absence. Leave is only accrued for County-paid hours.
- 21.10. Department Heads shall seek to equitably rotate employee work assignments for those classifications required to be staffed on Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year's Day and July 4.

SECTION 22

VACATION LEAVE

Eligibility and Accrual

- **22.1.** Regular and permanent full-time and regular and permanent part-time employees shall earn and accrue paid vacation leave in accordance with the following provisions:
 - A. <u>Years 1-2.</u> For the first and second continuous years of service, vacation leave shall be earned and accrued at the rate of eight (8) hours of vacation leave for every one hundred eighty-nine and eighty-two hundreds (189.82) hours of service, which accrual shall be credited monthly.
 - B. <u>Years 3-9</u>. For the third through the ninth continuous years of service, vacation leave shall be earned and accrued at the rate of eight (8) hours of vacation leave for every one hundred thirty and fifty hundreds (130.50) hours of service, which accrual shall be credited monthly.
 - C. <u>Years 10 Plus</u>. For the tenth and succeeding continuous years of service, vacation leave shall be earned and accrued at the rate of eight (8) hours of vacation leave for every ninety-nine and forty-three hundreds (99.43) hours of service, which accrual shall be credited monthly.
- 22.2. Vacation leave shall not be earned by, or granted to, employees for extra-help or for standby or overtime service except as stated in Appendix A, Definitions.
- 22.3. An employee shall not be eligible to utilize his/her accrued vacation leave until after completion of six (6) continuous months of employment with the County.
- 22.4. An employee who separates from County employment shall be entitled to payment in lieu of accrued vacation leave which has not been taken prior to separation from employment.
- 22.5. Vacation leave shall be granted and shall be utilized no later than the calendar year following the calendar year in which the employee earned and accrued such leave. An employee may accrue twice their current annual vacation accrual rate. An employee cannot accrue more than twice their current annual vacation accrual rate, unless the County is unable to allow the employee time off to use vacation time. Agency/Department Heads, or his/her designees, shall make every effort to allow employees to take vacation leave during the year in which it is accrued.
- 22.6. The County may, at its discretion, deny to any employee vacation leave during any work stoppage, strike, work slowdown, or other job action against the County by its employees, or during any bona fide emergency for which the County deems it necessary to have its employees work.
- 22.7. An employee's pay for any day of vacation leave shall equal the pay which the employee would have received had he/she worked his/her regular hours in his/her most regularly assigned class, but not in any temporarily assigned higher class, during the day of vacation leave.
- 22.8. Vacation leave shall not be earned for time compensated by State Disability Insurance (SDI) or while on an unpaid leave of absence. Leave is only accrued for County-paid hours.

- 22.9. Any probationary employee who suffers a work-related injury shall be allowed to use accrued sick and vacation and leave to compensate said employee for any loss of earnings when the cause is work-related and a worker's compensation claim has been filed and accepted by the County.
- **22.10.** Those Departments that restrict the number of employees on vacation simultaneously shall annually give priority to vacation requests for the same period based on Departmental seniority.
- 22.11. In calendar year 2018 only, an employee may elect to convert up to twenty-four (24) hours of accumulated vacation to a cash payment at the employee's base hourly rate of pay for each such hour so converted, payable in October 2019. Upon payment of the hours converted by the employee, the County will simultaneously reduce the employee's vacation balance by the corresponding number of hours. To qualify for the foregoing conversion option, the employee must make the election in writing, irrevocably, on a form provided by the County's Human Resources Department. Such election must be made and the form completed and delivered to the Human Resources Department in the month of October, 2018. An employee may not receive a cash out of vacation under this provision if and to the extent that it would reduce the employee's vacation balance below forty (40) hours at the time the payment is made. Payment on an election for a cash out that would violate the forty (40) hour requirement will be reduced to the extent necessary to conform to the forty (40) hour minimum balance requirement.
- 22.12 On the first day of the second pay period following adoption of this MOU each full-time employee, excluding extra help employees, will be credited with sixteen (16) hours (16) of additional vacation credit on a one-time-only basis. For purposes of this subsection 22.11 only, "full-time" means that the employee is regularly scheduled to work at least twenty-hours per week. Bargaining unit members regularly scheduled to work less than twenty (20) hours per week, excluding extra help employees, will be credited with eight (8) hours of additional vacation credit on a one-time-only basis. The one-time-only credits provided for in this subsection 22.12 will not affect the on-going rate of vacation accrual but will be otherwise treated in the same manner as the employee's other accumulated vacation."

SECTION 23

HOURS OF WORK

Workday

23.1. Every department shall work a five (5) day/eight (8) hour schedule, unless a different schedule is specifically approved pursuant to this section. Employees within regular departments shall work eight (8) hours each workday (eight (8) hours including breaks, but not lunch periods) with starting times and ending times determined by the relevant Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, which times will be consistent with this section.

Staffing Schedules

23.2. Every department doing business with the public will be staffed from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., including lunch hours. "Staffed" means having employees present who are ready, willing, and able to interact with the public and answer the public's questions. Agencies/Departments with three (3), or fewer, employees shall comply with the provisions of this paragraph when feasible while complying with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

Alternative Work Schedules

23.3. Upon recommendation by a Department Head, alternative work schedules may be approved by the County Administrative Officer. Examples of alternate work schedules, include, but are not limited to a "4-10" or a "9-80" plan, provided they conform to state and federal law.

Establishment of an alternative work schedule in any department is not subject to the meet and confer process; it is a management right to be determined solely by the County. However, the County will notify and seek comments from the Union prior to implementation of a new alternative work schedule.

In the event an Alternate Work Schedule proposal is declined, upon request by the Union, the County agrees to a meeting with the County Administrative Officer and the Department Head to review and discuss the reasons for the County's decision.

Lunch Breaks

23.4. A lunch period may be 30, 45, or 60 minutes for any given employee, as specified in advance by the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee.

Rest Periods

23.5. Each employee shall be entitled to take, and shall take, a 15 minute duty-free break for each four (4) hour portion of their normal day not to exceed two 15 minute breaks in an 8 or 10 hour shift, and a duty-free lunch period as set forth in Section 23.6. hereof. Rest periods shall be taken at such times as shall be determined by the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, in consultation with the employee.

Duty-Free Breaks, Lunches

23.6. No employee may perform any duties during a lunch period or break unless emergency circumstances require the performance of duties during those periods as directed by the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee. In addition, when the needs of County service so require, other exceptions may apply by mutual agreement of the Union and the Board of Supervisors. Snow plowing and paving crews of the Public Works Agency Road Crew may work through breaks and lunch periods when so directed by their supervisor. Work performed through breaks or lunch periods shall be paid time and may require payment at overtime rates. Breaks and lunch periods must be surrounded by work periods; breaks and/or lunch periods may not be combined, nor may they be used to shorten a work day.

FLSA Compliance

- 23.7. Extra-Curricular Work Activities: In order to avoid unnecessary overtime and possible violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act, whenever an employee desires to participate in extra-curricular work activities (i.e. conferences, training, etc.), the employee will be required to revert back to a regular eight (8) hour schedule for the entire alternative work schedule period, unless otherwise approved by the employee's Department Head prior to the extra-curricular event.
- 23.8. The workday for any employee may be extended at the discretion of the County in accordance with the provisions of Section 23.22.

Flexible Schedules for Employee Development

23.9. Each Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, is encouraged to consider requests from employees who may wish to modify their working schedules in order to participate in job-related training or education on their own time and at their own expense. The course work must be of such a nature that it would enhance the working skills of the employee's current position, or would contribute to skills required for a promotion within the occupational area in which the employee is employed.

Workweek

- 23.10. The workweek shall begin at 12:01 am Sunday and end at 12:00 am (midnight) Saturday.
- **23.11.** The workweek or work period established in lieu of a workweek for part-time and extra-help employees shall be the same as that for full-time employees for purposes of overtime compensation (Section 23.22.).
- **23.12.** The workweek or work period established in lieu of a forty (40) hour workweek for any employee may be extended at the discretion of the County in accordance with the provisions of Section 23.22.
- 23.13. No part-time or extra-help employee shall have a right to work any fixed number of hours in any week or in any month. The number of hours that a part-time employee works shall be determined on a periodic as-needed basis by the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee.

Canceled Shifts

- **23.14.** The County shall telephone a designated telephone number whenever it does not require an employee to work a shift to which the employee has been previously scheduled. Said telephone call must be made at least one (1) hour in advance of the commencement of the scheduled shift.
- 23.15. The County's failure to make the required telephone call shall result in payment to the affected employee of

two (2) hours of compensation at the employee's regular rate of pay.

23.16. It shall be the employee's responsibility to notify the supervisor, in writing, of their current address and telephone number. Failure to do so shall excuse the County from the requirements of Section 23.14., et seq.

Standby Compensation

23.17. Any employee assigned by the County to be on stand-by during non-duty hours (between shifts during the workweek or on a weekend) shall receive standby compensation at the rate of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour during such standby period, provided such employee makes him/herself available for, and responds to, all calls for work during such period. Effective on the first day of the second pay period following adoption of the MOU by the Board of Supervisors, this amount will increase by one dollar (\$1.00) to a total of four dollars (\$4.00) per hour during such standby period. Employees must remain ready and available for calls for work. "Available for calls for work" means that the employee on standby shall be in the county of his/her residence or within one (1) hour of normal driving time of the employee's regularly assigned report location. An employee assigned to standby duty shall not consume alcohol or other drug while on standby that would not be permitted while on duty as provided by County or departmental rules. Employees are required to respond to calls in accordance with departmental standards.

The Department Head or designee may temporarily assign a County vehicle to an employee who is assigned to serve on stand-by, for use in responding to call-outs during that period. The employee will return the vehicle to the Department at the conclusion of the stand-by assignment. However, if the Department determines, from time to time, that continued use of a County vehicle outside normal working hours when the employee is not on stand-by would best serve the County's operational needs, it may authorize such use.

Employees assigned Stand-By duties and who are required to perform work remotely through internet access shall be provided a laptop and an Air Card for access. Additionally, up to three (3) employees in the IT Department shall be provided a thirty dollar (\$30.00) monthly stipend in lieu of a laptop and Air Card.

- 23.18. Any work assigned by the County to be performed during a standby period shall be considered overtime work beyond the workday in accordance with the provisions of Section 23.22 below. For the first such instance of performance of work during any twelve (12) hour standby period, which standby period shall commence at the time an employee is assigned to be on call, an employee shall be considered to have performed at least two (2) hours of overtime work beyond the workday in accordance with the provisions of Section 23.22 below. Time worked shall commence at the time the first call is received by the employee.
- **23.19.** The County vehicle assigned by the County for an employee to have at his/her residence for the purpose of performing overtime work during an assigned standby period shall be considered such employee's assigned worksite for any overtime work performed during such standby period. If the employee uses his/her personal vehicle to respond to a call, the County shall reimburse the employee roundtrip mileage up to a maximum of 50 miles.
- 23.20. Standby compensation shall not be considered part of the employee's regular rate of pay for purposes of Section 23.22. below.
- 23.21. Employees are not entitled to Stand-by Pay for any hour(s) compensated at the overtime rate during the time assigned Stand-by Duty.

Overtime Compensation

23.22. Any non-professional employee assigned by the County to perform overtime work beyond the workday, beyond the workweek or beyond the work period established in lieu of the forty (40) hour workweek, shall be

granted compensation at a rate equal to one and one-half ($1\frac{1}{2}$) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all such overtime work performed, commencing upon arrival at the employee's assigned worksite and ending upon departure from such worksite. Sick leave shall not count as hours worked for the purposes of computing overtime. Work performed in hours that are contiguous and otherwise eligible for overtime compensation shall receive overtime compensation regardless of a change from one calendar day to the next or one calendar week to the next.

23.22.1. After Hours Phone Calls for Employees Not Assigned to Stand-by Duty. Any employee who is not assigned to Stand-by Duty as provided in Sections 23.17 through 23.21 called after hours to respond to questions or to provide counseling and/or advice and the call(s) and is on the phone in excess of six (6) minutes, shall be compensated for time worked at the appropriate overtime rate of pay.

Compensatory Time Off (CTO)

23.23. Employees may be allowed to accrue up to a maximum of 40 hours compensatory time off (CTO). Prior to offering overtime work to an employee, the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall let the employee know whether CTO could be used as an alternative to cash compensation. The employee, in the event of such a choice, shall make the decision regarding the form of compensation. CTO shall be accrued at the applicable overtime rate.

Shift Differentials

23.24. Every full-time employee, without regard to class, shall be paid a shift differential of twenty-five cents (\$.25) per hour for his/her workday which commences at or after 12:30 p.m., but before 9:00 p.m. (swing shift); provided, however, that every such employee shall be paid a shift differential of thirty-five cents (\$.35) per hour for his/her workday which commences at or after 9:00 p.m., but before 4:00 a.m. (night shift). Every employee required by the County to work in addition to his/her workday, time which is not continuous with his/her workday, shall receive the appropriate shift differential for time so worked as if the second section of their work is beginning of a new shift or the shift differential for his/her regular shift whichever shift differential is the greater.

Effective on the first day of the second pay period commencing after adoption of this 2017-19 MOU the swing shift rate shall increase by twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for a total hourly swing shift differential of fifty cents (\$0.50). Effective at the same time, the night shift differential shall increase by forty cents (\$0.40) for a total hourly night shift differential of seventy-five cents (\$0.75).

Effective on the first day of the first pay period beginning on or after October 1, 2018 the swing shift differential shall increase by fifty cents (\$0.50) for a total hourly swing shift differential of one dollar (\$1.00). Effective on the same date, the night shift differential will increase by seventy-five cents (\$0.75) for a total hourly night shift differential of one dollar fifty cents (\$1.50).

23.25. Shift differentials shall not be considered part of the employee's regular rate of pay for purposes of Section 23.22 above.

Call-Back Pay

23.26 Any employee called back to work after completion of his/her regular shift shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours compensation for the time worked in accordance with Section 23.22 above.

SECTION 24

HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

24.1. The County purchases and administers group life insurance and health, vision, and dental care insurance policies for all County employees as described herein.

Major Medical Insurance Coverage

24.2. The County provides medical insurance (through Blue Shield. The County agrees to continue to contribute eighty-seven and one-half percent (87.5%) and the employees will contribute twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) of the premium.

Health Insurance Advisory Committee

24.3. The County will continue to have a Health Insurance Advisory Committee composed of representatives from SEIU, the County and other covered employee groups. The Committee will review alternative medical plan providers as well as plan designs and make recommendations to the County for plan design changes and plan cost and administrative efficiencies. After recommendations are made the County may implement the recommended changes. However, changes to the medical plan provider shall be by mutual agreement In addition to the representatives designated by the Union for formal negotiations with the County, as set forth in Section 11.1., the Union shall appoint four (4) representatives from this Unit to serve as members of the Health Insurance Advisory Committee and upon the joint request of the Union and the County, the County shall allow said representatives reasonable time off without loss of pay or benefits for the purpose of performing their duties. The Health Insurance Advisory Committee shall meet quarterly unless cancellation is mutually agreed upon by the Union and the County.

Other Benefits Provided by County

- **24.4.** The County shall continue the dental, vision, and life insurance programs in effect as of the date this 2017-19 Memorandum of Understanding is ratified and adopted by the Board of Supervisors.
- 24.5. The County shall pay eighty-seven and on-half percent (87.5%) of the employees' dental and vision health insurance premiums and employees shall pay twelve and one-half percent (12.5%). The County will pay the entire premium for life insurance
- 24.6. Before the County's duty to make any such contribution arises, the employee shall authorize deduction of his/her share of the premium by payroll deduction on forms supplied by the County Auditor.

Employees Covered by Non-County Major Medical Insurance

24.7. Additionally, any full-time employee covered by major medical insurance other than the County's, after showing proof thereof, may take \$466.08 per month in cash, or use all or part of that amount to upgrade vision, dental, and life insurance. The County shall retain the remainder of the premium it otherwise would have paid to that employee. If the employee full-time employee waives all benefits except life insurance, the cash total is \$506.08. A part-time employees who is covered by major medical insurance other than the County's, after showing proof thereof, may take a prorated share of the cash amount of four hundred sixty-six dollars eight cents (\$466.08). If the

part-time employee waives all benefits except life insurance, the employee will receive a prorated share of five hundred six dollars eight cents (\$506.08), based on the proportion of full-time hours worked in accordance with section 24.12. Whether full or part-time if, during open enrollment or based on another qualifying event, the employee re-enrolls in the County's applicable benefit program, his or her payment for waiving such benefits shall cease on the effective date of such re-enrollment.

Both Spouses Employed by County

24.8. Current "County Couples" (spouses both of whom are currently working for the County) who are "double covered" may remain double-covered with each covered by the County's major medical insurance carrier, or, at the option of the couple, one spouse would be covered by the County's major medical insurance carrier and the other may take \$506.08 in cash. The double-coverage benefit shall not apply to any County couples hired after October 1, 2005; and the double-coverage benefit shall terminate for grandfathered couples whenever and if (a) either spouse takes a cash benefit for the first time instead of upgrading major medical coverage; (b) either spouse terminates his or her County employment; or (c) they divorce.

Eligibility

24.9. Every regular or permanent full-time or part-time employee, other than those employees who are on laid off status, suspended for cause, or on unpaid leave (during which law does not require payment of the County's premium contribution), and his/her dependents, if any, shall become eligible for employee and dependent health, life, dental, and vision care insurance coverage provided by the County (dependents are not eligible for life insurance) on the first day of the month following the month in which such employee completes thirty (30) days of regular or permanent full-time or part-time service. Said employees shall be entitled to such insurance coverage without regard to the number of hours worked by such employees each month. For such employee and dependent health, life, dental, and vision coverage, the County shall contribute the County's share of the premiums each month for each regular or permanent full-time employee and for each regular or permanent part-time employee the amounts set forth.

Right to Purchase Additional Benefits

24.10. Any employee may purchase additional benefits or upgrade any benefit at the employee's own expense, by authorizing payroll deductions therefore once a year in a designated open enrollment period.

Regular and Permanent Part-Time Coverage

- **24.11.** Regular and permanent part-time employees shall be eligible to participate in the health program contingent upon approval of the relevant health program plan provider.
- 24.12 Part-time employees shall receive an insurance coverage contribution in an amount equal to the proportion of hours worked (regular, sick, vacation, holiday) in any month up to full time. The part-time employees' contributions shall be subject to change based on full-time employees' contributions set forth above.

Enrollment

24.13. Eligible employees shall assume full responsibility for enrolling themselves and their eligible dependents in the insurance coverage provided by this Section. A newly eligible full-time or part-time regular employee shall have fourteen (14) days from the first day of work to complete the enrollment documents required for insurance coverage. When an employee timely enrolls, coverage shall begin on the first day of the month following the month in which the employee completes thirty (30) days of service as a regular employee thereafter initial enrollment, changes in enrollment may be made by an employee during the annual open enrollment or on the occurrence of a qualifying event as specified by carrier regulations and applicable State or Federal law.

Deferred Compensation Annuity Program

- **24.14.** Every regular or permanent employee may enroll in a deferred compensation annuity program offered by a carrier through the County in accordance with the enrollment provisions established by the carrier. For contributions to such a program, the employee shall utilize monthly payroll deductions which shall be authorized in writing by the employee at least thirty (30) days prior to the first deduction.
- 24.15. At its sole discretion, the County may withdraw at any time from participating in any deferred compensation annuity program which has not met its obligations in accordance with reporting and/or Internal Revenue Service (IRS) requirements.

Disability Insurance

24.16. Every employee shall be eligible for the State Disability Insurance (SDI) Program, including the Family Temporary Disability Insurance Program. The premiums for said State Disability Insurance (SDI)/Family Temporary Disability Insurance Program shall be deducted monthly by the County Auditor from all employees' pay, which deductions are hereby expressly and irrevocably authorized without individual written authorizations.

Personal Belongings

24.17. Personal belongings that an employee is required to bring into the workplace for the performance of the duties of the job are covered by County insurance, provided the criteria as outlined in Amador County Policies and Procedures Manual has been met.

Employees in the Power Equipment Mechanic I-III classifications in the GSA motor pool are required to provide all of the tools in the Basic Hand Tool list. The County will provide a safe place for the storage of said tools. The employee will give to his/her immediate supervisor an inventory of such tools and/or equipment by January 1st of each year.

The County shall fully compensate said employees for department required tools and/or equipment which are lost or damaged because of theft, fire, or other catastrophe, provided that such tools are listed in the inventory and are stored in a place designated by the County. In the case of theft, the employee requesting compensation must provide evidence that a police report regarding the incident has been filed.

The County agrees to provide all specialty tools equipment (e.g., diagnostic, machinery, etc.) and supplies reasonably necessary for the performance of assigned duties.

The County shall provide the Union and employees with the Basic Hand Tool list. Within sixty to ninety days after the adoption of the Memorandum of Understanding, the parties will meet to discuss the definition of specialty tools.

Mileage and Travel Allowances

- 24.18. Any employee required by the County to operate his/her vehicle in the performance of County business shall receive an allowance therefore at the rate governed by the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual, which may be increased by unilateral action of the Board of Supervisors at any time during the term of this Agreement. Employees who are required to use their private vehicles on County business shall be entitled to mileage reimbursement except that an employee who is called to work at his/her regular duty station shall not be eligible for mileage reimbursement.
- 24.19. If any employee is required by the County to travel outside the County during regular meal hours, the County shall, at its election, provide the regular meals for the employee or shall reimburse the employee for the documented actual cost of such meals in accordance with the allowances set forth in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual, which meal allowances may be increased by unilateral action of the Board of Supervisors at any time during the term of this Agreement.
- 24.20. Other allowances shall be paid to employees for travel which is required by the County in accordance with the provisions outlined in the Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual.

PERS Retirement Coverage

- 24.21. All employees who are eligible to participate as set forth in the contract between the County and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), shall participate therein according to said contract. Extra-help employees are not eligible for PERS coverage; provided, however, that the hours worked in any County fiscal year does not exceed 999 hours.
- 24.22. The responsibility for certain Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) payments shall be as follows:
 - A. All "Classic" members of PERS, regardless of hire date, shall pay the full seven percent (7%) PERS classic member contribution. B. All employees hired as new members according to PERS regulations, and pursuant to the Public Employee Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA"), as amended, shall pay one-half (½) of the Normal Cost as determined by PERS.
 - C. Deductions of employee pension contributions shall be by payroll on a pre-tax basis to the extent allowed by law.
- 24.23. The PERS retirement formula and optional benefits for employees shall be as follows:
 - A. Retirement Formulas: The County maintains the 2% @ 55 Retirement formula for employees hired before June 1, 2011. Employees hired on or after June 1, 2011 or who are hired after January 1, 2013 as a "Classic" member will be provided the 2% @ 60 Retirement formula. Employees hired as new members according to PERS regulations shall be covered by the formula established by PEPRA.
 - B. The 2%@55 plan has the following options:
 - California Government Code Section 20042 (One-Year Final Compensation);
 - California Government Code Section 21548 (Pre-retirement "Optional Settlement Two" Death Benefit) and
 - California Government Code Section 20965 (Credit for Unused Sick Leave).
 - C. The 2%@ 60 plan has the following options:
 - California Government Code Section 20037 (Three-Years Final Compensation)

- California Government Code Section 21548 (Pre-retirement "Optional Settlement Two" Death Benefit) and
- California Government Code Section 20965 (Credit for Unused Sick Leave).

Retirees' PERS Administrative Fee

24.24. The County shall pay the PERS administrative fee for retirees after the County is in the PERS major medical insurance program.

Safety Shoe Allowances

24.25. The County agrees to maintain a program for cost reimbursement of approved purchases of County required safety shoes for regular and permanent full-time and part-time employees. Overshoes are strongly encouraged to minimize the need for replacement shoes. The County will reimburse the employee for actual and reasonable costs for the shoes and/or overshoes up to a maximum of \$170.00 per employee, for contract years, upon approval of the Director of Human Resources. This maximum amount will increase to one hundred eighty-five dollars (\$185) per contract year effective October 1, 2018. However, an employee may forego use of this benefit in one contract year and carryover it to the next year (for a maximum of one contract year) and use up to the entire resulting three hundred seventy dollars (\$370) accumulation in the second year for one pair of required safety shoes. Lack of prudent care of shoes, including failure to use protective overshoes, may result in denial of reimbursement for replacement shoes.

Employees who work outside an office/in the field in the following classifications shall be eligible for this benefit:

Agriculture & Standards Insp I, II and III Agriculture Technician Agriculture Technician/GIS Assistant Air Pollution Inspector I and II Airport Manager Animal Care Technician I and II Animal Control Officer I, II and III Bridge & Sign Maintenance Specialist Building Code Compliance Officer/CEA Building Inspector I, II and III Building Maintenance Worker I, II and III Senior Building Maintenance Worker Code Enforcement Officer Construction Worker and Sr. Custodian I and II Dep Ag Com/Sealer of Weight, Measures Engineering Technician Environmental Health Specialist I, II, and III Environmental Health Technician I, II Heavy Equipment Mechanic Mail Clerk (for warehouse work) Mosquito & Vector Control Technician Planner I, II, and III Power Equip Mechanic I, II and III Power Equip Mechanic II-Fabrication Public Works Project Engineer

Public Works Inspector

Public Works Lead Inspector

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor

Public Works Maintenance Worker I, II, III and Lead

Public Works Senior Project Engineer

Public Works Surveyor

Employee Wellness Program

24.26. The County agrees to provide up to \$100.00 per calendar year cost reimbursement to regular and permanent employees who participate in a physical fitness program approved by the Human Resources Director, or his/her designee. Claims for this cost reimbursement must be submitted to the Human Resources Department prior to December 10th of each year for reimbursement for that calendar year.

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

- **24.27.** Employees who experience financial or family difficulties, or have problems with drug or alcohol abuse, are encouraged to seek assistance through the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) offered by the County. For information on the Employee Assistance Program (EAP), refer to Amador County Policies & Procedures Manual, which is available in each County department. The County shall pay for the cost of the Employee Assistance Program (EAP).
- 24.28. In matters involving proposed discipline against an employee, the County may, in its sole discretion, allow the employee to enter an employee assistance program to address a substance and/or alcohol abuse problem as an alternative to discipline.

Health Examinations or Fitness for Duty Tests

- 24.29. If any health examination or Fitness for Duty test is required of any employee by the County, the County shall provide the required examination or test or cause such examination or test to be provided. Employees shall be granted paid leave of absence for the purposes of undergoing required health examination. The County shall select the persons to provide the required examination or test. If the employee disagrees with the County's selection prior to submitting to the examination or test, the County shall be required to provide to the employee a list of three (3) other providers from which the employee may select the person who will provide the examination or test; provided, however, that this requirement shall be waived in the event of a bona fide emergency.
- **24.30.** The County agrees to provide cost reimbursements on an annual basis for DMV physicals and related costs which are required by the County and are not covered by the employee's medical insurance.

Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code

24.31. The County Auditor has implemented Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code allowing for a pre-tax salary deduction in an amount equal to employee-designated costs of dependent care, medical deductibles, co-payments, etc., as desired by each employee.

SECTION 25

CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES

Equity Adjustments

25.1. An equity adjustment is a change in the range of a classification after meeting and conferring.

Reclassifications

- 25.2. Reclassifications occur when the County (a) determines that the duties of a particular position have changed substantially; (b) reorganizes a department or agency by changing staffing levels, duties, or positions held by specific employees; or (c) determines that the duties of a particular position as required to be performed are those of a different class.
- 25.3. An employee occupying a position which is reclassified to a class with the same range as the previous position shall be placed at the same step and salary. An employee reclassified to a class with a higher range shall be placed at the step which is the same as or closest to but no lower than their previous salary. An employee reclassified to a class with a lower range shall be placed at the step which is the same as or closest to but no lower than their previous salary or, if the highest step in the new range is lower than the previous salary the employee shall be Y-rated. The Y-rate will freeze the salary of the employee at the present level until the salary for the lower class is equal to, or greater than, the Y-rate. An employee on a Y-rate will be offered any vacant position in the old (higher) class within their department if they are qualified. They will also be interviewed for open positions, upon their request, within their old class in other departments prior to considering any other candidates for the position. Any refusal of an offer in the old class will terminate the Y-rate. The anniversary date of an employee whose position is reclassified pursuant to this section 25.3 will not change as a result of that reclassification.

Temporary Assignments

- 25.4. An employee assigned temporarily to work in a class with a higher designated range ("temporary range") than the range designated for such employee's regularly assigned class ("regular range") shall upon the recommendation of his/her Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, and approval by County Administrative Officer, be paid in accordance with the temporary range during the temporary assignment. The recommendation from the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall include a specific time frame for the temporary assignment. The temporary assignment shall not begin until the County Administrative Officer approves it.
- 25.5. During that temporary assignment, the employee shall retain whatever step in the temporary range shall result in a wage increase.
- 25.6. An employee who believes that an Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, has required that employee to work temporarily in a class with a temporary range higher than the employee's regular range, and who is not receiving the temporary range, may request through the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, that the employee be paid in accordance with the temporary range. The request shall be made within thirty (30) days of the assignment. The Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall, within five (5) working days, approve or disapprove the employee's request and in either case shall inform the employee and the County Administrative

Officer of his/her decision. Approval of the employee being paid at the temporary range shall be sent to the County Administrative Officer for action and shall be retroactive to the date upon which the temporary assignment to a higher classification commenced.

- 25.7. If the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, disapproves the employee's request, the County Administrative Officer, or his/her designee, shall investigate the request and the Agency/Department Head's, or his/her designee's, decision and decide whether or not the employee's request is justified. If the employee's request is deemed justified, the County Administrative Officer shall approve the temporary range.
- 25.8. If the Board of Supervisors denies the request, the employee may file a grievance thereon.

Promotions

- 25.9. Promotions occur when an existing employee receives a report of appointment to a class with a higher range than their current position through the competitive open position process. Any employee receiving a promotion shall receive, at a minimum, a wage increase which is at least a five percent (5%) increase from their previous salary within the salary range for the new class and shall receive a new step anniversary date. If an employee had previously qualified for, and had received longevity pay, and is promoted to a higher range, the five percent (5%) increase will be calculated on Step E of the range that the qualifying employee left. If the qualifying employee is placed at either Step A, B, C, D, or E of the higher range, the qualifying employee will also receive the appropriate longevity pay in addition to the wage received at the new range and step.
- 25.10. The following classes within a classification series automatically, upon successful completion of probation or appropriate licensing, advance to the next class in a classification series, but no further. These classes are the only classes which so advance automatically.

Positions with Automatic Progression

Classes	Progression	Department
Behavioral Health Clinician	I-II	Health and Human Services
Building Inspectors	I-II	Building
Eligibility Worker	I-II	Health and Human Services
Employment & Training Worker	I-II	Health and Human Services
Finance Assistant	I-II	Health and Human Services
Administrative Assistant	I-II	Health and Human Services
Planner	I-II	Community Development
Social Worker	I-II	Health and Human Services

Wages

25.11. The wage schedule designated as the schedule for October 1, 2017 in the attached Appendix B shall take

effect October 1, 2017. It reflects a base wage rate increase of two percent (2%) of the base wage rates in effect on September 30, 2017. The wage schedule designated as the wage schedule for October 1, 2018 in the attached Appendix B will take effect on October 1, 2018 and reflects a base wage rate increase of one percent (1%) of the base wage rates in effect as of September 30, 2018.

- 25.12. The County uses the following counties for comparison purposes: Calaveras, Nevada, San Benito, Tuolumne, and Yolo.
- 25.13. Subject to the provisions of Sections 20, 21, 22, and 24 above, every employee shall be paid in accordance with the wage schedule, except when absent from his/her duty with paid leave authorized in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and be paid on a salary basis computed at 2088 hours per year. Employees are only paid for the time actually worked, plus sick, professional, and vacation leave. A full-time employee's pay period shall be from the first of the month to the end of the month, except as may be changed as provided in 25.15. New employees and terminated employees shall be paid for the actual hours worked from the first working day of the month.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective October 1, 2017 the base wage rates and ranges of employees classified as Public Health Nurse I and Public Health Nurse II will increase by ten percent (10%) of their respective corresponding base wage rates and ranges, as adjusted on October 1, 2017 in accordance with section 25.11 above. Effective on the first day of the first pay period commencing on or after October 1, 2018 the base wage rates and ranges for said classifications will increase by an additional ten percent (10%) of their respective corresponding base wage rates and ranges, as adjusted on October 1, 2018 in accordance with Section 25.11 above. Said rates and ranges are reflected in the wage schedules attached as Appendix B.

Warrants

25.14. The dating and issuing of payroll warrants shall be on the last weekday of the month which is not a holiday. The County shall offer direct deposit of paychecks, if an employee so elects, and has worked two (2) months of continuous employment. During the term of this Agreement, the County reserves the right to change to a different payroll system with different pay periods and dates. The County will notify the Union at least two (2) months in advance and meet and confer regarding the impact of the change. At such time as the pay periods are changed the total number of paid hours annually shall be reduced to 2080. The annual salary shall not be reduced. The additional 8 hours of pay shall be incorporated into the new pay scales.

Step Advancements

- 25.15. Step advancement for a permanent employee shall be procedurally automatic, unless such step advancement is withheld from such employee in accordance with the provisions of Sections 14.1. and/or 18 above.
- 25.16. A permanent employee hired or promoted at Step A shall be eligible for step advancement on the first calendar day of the month following the month in which such employee completes his/her first six (6) months of employment as a regular or permanent employee in his/her regularly assigned class. If such employee completes his/her first six (6) months of employment as a regular or permanent employee in his/her regularly assigned class on the first calendar day of the month, he/she shall be eligible for step advancement on that day. Thereafter, a permanent employee hired or promoted at Step A shall be eligible for step advancement on the anniversary dates of his/her first step advancement until such employee advances to Step E.
- 25.17. A permanent employee hired or promoted at any step higher than Step A shall be eligible for step advancement on the first calendar day of the month following the month in which such employee completes his/her first year of employment as a permanent employee in his/her regularly assigned class. If such employee completes his/her first year of employment as a permanent employee in his/her regularly assigned class on the first

calendar day of the month, he/she shall be eligible for step advancement on that day. Thereafter, a permanent employee hired or promoted at any step higher than Step A shall be eligible for step advancement on the anniversary dates of his/her first step advancement until such employee advances to Step E.

Longevity Increases

25.18. Permanent employees shall receive longevity wage increases on their base pay when they have completed ten (10), fifteen (15), and twenty (20) continuous years of regular and permanent County employment including continuous years of County employment. At each of these benchmark years (10, 15, 20), the employee shall receive a 2.5% salary increase.

The Human Resources Department shall maintain a calendar of all required appraisals and shall notify, in writing, the employee's Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date when an employee's appraisal is required by this Agreement. The Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for ensuring that an appraisal and other appropriate documentation are completed by the Human Resources Department. When a formal performance appraisal is not completed within thirty (30) calendar days of the required date, the employee shall, for all purposes, be deemed to have received a rating for "Meets" standards for the sole purpose of applying this section.

25.19. A period of suspension pursuant to Section 18.4. shall not be deemed to cause a discontinuance in years of employment for the purpose of step advancements set forth in Section 25.21., but the period of suspension shall not be counted in the calculation of continuous employment for the purpose of calculating step advancements.

Miscellaneous Stipends

- 25.20. Any employee working for the Public Works Agency Road Crew who has been certified by the Department of Motor Vehicles and who has been assigned the task of DMV Officer as part of his/her regular duties shall receive a stipend for \$100.00 per year as long as the DMV in-house program is in place.
- 25.21 The Side Letters of Agreement set forth in Appendix D of this Memorandum of Understanding and addressing the below topics are by this reference incorporated into this Memorandum of Understanding:
 - A. Outreach Technician assigned to assist in Public Health functions;
 - B. Medic al Assistant Differential
 - C. Road Crew Lead Worker Stipend
 - D. Utilization and Quality Management Coordinator Differential
 - E. Data From County-Issued Electronic Devices
 - F. Bilingual Stipend

19.)

G. Voluntary Reduced Schedules (This extended side letter is extended further through fiscal year 2018-

SECTION 26

OPEN POSITIONS

Disclosure by Applicants

26.1. The County shall include in the standard application for employment, the requirement that the applicant disclose his or her knowing, or having had any relationship outside of the workplace, with the hiring Agency/Department Head, or other hiring person, and a description of the context or venue in which the knowing or relationship with the hiring Agency/Department Head or other hiring person occurred.

Notice

26.2. In order to insure that all employees have an opportunity to apply for open County positions, the Human Resources Director shall cause to be posted notice of each open position on bulletin boards, including Union-designated bulletin boards in every staffed County building as soon as possible, but under no circumstances later than five (5) working days prior to the application deadline. Positions will be designated as an "open recruitment", defined as open to any applicant, or an "internal recruitment", defined as open to applicants who are currently employed by the County or any of its special districts. Said notice shall also be sent to each Union steward. The Human Resources Director shall also cause to be posted positions on the County web page.

Filling of Positions

- 26.3. The filling of open positions shall be conducted in the following manner:
 - A. The Human Resources Department shall review all applications submitted for the open position. He/she shall eliminate from further consideration all applicants who do not meet the minimum qualifications for the position.
 - B. A screening committee shall be formed by the Human Resources Director or his/her designee. The screening committee shall include the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, in whose department the position is to be filled, the Human Resources Director or his/her designee, a represented employee selected by the Human Resources Director, and, if deemed appropriate by the Human Resources Director, a knowledgeable person employed by another county or agency.
 - C. The screening committee shall meet and decide which of the qualified applicants are the most qualified.
 - D. The screening committee shall interview the most qualified applicants.
 - E. After interviewing the most qualified applicants, the screening committee shall rank those applicants and recommend the hiring of one (1) thereof, based on the applications and interviews.
- F. All work of the screening committee shall be done in confidence; provided, however, that the represented employee may report to the Union the results of the screening committee. The Union shall keep in confidence the report made by the represented employee.
- G. The Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee, shall fill the open position with one (1) of the five (5)

top-ranked applicants.

H. The Union shall be given notice by the Human Resources Director of which applicant has been selected to fill the open position.

SECTION 27

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES

- **27.1.** The Professional category shall be comprised of the classifications as listed in Appendix B (Classifications and Wages):
- 27.2. Professional employees as outlined herein shall not be subject to Section 23 (Hours of Work) as outlined by this Agreement as it relates to overtime and compensatory time off (CTO). These employees are exempt from overtime requirements as outlined by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). Instead, Professional employees shall work a flexible schedule to be determined in consultation with their Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee. The foregoing notwithstanding, Behavioral Health Therapists shall receive overtime pursuant to Sections 23.17 and 23.18 only.
- 27.3. Professional employees shall accrue up to five (5) days of professional leave each calendar year which may be utilized upon completion of their probationary period. An employee may accrue professional leave up to a maximum amount equal to twice their current annual professional accrual rate. Part-time professional employees shall receive five (5) pro-rated days of leave each year based on the number of hours they work.

Eligible Classifications:

Behavioral Health Care Nurse I

Behavioral Health Care Nurse II

Behavioral Health Care Nurse III

BHC Program Manager (Community Services)

BHC Program Manager (Clinical Services)

Behavioral Health Care Clinician I

Behavioral Health Care Clinician II

Behavioral Health Care Clinician III

Crisis Coordinator

Crisis Services Counselor

Health Educator

Mental Health Rehab Spec

Nurse Practitioner

Public Health Nurse I

Public Health Nurse II

Public Health Nurse Supervisor

Registered Nurse (Health)

UA & QA Management Coordinator

- **27.4.** The probationary period for Professional employees shall be twelve (12) months. Employees are subject to the probationary provisions as outlined in Section 14 of this employee bargaining agreement.
- 27.5. The salaries for Professional employees are outlined in Appendix B (Classifications and Wages).
- 27.6. Promotions from level to level for Professional employees are subject to approval by the County Administrative Officer, upon recommendation by the Agency/Department Head, or his/her designee.

SECTION 28

LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

- 28.1.1 In order to encourage open communication, promote harmonious relations, and resolve matters of mutual concern, the parties agree to maintain a Labor-Management Committee subject to the following:
 - A. The Committee will meet monthly, or as mutually agreed by the parties.
 - B. The role of the Committee will be advisory in nature. The Committee will have no authority to delete from, add to, or modify this MOU. Committee meetings will not serve as a substitute for nor will they satisfy the parties' mutual obligation to meet and confer in good faith regarding matters within the scope of bargaining.
 - C. The Committee will be composed of representatives appointed by the County and representatives appointed by the Union. The County shall seek to have staff from within the County Administrator's Office as its representative. At least one of the Union representatives will be a Union official. Observers and guests may be invited by either party when their presence will be helpful in the resolution of specific issues. Meetings will be held on non-paid time, generally planned for lunchtime.

SECTION 29

RECOMMENCEMENT OF NEGOTIATIONS

- 29.1. Either the Union or the County shall have the right to reopen negotiations on all subjects within the scope of representation by giving written notice to the other party of its election to reopen negotiations not earlier than June 1, 2019, and not later than August 1, 2019.
- 29.2. If the Union or the County elects to reopen negotiations in accordance with the above provision, their negotiations shall commence not later than August 10, 2019; provided, however, that neither the Union nor the County shall be relieved of its right or obligation to negotiate on all subjects within the scope of representation if their negotiations have not commenced by August 10, 2019.

SECTION 30

TERM, WITNESSES, AND SIGNATORS

Septen the Co	Except as of or the date in the date in the date in the Unity or the Unity of the U	it is adopte . Thereaft Inion notif	ed by the er, the ies the	he Board of provisions other not l	Super of this ater th	rvisors, w s Agreem nan Augu	whichenent so list 1,	hal 201	r is lat l rema 19 or,	er, a in in in th	nd s n eff	hall ren	nain by	year unless e	ough ither
30.2.	In witness v	whereof, th	is Agr	eement was	ratific	ed by a n	nemb	ersl	hip vo	te o	f the	e Union	on_	January)
30.3.	In witness	whereof,	this 	Agreement	was	ratified	by	a	vote	of	the	Board	of	Supervisors	on
[Conti	inued on nex	t page]													
///															
///															
///															
///				2.											
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															
///															

For the County of Amador, California:	
Lynn A. Morgan, Chair Board of Supervisors	
APPROVED AS TO FORM: GREG GILLOT, COUNTY COUNSEL FO THE COUNTY OF AMADOR, CALIFORN	

For SEIU Local 1021:
John Stead Mendez, Executive Director
Field and Programs
14
Der 9 Mall
Dennis Mallory, Field Representative
Ph The More
Robert Taylor, Unit President
Robert Taylor, Ollit Tresident
MM NS
Nathan Hill, Negotiations Team Member
1 11111111 1111111111111111111111111111
Dessie Staniford
Debbie Stanford, Negotiations Team
Member
Ala Sa
Steen Lown
Stephen Lewis, Negotiations Team
Member
the Shart and
Tiesha Adams, Negotiations Team
Member
Daniel Weddle, Negotiations Team
Member
James Winter, Negotiations Team
James Winter, Negotiations Team

Member

APPENDIX A

DEFINITIONS

The definitions in this Section shall govern the construction of this Agreement and shall have the respective meanings given below unless it is clearly apparent from the context that they are used in a different sense. The definition of a word shall apply to any of its variants.

<u>Absenteeism</u>. The unexcused non-attendance of an employee from his or her assigned workplace or duty.

Administration Level. This class is distinguished by overall responsibility for planning, organizing, directing, and supervising the activities of a major program area, division, or department. Work area and program management, rather than supervision or the performance of complex technical work in most non-professional areas, distinguish classes at this level. When supervisory responsibilities are present, they are often directed through other supervisory positions. Organizational complexity and size and program diversity may require more than administrative level in an occupational area.

Administrative Leave. Leave with pay and accrual of benefits, imposed at the direction of the County, upon an employee during the pendency of an investigation which may lead to disciplinary action against the employee, or when the employee appears unable to work, during which period the employee is not required to perform work, but

is to remain available for recall to work upon short notice.

Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA). A federal statute prohibiting employers with 20 or more employees from discriminating in employment against persons 40 years or older. Penalties for violating the ADEA include reinstatement with back pay and fringe benefits, plus reasonable attorney's fees.

<u>Alternative Work Schedules</u>. A change in the normal work schedule as defined in this Agreement.

<u>Anniversary Date</u>. The date upon which a regular employee becomes eligible for step advancement under the provisions of this Agreement.

Arbitration. The process of submitting a dispute or an unresolved grievance to an impartial third party for a binding decision.

Back Pay. An amount of pay due a worker for periods

prior to the current pay period. Back pay is usually a form of an award for lost wages given through a court ruling or as a result of arbitration, or a remedy for a payroll error.

Bargaining Unit. A group of employees recognized by an employer under the Myers-Milias-Brown Act.

<u>Call-Back Pay</u>. Guaranteed pay for a set minimum number of hours when employees are called back to work when they weren't originally scheduled.

<u>Catastrophic Destruction</u>. An extreme misfortune to property owned or possessed by an employee.

<u>Catastrophic Leave</u>. Time used by an employee who has experienced an extreme misfortune.

<u>Child.</u> A biological, foster, or adopted child, a stepchild, a legal ward, a child of a domestic partner, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis.

<u>Class</u>. All positions which are sufficiently similar, as to (1) kind or subject matter of work, (2) level of difficulty and responsibility, and (3) qualification requirements of the work, that they can be given the same title and can be assigned to the same range.

Classification. The grouping of positions into classes.

Collective Bargaining. The meeting between an employer and employee representatives to confer in good faith with respect to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. Such meetings usually result in the execution of a written contract incorporating any agreement reached.

<u>Compensatory Time Off (CTO)(comp time)</u>. Paid time off given to reimburse an employee for extra time expended, usually in lieu of overtime pay.

<u>Corrective Action</u>. This term applies to taking action to correct a behavioral or performance problem.

<u>County</u>. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Amador or any employee holding a management position, or any person

70

authorized by the Board of Supervisors or by any employee holding such management position to act in its/his/her behalf.

<u>County Administrative Officer</u>. Shall include any County officer or employee designated by the County Administrative Officer to act on his/her behalf.

<u>Deferred Compensation</u>. Compensation payments that accrue for use at some point in the future. Most deferred compensation payments include contributions to pension fund annuities. They are usually not fully taxable until benefits begin.

<u>Demotion</u>. An action resulting in a downward change in classification to a class with a lower salary.

<u>Disability</u>. Under disability non-discrimination law, a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of a person's major life activities. Under workers' compensation law, can be a temporary or permanent injury.

<u>Disabled Individual</u>. Under federal law, an individual who (1) has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of his/her major life activities; (2) has a record of such impairment; or (3) is regarded as having such an impairment. A handicap is substantially limiting if it is likely to cause difficulty in securing a job, retaining a job, or advancing in employment.

<u>Discharge</u>. A separation of the employment relationship for reasons of violation of standards of conduct or safety regulations, unsatisfactory job performance, or any reason deemed to warrant separation must be made for just and sufficient cause.

<u>Discrimination</u>. As generally used in personnel law, discrimination refers to the unlawful adverse treatment of an employee or group of employees, whether intentional or unintentional, based on such characteristics as race, color, national origin, religion, sex, handicap, age, or veteran status. The term also includes the failure to remedy the effects of past discrimination.

<u>Documentation</u>. Records, usually written, kept by employers as proof of actions taken in the workplace. Examples of documentation include performance appraisals and written warnings.

<u>Drug-Free Workplace Act</u>. A federal law enacted in 1988 which requires federal contractors to implement policies to assure the existence of a drug-free workplace. Among other requirements, the Act mandates employee notification statements, a drug-free awareness program, and notice to an agency of convictions. Violations could lead to debarment from future contracts for up to five

(5) years.

Employee. Any person who has been hired by the County and who has assumed the tasks of a position.

Employee Assistance Program (EAP). A program provided by employers to help employees handle problems such as alcohol and drug abuse, or emotional disturbances.

Employee Wellness Program. A monetary program provided by employers to go towards reimbursement for employees who participate in a physical fitness program approved by the Human Resources Director, or designee.

Entry Level. This is normally a trainee level. Employees perform the more routine, less complex job assignments, while learning the more complex operations, policies, assignments, policies, and programs related to their work area. Initial job assignments require only limited previous work experience and background.

Equal Employment Opportunity. A doctrine requiring that applicants and employees not be discriminated against in employment on the basis of certain non-job-related criteria, specifically race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability.

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). This Commission was created by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 to act as an enforcement agency of that Act. The Commission has two main purposes: (1) to end discrimination based on race, color, religion, age, sex, or national origin in hiring, promotion, firing, wages, testing, training, apprenticeships, and all other conditions of employment; and (2) to promote voluntary action programs by employers, unions, and community organizations to promote equal employment opportunities.

Exempt. An employee classification designated by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). An employee's status as exempt or non-exempt establishes whether that employee is subject to overtime under the FLSA. Executives, administrative employees, professional employees, and employees engaged in outside sales are classified as exempt from overtime pay requirements.

<u>Exit Interview</u>. A structured interview at the time of termination to inform employees of rights and benefits, and to gather information about organizational climate, culture, and problems.

Family Definitions: Extended Family. Employee's parent, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, brother, stepbrother, sister, stepsister, child, grandchild, uncle,

aunt, nephew, niece, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, spouse/registered domestic partner or child of domestic partner.

<u>Immediate Family.</u> The employee's parent, child, spouse/ registered domestic partner and child of domestic partner.

Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). A federal law, enacted in 1938 and subsequently amended, which governs minimum wage, overtime pay, equal pay for men and women in the same type of jobs and child labor. The law also has extensive record-keeping requirements.

<u>Family and Medical Leave Act of 1990</u>. Requires employers with 50 employees in a 75 mile-radius to offer those employees up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave to care for a newborn or adopted child, or a seriously ill child, spouse, or parent, or the employee's own serious illness.

Flex Schedule. A scheduling plan that permits employees to choose their own working hours by scheduling around certain core hours in the middle of the day.

<u>Grievant</u>. A specific, named employee or employees covered by this Agreement and shall not include the Union or a class or group of employees not identified by name along with specific grievances.

Harassment. Sexual conduct where submission to, or rejection of, such conduct affects terms or conditions of employment; that substantially interferes with an employee's ability to perform the job; or that creates a hostile work environment as described in County Policy.

<u>Incumbent</u>. A person currently occupying a particular position.

Independent Contractor. A person hired to perform certain duties for a specified price and term. Generally, the person sets the hours of work, determines the methods of implementing the task, supplies his or her own "tools", and offers his or her services to other entities. The employer may not retain the right to direct how the independent contractor performs his/her duties.

<u>Job Description</u>. A summary of the most important features of a job, including the general nature of the work performed, specific task responsibilities, reporting relationships, and working conditions.

<u>Licensed Health Care Practitioner</u>. (A) A physician, surgeon, physician's assistant, nurse practitioner,

osteopathic practitioner, chiropractic practitioner, physical therapist, podiatrist, optometrist, dentist, or psychologist licensed by the State of California and acting within the scope of his/her practice as defined by California state law; or (B) any other health care practitioner mutually agreed upon in writing by the County and the employee; provided, however, that either the County or the employee may terminate such Agreement by giving seven (7) days written notice to the other party.

<u>Life Partner</u>. For the purposes of this MOU, life partner shall include but not be limited to any person cohabiting with the employee on a sustained basis for at least the previous twelve months while not paying to or receiving rent or other consideration from the employee.

<u>Moral Turpitude</u>. Conduct contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, or good morals.

<u>New Employee Orientation</u>. The guided introduction of new employees to their job, the work environment, and the culture of County government.

Non-Exempt. A term used to describe employees who are subject to the minimum wage and overtime standards of the Fair Labor Standards Act, are paid for hours worked, and who must be paid one-and-one-half times their regular rate of pay for excess hours worked.

<u>Occupational Disease/Illness</u>. Condition or disease arising out of, and in the course of, employment.

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). A federal agency created in 1970 to establish health and safety standards for the workplace and to ensure that all U.S. workers have a safe, healthy work environment. The agency is vested with the power to inspect and issue citations to organizations which violate the safety standards encompassed in OSHA regulations.

Pay. Wages earned by, and payable to an employee or, for the purposes of determining paid status, disability insurance/workers' compensation temporary disability indemnity payments payable to an employee in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or in accordance with state and/or federal law.

Performance Appraisals. A system of review and appraisal of an individual's job performance as described in County policy. This system should influence an employee's job-related behaviors and when used constructively can help improve employee performance.

<u>Permanent</u>. An employee who has successfully completed the requirements of a probationary period for his/her position.

<u>Human Resources Director</u>. Shall include any County officer or employee designated by the Human Resources Director to act on his/her behalf in his/her absence.

Position. A set of tasks, i.e., duties and responsibilities, assigned by the County to be performed by an employee, which has a title, classification, and job description.

Probationary Period. A period of time commencing from the date of hire during which a new employee receives close supervision to perform the job. It is also a time during which the new employee and the employer may appraise the appropriateness of retaining the employee for the position (usually for a period of six months).

<u>Professional Employee</u>. Employees engaged in work requiring specialized knowledge and skills attained through completion of a recognized course of instruction, including, but not limited to: attorneys, physicians, registered nurses, engineers, architects, teachers, and the various type of physical, chemical, and biological scientists.

<u>Progressive Discipline</u>. An approach to imposing disciplinary action in which a lesser penalty may be appropriate for an offense the first time it is committed and more severe penalties are imposed for committing the same or other offense again.

<u>Promotion</u>. A merit-based upward change in the wage of an employee as a result of the appointment of an employee to probationary status in a position within a new classification with a higher designated range of the classification from which such employee was promoted.

Range. One of the numerically designated wage levels established by this Agreement.

Recruitment. The process of attracting, on a timely basis, a sufficient number of qualified candidates to apply for job openings within an organization.

Regular Employee. An employee who is appointed to a regular budgeted position who is serving the initial probationary period.

Rest Period. A period during work time during which an employee is free from any requirement to perform work or to be available to perform work for the County.

Separation. Termination of the employment relationship for any reason. Includes resignation, release, death, retirement, reduction in force, or discharge. Whenever possible, employees shall give a minimum of two (2) weeks notice of the final separation date. No employee shall be allowed to extend their separation date by using vacation, holiday, compensatory time off (CTO), sick leave, or professional leave. No employee shall

be allowed to extend their separation date in order to maintain their health coverage.

<u>Shift Differentials</u>. Extra pay allowances made to employees who work on a shift with hours that may represent a hardship. Shift differentials usually are expressed as a percentage of pay, or in cents per hour.

<u>Sick Leave</u>. Time for which the employee is paid when he or she is not working due to illness or injury.

<u>Standby</u>. A period during which an employee is not ordinarily required to perform work for the County, but is required to be available, upon short notice, to perform work, for which a specified stand-by compensation rate is provided in the event the employee is not called to perform work, with the regular rate of pay for the period or periods the employee is required to work.

<u>Step Advancement</u>. An upward change in the wage of an employee based on time in grade by means of progression to the next step within the range.

<u>Steward</u>. A County employee who is a member of the General Unit elected to represent other Unit employees in their relations with the County.

<u>Supervisor</u>. An FLSA exempt individual with the employer's delegated responsibility and authority to hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, promote, discharge, discipline, or direct other employees – or effectively recommend such action.

<u>Suspension Without Pay.</u> Removal of an employee from his/her assigned position and from paid status, without pay, for a period of time during which the employee would otherwise be required to work, as a result of disciplinary action effected in accordance with the provisions of Section 19 of this Agreement.

<u>Termination</u>. An involuntary separation of the employment relationship for disciplinary reasons.

<u>Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964</u>. A section of the 1964 Civil Rights Act that prohibits employment discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, or national origin.

<u>Union Representative</u>. An employee of the Union and not of the County who represents Unit employees in their relations with the County.

Worker's Compensation Insurance. Medical benefits and pay provided for employees who have had work-related accidents or for dependents of accident victims.

Y-Rate. The freezing of an employee's pay level when, as the result of a transfer or reclassification, an employee would otherwise be placed in a lower classification with a lower pay scale, which freeze shall continue until, through step increase,

promotion, or cost-of-living increase, the pay scale for the classification in which the employee is working exceeds the

level at which the pay was frozen.

APPENDIX B GENERAL UNIT HOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN 2% Increase Effective 10/1/2017

Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 vr	FLSA
1709	4-H Program Coordinator	21.67	22.75	23.89	25.09	26.34	27.00	27.67	28.37	С
2026	Accountant I	24.84	26.08	27.39	28.76	30.19	30.95	31.72	32.51	c
2273	Accountant II	27.31	28.68	30.11	31.61	33.20	34.03	34.88	35.75	c
962	Administrative Asst I	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18.59	c
1102	Administrative Asst II	15.60	16.38	17.20	18.06	18.96	19.44	19.92	20.42	č
1258	Administrative Asst II-Translator	17.16	18.02	18.92	19.86	20.86	21.38	21.91	22.46	С
1258	Administrative Asst, Sr	17.16	18.02	18.92	19.86	20.86	21.38	21.91	22,46	С
1897	Administrative Legal Secretary	23.55	24.73	25.96	27.26	28.63	29.34	30.07	30.83	c
1582	Administrative Secretary	20.40	21,42	22.49	23.62	24.80	25.42	26.05	26.70	С
1708	Administrative Supervisor	21.66	22.74	23.88	25.07	26.33	26.99	27.66	28.35	С
1787	Administrative Technician	22.45	23.57	24.75	25.99	27.29	27.97	28.67	29.39	С
1606	Agriculture & Standards Insp I	20.64	21,67	22,76	23.89	25.09	25.72	26.36	27.02	С
1890	Agriculture & Standards Insp II	23.48	24.65	25.89	27.18	28.54	29.25	29.98	30.73	С
2244	Agriculture & Standards Insp III	27,02	28.37	29.79	31.28	32.84	33.66	34.51	35.37	С
1047	Agriculture Technician	15.05	15.80	16.59	17.42	18.29	18.75	19.22	19.70	С
1198	Agriculture Technician/GIS Asst	16.56	17.39	18.26	19.17	20.13	20.63	21,15	21.68	С
1890	Air Pollution Inspector I	23.48	24.65	25.89	27.18	28.54	29.25	29.98	30.73	С
2245	Air Pollution Inspector II	27.03	28.38	29.80	31.29	32.86	33.68	34.52	35.38	С
962	Airport Assistant	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18.59	С
2924	Airport Manager	33.82	35.51	37,29	39.15	41.11	42.14	43.19	44.27	Ε
1105	Animal Care Technician I	15.63	16.41	17.23	18.09	19.00	19.47	19.96	20.46	С
1385	Animal Care Technician II	18.43	19.35	20.32	21.34	22.40	22.96	23.54	24.12	С
1216	Animal Control Officer I	16.74	17.58	18.46	19.38	20.35	20.86	21.38	21.91	С
1385	Animal Control Officer II	18.43	19.35	20.32	21.34	22.40	22.96	23.54	24.12	С
1662	Animal Control Officer III	21.20	22.26	23.37	24.54	25.77	26.41	27.07	27.75	С
1216	Animal Control Office Coord	16.74	17.58	18.46	19.38	20.35	20.86	21.38	21.91	Ċ
1833	Appraiser I	22.91	24.06	25.26	26.52	27.85	28.54	29.26	29.99	С
2303	Appraiser II	27.61	28.99	30.44	31.96	33.56	34.40	35.26	36.14	С
962	Archives Assistant	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18.59	С
1503	Archivist	19.61	20.59	21.62	22.70	23.84	24.43	25.04	25.67	С
2409	Assistant in Civil Engineering I	28.67	30.10	31.61	33.19	34.85	35.72	36,61	37.53	С
2696	Assistant in Civit Engineering II	31.54	33.12	34.77	36.51	38.34	39.30	40.28	41.28	С
3170	Associate Civil Engineer	36.28	38.09	40.00	42.00	44.10	45.20	46.33	47.49	Ε
1810	Auditor-Appraiser I	22.68	23.81	25.00	26.25	27.57	26.26	28.96	29.69	С
2303	Auditor-Appraiser II	27.61	28,99	30.44	31,96	33.56	34.40	35.26	36.14	С
1540	Behavioral Health Aide	19.98	20.98	22.03	23.13	24.29	24.89	25.52	26.15	С
1743	Behavioral Health Care Counselor I	22.01	23.11	24.27	25.48	26.75	27.42	28.11	28.81	С
1961	Behavioral Health Care Counselor II	24.19	25.40	26.67	28.00	29.40	30.14	30.89	31.66	С
2083	Behavioral Health Care Supv (A/D)	25.41	26.68	28.01	29.42	30.89	31.66	32.45	33.26	E
1907	Bridge & Sign Maint Spec	23,65	24.83	26,07	27.38	28.75	29.47	30.20	30.98	С
2062	Bldg Code Compliance Ofc/CEA	25.20	26.46	27.78	29,17	30.63	31.40	32.18	32.99	C
1926	Building Inspector I	23.84	25.03	26,28	27.60	28.98	29.70	30.44	31.21	С
2167	Building Inspector II	26.25	27.56	28.94	30.39	31.91	32.70	33,52	34.36	С
2429	Building Inspector III	28.87	30.31	31.83	33.42	35.09	35.97	36.87	37.79	С
2659	Building Inspector Supervisor	31.17	32.73	34.36	36.08	37.89	38.83	39.81	40.80	С
1449	Building Maint Worker I	19.07	20.02	21.02	22.08	23.18	23.76	24.35	24.96	С
1638	Building Maint Worker II	20.96	22.01	23.11	24.26	25.48	26.11	26.77	27.44	С
1848	Building Maint Worker III	23.06	24.21	25.42	26.69	28.03	26.73	29.45	30.18	С
2429	Building Plans Checker	28.87	30.31	31.83	33.42	35.09	35.97	36.87	37.79	С
1503	Cadastral Drafting Technician I	19.61	20.59	21.62	22.70	23.84	24.43	25.04	25.67	С
1778	Cadastral Drafting Technician II	22.36	23.48	24,65	25.88	27.18	27.86	28.55	29.27	С
2312	Code Enforcement Officer	27.70	29.09	30.54	32.07	33.67	34.51	35.37	36,26	

				n .		a/ =	4.50	1 45	-00	
Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
	Communications Systems Tech	26.03	27.33	28.70	30.13	31.64	32.43	33.24	34.07	c
	Compliance Officer	27.08	28.43	29.86	31.35	32.92	33.74	34.58	35.45	c
	Compliance Specialist	20.75	21.79	22.88	24.02 25.48	25.22 26.75	25.85 27.42	26.50 28.11	27.16 28.81	C
	Construction Worker	24.19	25.40	24.27 26.67	28.00	29.40	30.14	30.69	31.66	C C
-	Construction Worker, Sr Custodian I	12.95	13.60	14.28	14.99	15.74	16.13	16.54	16.95	č
	Custodian II	14.28	14.99	15.74	16.53	17.36	17.79	18.24	18.69	c
	Dep Ag Com/Sealer of Wgt, Meas	32.00	33.60	35.28	37.04	38.90	39.87	40.87	41.89	c
	Dep Public Cons/Guardian/Admin I	22.70	23.84	25,03	26.28	27.59	28.28	28.99	29.71	č
	Deputy Public Cons/Guardian Admin II	26.10	27.41	28.78	30.21	31.72	32.52	33.33	34.16	č
	Deputy Surveyor/ Deputy Registrar of Voters	31.54	33.12	34.77	36.51	38.34	39.30	40.28	41.28	c
	Elections Supervisor	28.36	29.78	31.27	32.83	34.47	35.33	36.22	37.12	c
	Elections Support Worker	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18.59	c
	Elections Technician	18.62	19.55	20.53	21.55	22.63	23.20	23.78	24.37	c
	Eligibility Supervisor	25.09	26.34	27.66	29.04	30.50	31.26	32.04	32.84	С
	Eligibility Worker I	16.27	17.06	17.94	16.83	19.78	20.27	20.78	21.30	С
	Eligibility Worker II	17.89	18.78	19.72	20.71	21.75	22.29	22.85	23.42	С
	Eligibility Worker II-Translator	19.69	20.67	21.71	22.79	23.93	24.53	25.14	25.77	c
	Eliqibility Worker III	19.72	20.71	21.74	22.63	23.97	24.57	25.18	25.81	С
	Employment & Training Supervisor	27.04	28.39	29.81	31.30	32.87	33.69	34.53	35.39	С
	Employment & Training Worker I	20.10	21.11	22.16	23.27	24.43	25.04	25.67	26.31	С
1752 E	Employment & Training Worker II	22.10	23.21	24.37	25.58	26.86	27.53	28.22	28.93	C
1972	Employment & Training Worker III	24.30	25.52	26.79	28.13	29.54	30.28	31.03	31.81	С
1991	Engineering Technician	24.49	25.71	27.00	28.35	29.77	30.51	31.27	32.06	c
2013 E	Environmental Health Specialist I	24.71	25.95	27.24	28.60	30.04	30.79	31.56	32.34	С
2385 E	Environmental Health Specialist II	28.43	29.85	31.34	32.91	34.56	35.42	36.31	37.21	С
2672 E	Environmental Health Specialist III	31.30	32.87	34.51	36.23	38.05	39.00	39.97	40.97	С
1465 E	Environmental Health Technician I	19.23	20.19	21.20	22.26	23.37	23.96	24.56	25.17	С
	Environmental Health Technician II	21.16	22.22	23,33	24.50	25.72	26.36	27,02	27.70	С
	Executive Assistant	25.91	27.21	28.57	29.99	31.49	32.28	33.09	33.92	С
3155 F	Facilities & Projects Manager	36.13	37.94	39.83	41.82	43.92	45.01	46.14	4729	E
	Facilities & Projects Specialist	23.36	24.53	25.75	27.04	28.39	29.10	29.83	30.58	С
	Finance Asst I	15.57	16.35	17.17	18.02	18.93	19.40	19.88	20.38	С
	Finance Asst II	17.12	17.98	18.87	19.82	20.81	21.33	21.86	22.41	С
	Finance Asst Sr	18.83	19.77	20.76	21.80	22.89	23.46	24.05	24.65	С
	Finance Technician	20.73	21.77	22.85	24.00	25.20	25.83	26.47	27.13	C
	Finance & Admin Supervisor	27.08	28.43	29.86	31.35	32.92	33.74	34.58	35.45	С
	Fiscal Officer	30.05	31.55	33.13	34.79	36.53	37.44	38.38	39,33	С
	General Services Aide	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18.59	C
	Geographic Inform Sys Coor	36.13	37.94	39.83	41.82	43.92	45.01	46,14	47.29	C
	Geographic Inform Sys Tech I	21.49	22.56	23.69	24.88	26.12	26.77	27.44	28.13	C
	Geographic Inform Sys Tech II	23.85	25.04	26.29	27.61	28,99	29.71	30.46	31.22	C
	Heavy Equipment Mechanic	24.35	25.57	26.85	28.19 36.22	29.60	30.34	31.10	31.87	C C
	Information Systems Analyst	31.29 26.03	32.85 27.33	34.50 28.70	36.22	38.03 31.64	38.98 32.43	39.96 33.24	40.96 34.07	c
	Information Systems Specialist	21.29	22.35	23.47	24.65	25.88	26.53	27.19	27.87	č
	Information Systems Tech II	23.67	24.85	26.10	27.40	28.77	29.49	30.23	30.98	c
	Information Systems Tech II	24.24	25,45	26.72	28.06	29.46	30.20	30.23	31.73	c
	Learning Center Coordinator Legal Assistant	25,92	27.22	28.58	30.01	31.51	32.29	33.10	33.93	c
	Legal Office Supervisor	27.08	28.43	29.86	31.35	32.92	33.74	34.58	35.45	č
	Legal Secretary I	19.48	20.45	21.48	22.55	23.68	24.27	24.88	25.50	c
	Legal Secretary II	21.41	22.48	23.60	24.78	26.02	26.67	27.34	28.02	c
	egal Secretary, Sr	23.55	24.73	25.96	27.26	28.63	29.34	39.07	30.83	c
	Library Assistant	15.92	16.72	17.55	18.43	19.35	19.83	20.33	20,84	c
	ibrary Literacy Program Assistant	15.92	16.72	17.55	18.43	19.35	19.83	20.33	20.84	c
	ibrary Literacy Program Coord	18.32	19.24	20.20	21.21	22.27	22.82	23.40	23,98	č
1W/7 L		17.51	18.39	19.30	20.27	21.28	21.82	22.36	22.92	Č
1293 lii										
	Jibrary Technician Mail Clerk	14.20	14.91	15.66	16.44	17.26	17.69	18.13	18,59	С

		,	,	,						
Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
2459	Mental Health Intern	29.17	30.63	32.16	33.77	35.46	36.34	37.25	38.18	C
1198	Mosquito & Vector Control Tech	16.56	17.39	18.26	19.17	20.13	20.63	21.15	21.68	C_
962 1503	Museum Asst	14.20	14.91 20.59	15.66 21.62	16.44 22.70	17.26 23.84	17.69 24.43	18.13 25.04	18.59 25.67	C C
2751	Museum Curator Occupational Therapist	32.09	33.69	35.38	37.15	39.01	39.98	40.98	42.00	c
1774	Outreach Specialist	22.32	23.44	24.61	25.84	27,13	27.81	28,50	29.22	-
1571	Outreach Technician	20.29	21.30	22.37	23.49	24.66	25.28	25.91	26.56	С
1638	Personal Services Coordinator	20.25	22.01	23.11	24.26	25.48	26.11	26.77	27.44	c
3230	Physical Therapist	36.88	38.72	40.66	42.69	44.83	45.95	47.10	48.27	c
1974	Planner I	24.32	25.54	26.81	28.15	29.56	30.30	31.06	31.83	c
2245	Planner II	27.03	28.38	29.80	31.29	32.86	33.68	34.52	35.38	c
2544	Planner III	30.02	31.52	33.10	34.75	36.49	37.40	38.34	39.30	c
1464	Planning Technician I	19.22	20.18	21.19	22.25	23.36	23.95	24.54	25.16	С
1655	Planning Technician II	21.13	22.19	23.30	24.46	25.68	26.33	26.98	27.66	c
1757	Power Equip Mechanic I	22.15	23.26	24.42	25.64	26.92	27.60	28,29	28.99	С
2097	Power Equip Mechanic II	25.55	26.83	28.17	29.58	31.06	31.83	32.63	33.44	С
2351	Power Equip Mechanic II-Fabrication	28.09	29.49	30.97	32.52	34.14	35.00	35.87	36.77	С
2224	Power Equip Mechanic III	26.82	28.16	29.57	31.05	32.60	33.41	34.25	35.11	С
1764	Printer	22.22	23.33	24,50	25.72	27.01	27.68	28.38	29.09	С
829	Print Shop Assistant I	12.87	13.51	14.19	14.90	15.64	16.03	16.44	16.85	С
1081	Print Shop Assistant II	15.39	16.16	16.97	17.82	18.71	19.17	19.65	20.15	С
2824	Public Conservator/Guardian/Administrator	32.82	34.46	36.18	37.99	39.89	40.89	41.91	42.96	Ε
1918	Public Works Inspector	23.76	24.95	26,20	27.51	28.88	29,60	30.34	31.10	С
2153	Public Works Lead Inspector	26.11	27.42	28.79	30.23	31.74	32.53	33.34	34.18	С
1907	Public Works Maint Lead Worker	23.65	24.83	26.07	27.38	28.75	29.47	30,20	30.96	С
2261	Public Works Maint Supv	27.19	28.55	29.98	31.48	33.05	33.88	34.72	35.59	С
1317	Public Works Maint Worker I	17.75	18.64	19.57	20.55	21.58	22.11	22.67	23.23	С
1497	Public Works Maint Worker II	19.55	20.53	21.55	22.63	23.76	24.36	24.97	25.59	С
1691	Public Works Maint Worker Iti	21.49	22.56	23.69	24.88	26.12	26.77	27.44	28.13	<u>C</u>
2696	Public Works Project Engineer	31.54	33.12	34.77	36.51	38.34	39.30	40.28	41.28	c
3012	Public Works Sr Project Engineer	34.70	36.44	38.26	40.17	42.18	43.23	44.31	45.42	С
2854	Public Works Surveyor	33.12	34.78	36.51	38.34	40.26	41.26	42.30	43.35	С
1425	Purchasing Assistant	18.83	19.77	20.76	21.80	22.89	23.46	24.05	24.65	C
1163 1324	Recorder Clerk I	16.21 17.82	17.02 18.71	17.87	18.77 20.63	19.70	20.20 22.20	20.70 22.76	21.22 23.33	C C
1503	Recorder Clerk, Sr	19.61	20.59	19.65 21.62	22.70	21.66 23.84	24.43	25.04	25.67	c
2250	Recorder Clerk Supervisor	27.08	28.43	29.86	31.35	32.92	33.74	34.58	35.45	c
1395	Secretary	18.53	19.46	20.43	21.45	22.52	23.09	23.66	24.26	c
3533	Senior Civil Engineer	39.91	41.91	44.00	46.20	48.51	49.72	50.97	52.24	C
2153	Senior Building Maintenance Worker	26.11	27.42	28.79	30.23	31.74	32.53	33.34	34.18	c
2245	Senior Engineering Technician	27.03	28.38	29.80	31.29	32.86	33.68	34.52	35.38	C
1280	Sheriit's Services Asst	17.38	18.25	19,16	20.12	21.13	21.65	22.19	22,75	c
1520	Sheriff's Services Technician	19.78	20.77	21.81	22.90	24.04	24.64	25.26	25.89	С
1257	Social Services Aide	17.15	18.01	18.91	19.65	20.85	21.37	21.90	22.45	C
3337	Social Services Program Manager I	37.95	39.85	41.84	43.93	46.13	47.28	48.46	49.68	E
1752	Social Worker I	22.10	23.21	24.37	25.58	26.86	27.53	28.22	28.93	c
1977	Social Worker II	24.35	25.57	26.85	28.19	29.60	30.34	31.10	31.87	С
2214	Social Worker III	26.72	28.06	29.46	30.93	32.48	33.29	34.12	34.98	С
2373	Social Worker Supervisor I	28.31	29.73	31.21	32.77	34.41	35.27	36.15	37.06	С
3242	Solid Waste Program Manager	37.00	38.85	40.79	42.83	44.97	46.10	47.25	48.43	E
1617	Solid Waste Program Specialist	20.75	21.79	22.88	24.02	25.22	25.85	26.50	27.16	С
2202	Solid Waste Technician	26.60	27.93	29.33	30.79	32.33	33.14	33.97	34.82	
1999	Staff Service Analyst I	24,57	25.80	27.09	28.44	29,86	30.61	31.38	32.16	С
2246	Staff Service Analyst II	27.04	28.39	29,81	31.30	32.87	33.69	34.53	35.39	C
2127	Systems Support Analyst	25.85	27,14	28.50	29.92	31.42	32.21	33.01	33.84	С
1070	Transportation Officer	15.28	16.04	16.85	17.69	18.57	19.04	19.51	20.00	C
1775	Treasury Technician	22.33	23,45	24.62	25.85	27.14	27.82	28.52	29.23	С
1465	Victim/Witness Advocate	19.23	20.19	21.20	22.26	23.37	23.96	24.56	25.17	C
2548	Victim/Witness Program Manager	30.06	31,56	33.14	34.60	36.54	37.45	38.39	39.35	E
2829	Web Programmer/Developer	32.87	34.51	36,24	38.05	39,95	40.95	41.98	43.03	С

APPENDIX B PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES HOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN

2% Increase Effective 10/1/2017

Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
2459	Behavioral Health Care Nurse I	29.17	30.63	32.16	33.77	35.46	36.34	37.25	38.18	17
2751	Behavioral Health Care Nurse II	32.09	33.69	35.38	37.15	39.01	39,98	40.98	42.00	**
3071	Behavioral Health Care Nurse III	35.29	37.05	38.91	40.85	42.90	43.97	45.07	46.19	62
3337	BHC Prog Mgr (Community Services)	37.95	39.85	41.84	43.93	46.13	47.28	48.46	49.68	Ε
3433	BHC Prog Mgr (Clinical Services)	38.91	40.86	42.90	45.04	47.30	48.48	49.69	50.93	E
2459	Behavioral Health Care Clinician I	29.17	30.63	32.16	33.77	35.46	36.34	37.25	38.18	**
2751	Behavioral Health Care Clinician II	32.09	33.69	35.38	37.15	39.01	39.98	40.98	42.00	A-E
3073	Behavioral Health Care Clinician III	35.31	37.08	38.93	40.88	42.92	43.99	45.09	46.22	4*
2459	Crisis Services Coordinator	29.17	30.63	32.16	33.77	35.46	36.34	37.25	38.18	С
2319	Crisis Services Counselor	27.77	29.16	30.62	32.15	33.75	34.60	35.46	36.35	С
2548	Health Educator I	30.06	31.56	33.14	34.80	36.54	37.45	38.39	39.35	E
2699	Health Educator II	31.57	33.15	34.81	36.55	38.37	39.33	40.32	41.32	E
2143	Behavioral Health Rehabilitation Specialist	26.01	27.31	28.68	30.11	31.62	32.41	33.22	34.05	E
2548	MHSA Programs Coordinator	30.06	31.56	33.14	34.80	36.54	37.45	38.39	39.35	**
3231	Nurse Practitioner	36.89	38.73	40.67	42.70	44.84	45.96	47,11	48.29	Ε
2751	Public Health Nurse I*	32.09	33.69	35.38	37.15	39.01	39.98	40.98	42.00	Ε
3072	Public Health Nurse II*	35,30	37.07	38.92	40.86	42.91	43.98	45.08	46.21	E
3600	Public Health Nurse Supv*	40.58	42.61	44.74	46.98	49.33	50.56	51.82	53.12	E
2459	Registered Nurse (Health)	29.17	30.63	32.16	33.77	35.46	36.34	37.25	38.18	E
2751	Utilization & Quality Management Coordinator	32.09	33.69	35.38	37.15	39.01	39.98	40.98	42.00	\$\tau

<u>Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).</u> The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, equal pay, record-keeping, and child labor standards for employees who are covered by the act and are not exempt from specific provisions.

Under FLSA column

Officer FLSA column

C = Covered employees who are entitled to overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) for hours worked pursuant to the FLSA.

E = Exempt employees who are not covered by the FLSA and are not entitled to overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) for hours worked pursuant to the FLSA.

*= Includes special 10% pay adjustment

** = Exempt employees not covered by FLSA, but shall receive overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) pursuant to Section 23.17 and 23.18

APPENDIX B GENERAL UNIT GRANDFATHER EMPLOYEES CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES

2% Increase Effective 10/1/2017

Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
1531	GF-Administrative Asst II-Translator	19.89	20.88	21.93	23.03	24.18	24.78	25.40	26.04	С
1657	GF-Environmental Health Technician	21.15	22.21	23.32	24.48	25.71	26.35	27.01	27.68	С

Updated 01/04/2018

APPENDIX B GENERAL UNIT

HOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN

1% Increase Effective 10/1/2018

1731 44 Program Coordinator 2189 2298 2413 2534 2561 2727 2795 2568 C	Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 уг	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
2011 Accountant		T			ř.	T	i .			,	r
2201 Accountant 27.59 29.97 30.42 31.94 33.54 34.27 35.23 36.11 C			 								
976 Administrative Asst 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.80 17.43 17.77 18.31 18.77 C										1	
1177 Administrative Asst II		·									
1275 Administrative Asst, Sr Franslator 17.33 18.20 19.11 20.06 21.06 21.09 22.13 22.88 C 1275 Administrative Asst, Sr 17.33 18.20 19.11 20.06 21.06 21.08 21.09 22.13 22.88 C 1275 Administrative Legal Sceretary 22.06 22.07 24.15 22.07 24.15 22.07 24.17 22.07 22.07 22.07 22.07 22.07 22.07					 				·		
1775 Administrative Legal Secretary 2376 24.97 26.22 27.53 28.90 29.63 30.37 31.33 C.			 		 						
1920 Administrative Legal Secretary 23.76 24.97 26.22 27.53 28.90 29.63 30.97 31.13 C											
1602 Administrative Supervisor 21.88 22.97 24.12 25.33 26.60 27.28 27.94 28.64 C 1730 Administrative Supervisor 21.88 22.97 24.12 25.33 26.60 27.28 27.94 28.64 C 1627 Administrative Technician 22.67 23.80 24.99 26.24 27.56 28.24 29.95 29.97 C 1627 Agriculture & Standards Insp 20.85 21.89 22.99 24.14 25.34 25.99 28.63 27.29 C 27.94 28.64 C 27.94 28.65 27.94 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.46 28.84 29.55 27.94 28.64 27.94			1								
1730 Administrative Supervisor 21.88 22.97 24.12 25.33 26.60 27.26 27.94 28.64 C 1809 Administrative Technician 22.67 23.80 24.99 26.24 27.56 28.24 28.95 29.67 C C C C C C C C C			 								
Record Administrative Technician 22.67 23.80 24.90 26.24 27.56 28.24 28.95 29.67 C 1627 Agriculture & Standards Insp II 27.29 28.65 28.06 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.11 Agriculture & Standards Insp III 27.29 28.65 30.09 31.59 33.17 34.00 34.85 35.72 C 1062 Agriculture Technician 15.20 15.96 16.76 17.60 18.48 18.94 21.36 21.90 C 12.15 Agriculture Technician/ISI Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 12.15 Agriculture Technician/ISI Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 22.77 Alr Pollution Inspector I 23.72 24.91 26.15 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.74 Alr Pollution Inspector I 27.30 28.67 30.10 31.60 33.18 34.10 34.86 35.73 C 27.75 Alrport Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 29.56 Alrport Manager 34.16 35.87 37.66 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E 22.15 22.15 22.25 23.19 23.77 24.36 C 23.34											
1627 Agriculture & Standards Insp II 20.85 21.89 22.99 24.14 25.34 25.98 26.63 27.29 C 1914 Agriculture & Standards Insp III 27.29 28.65 30.09 31.65 C 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.14 27.29 28.65 30.09 31.69 31.07 34.00 34.85 35.72 C 1062 Agriculture & Standards Insp III 27.29 28.65 30.09 31.69 33.17 34.00 34.85 35.72 C 1062 Agriculture & Technician 15.20 15.96 16.76 17.60 18.48 18.94 19.41 19.90 C 1215 Agriculture Technician/GIS Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 1214 Alf Pollution Inspector I 23.72 24.91 26.15 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.27 Alf Pollution Inspector I 27.30 28.67 30.10 31.60 33.18 34.01 34.86 35.73 C 27.20 Alf Pollution Inspector I 27.30 28.67 30.10 31.60 33.18 34.01 34.86 35.73 C 29.58 Alfrond Manager 34.16 35.87 37.66 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E 1121 Animal Care Technician I 15.79 16.58 17.41 18.28 19.19 19.67 20.16 20.67 C 20.67 20.47		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									
1914 Agriculture & Standards Insp II			 								
2271 Agriculture & Standards Insp III 27.29 28.65 30.09 31.59 33.17 34.00 34.85 35.72 C	1										
1520 15.96 16.76 17.60 18.46 18.94 19.41 19.90 C 12.15 Agriculture Technician/GIS Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 12.15 Agriculture Technician/GIS Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 12.14 Airpolluton inspector 23.72 24.91 26.15 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C 27.22 Air Pollution inspector 27.30 28.67 30.10 31.60 33.16 34.01 34.86 35.73 C 976 Airport Manager 34.16 35.87 37.66 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E 25.59 Airport Manager 34.16 35.87 37.66 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E 11.21 Animal Care Technician 15.79 16.58 17.41 18.28 19.19 19.67 20.16 20.67 C 14.03 Animal Care Technician 18.61 19.54 20.52 21.54 22.62 23.19 23.77 24.36 C 12.33 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 14.04 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 23.78 24.37 C 14.04 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 23.76 23.78 24.37 C 12.33 Animal Control Officer 1 21.41 22.48 23.60 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 12.33 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 18.56 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 26.13 26.83 29.55 30.29 C 23.30 Appriser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 26.13 26.83 29.55 30.29 C 23.30 Appriser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 26.13 26.83 29.55 30.29 C 23.30 Appriser 23.44 24.30 23.54 23.35 23.20 23.35 23.30	-							-			
1215 Agriculture Technician/GIS Asst 16.73 17.57 18.44 19.37 20.34 20.84 21.36 21.90 C 1914 Air Pollution Inspector 23.72 24.91 20.15 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.90 C 2272 Air Pollution Inspector 27.30 28.67 30.10 31.60 31.8 34.01 34.86 55.73 C 375 Airport Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 15.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 2588 Airport Manager 34.16 35.87 37.68 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E 1121 Animal Care Technician 15.79 16.58 17.41 18.28 19.19 19.67 20.16 20.67 C 1403 Animal Care Technician 18.61 19.54 20.52 21.54 22.62 23.19 23.77 24.36 C 1403 Animal Control Officer 1 16.91 17.76 16.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1404 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1863 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 23.76 23.76 23.78	I										
1914 Air Pollution Inspector 23.72 24.91 26.15 27.46 28.83 29.55 30.29 31.05 C											
2272 Air Pollution inspector											
976 Airport Assistant	1	-			1						
2958 Airport Manager 34.16 35.87 37.66 39.54 41.52 42.56 43.62 44.71 E		*									
1121 Animal Care Technician 15.79 16.58 17.41 18.28 19.19 19.67 20.16 20.67 C 1403 Animal Care Technician 1 18.61 19.54 20.52 21.54 22.62 23.19 23.77 24.36 C 1233 Animal Control Officer 1 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1404 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1883 Animal Control Officer 1 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1883 Animal Control Officer 1 21.41 22.48 23.60 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 23.30 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 22.51 26.79 28.13 28.83 29.55 30.29 C 2330 Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 976 Archives Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 1523 Archivist 19.91 20.90 21.48 22.93 24.09 24.69 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 24.38 Assistant in Civil Engineering 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 32.06 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 24.24 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1322 Auditor-Appraiser 29.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.94 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 23.30 Auditor-Appraiser 29.30 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.94 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 29.86 Behavioral Health Care Counselor 22.23 23.34 24.5 25.77 26.31 31.99 C 20.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 30.89 31.71 35.50 33.11 C 20.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 30.99 30.75 31.98 32.78 33.60 E 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.89 20.8											-
1403 Animal Care Technician 18.61 19.54 20.52 21.54 22.62 23.19 23.77 24.36 C 1233 Animal Control Officer 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1404 Animal Control Officer 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1408 Animal Control Officer 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1408 Animal Control Officer 12.41 22.48 23.00 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1456 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 28.13 28.83 29.55 30.29 C 2330 Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 976 Archives Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 1523 Archives Assistant in Civil Engineering 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.99 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1332 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.99 C 2330 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.55 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.99 C 2308 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.55 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.99 C 2309 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.55 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.99 C 2309 30.041 30.04											
1233 Animal Control Officer 1 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1404 Animal Control Officer 18.62 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.76 24.37 C 24.68 Animal Control Officer 21.41 22.48 23.60 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 27.04 28.02 27.04 27.04 28.02 27.04 27.02	1										
1404 Animal Control Officer 1862 19.55 20.53 21.55 22.63 23.20 23.78 24.37 C 1863 Animal Control Officer 21.41 22.48 23.60 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1856 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 28.13 28.83 29.55 30.29 C 2330 Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 976 Archives Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 1523 Archives Assistant 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 2438 Assistant in Civil Engineering 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 22.55 26.51 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 1560 Behavioral Health Aide 20.18 21.19 22.25 23.36 24.53 25.14 25.77 26.41 C 1765 Behavioral Health Care Counselor 22.33 23.34 24.51 25.73 27.02 27.70 28.39 29.10 C 1986 Behavioral Health Care Supy (AD) 25.67 26.95 28.39 29.75 30.50 31.26 C 20.77 Bidgo Code Compliance Of/CEA 25.45 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 30.43 30.45 31.21 31.99 C 20.79 Bidgo Gode Compliance Of/CEA 25.45 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.70 30.45 31.21 31.99 C 20.79 Bidgo Gode Compliance Of/CEA 25.45 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 30.50 31.26 C 29.98 Bidding Inspector 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 33.31 C 24.88 Bidding Inspector 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 30.33 C 24.68 Bidding Inspector 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 3											· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1683 Animal Control Officer III 21.41 22.48 23.60 24.78 26.02 26.67 27.34 28.02 C 1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1856 Appraiser I 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 26.71 21.59 22.13 C 23.30 Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 27.60 Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 27.60 Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 27.60 Appraiser II 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 25.30 25.93 C 24.38 Assistant in Civil Engineering I 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 27.28 Assistant in Civil Engineering II 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.64 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser I 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 23.30 Auditor-Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 27.80 E 27.80)									_	
1233 Animal Control Office Coord 16.91 17.76 18.64 19.58 20.55 21.07 21.59 22.13 C 1856 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 28.13 28.83 29.55 30.29 C 2330 Appraiser 1 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 37.64 37.64 37.67 37.65 36.49 C 37.64 37.65 37.64 37.65	1										
1856 Appraiser 23.14 24.30 25.51 26.79 28.13 28.83 29.55 30.29 C 2330 Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 976 Archives Assistant 14.34 15.06 15.81 16.60 17.43 17.87 18.31 18.77 C 1523 Archivist 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 2488 Assistant in Civil Engineering 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.64 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 25.33 29.24 29.98 C 2330 Auditor-Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 27.86 28.30 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 27.84 29.94											——
27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C											
976	1										
1523 Archivist 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 2438 Assistant in Civil Engineering I 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering II 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 47	0	1									
2438 Assistant in Civil Engineering I 28.96 30.41 31.93 33.52 35.20 36.08 36.98 37.91 C 2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering II 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser II 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 2330 Auditor-Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 25.60 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 1560 Behavioral Health Aide 20.18 21.19 22.25 23.36 24.53 25.14 25.77 26.41 C 1986 Behavioral Health Care Soups (ArD) 25.67 26.95 28.90 29.71 30.45 31.21				***************************************							-
2728 Assistant in Civil Engineering II 31.86 33.45 35.13 36.88 38.73 39.69 40.69 41.70 C 3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser I 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 2330 Auditor-Appraiser II 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 1560 Behavioral Health Aide 20.18 21.19 22.25 23.36 24.53 25.14 25.77 26.41 C 1765 Behavioral Health Care Counselor I 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 27.02 27.70 28.39 29.10 C 1986 Behavioral Health Care Counselor II 24.44 25.66 26.95 28.29 29.71 30.45 31.21 31.99 C 2109 Behavioral Health Care Supv (A/D) 25.67 26.95 28.30 29.72 31.20 31.98 32.78 33.60 E 1931 Bridge & Sign Maint Spec 23.88 25.07 26.33 27.64 29.03 29.75 30.50 31.26 C 2087 Bldg Code Compliance Ofc/CEA 25.45 26.72 28.06 29.46 30.93 31.71 32.50 33.31 C 24.58 Building Inspector II 26.51 27.84 29.23 30.69 32.22 33.03 33.85 34.70 C 24.58 Building Inspector II 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 24.68 Building Maint Worker II 29.22 23.33 23.45 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.73 27.71 C 24.58 Building Maint Worker II 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 24.58 Building Maint Worker II 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 24.58 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 36.17 C 24.58 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 36.17 C 24.58 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 36.17 C 24.58 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 36.17 C 24.58 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44	I										
3206 Associate Civil Engineer 36.64 38.47 40.40 42.42 44.54 45.65 46.79 47.96 E 1832 Auditor-Appraiser 22.90 24.05 25.25 26.51 27.84 28.53 29.24 29.98 C 2330 Auditor-Appraiser 27.88 29.27 30.74 32.27 33.89 34.74 35.60 36.49 C 1560 Behavioral Health Aide 20.18 21.19 22.25 23.36 24.53 25.14 25.77 26.41 C 1765 Behavioral Health Care Counselor 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 27.02 27.70 28.39 29.10 C 1986 Behavioral Health Care Counselor 24.44 25.66 26.95 28.29 29.71 30.45 31.21 31.99 C 2109 Behavioral Health Care Supv (A/D) 25.67 26.95 28.30 29.72 31.20 31.98 32.78 33.60 E 1931 Bridge & Sign Maint Spec 23.88 25.07 26.33 27.64 29.03 29.75 30.50 31.26 C 2087 Bidg Code Compliance Ofc/CEA 25.45 26.72 28.05 29.46 30.93 31.71 32.50 33.31 C 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 31.52 C 24.08 25.28 26.51 27.84 29.23 30.03 33.85 34.70 C 24.58 Building Inspector 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 26.90 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker 19.26 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1871 Building Maint Worker 19.26 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 36.17 C 1871 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1871 Building Maint Worker 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1871 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24	l										
Raditor-Appraiser 22.90											
2330 Auditor-Appraiser	1					~~~~~~					
1560 Behavioral Health Aide 20.18 21.19 22.25 23.36 24.53 25.14 25.77 26.41 C							~~~~~~~				
1765 Behavioral Health Care Counselor 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 27.02 27.70 28.39 29.10 C											
1986 Behavioral Health Care Counseior 1	()			~							
2109 Behavioral Health Care Supv (A/D) 25.67 26.95 28.30 29.72 31.20 31.98 32.78 33.60 E 1931 Bridge & Sign Maint Spec 23.88 25.07 26.33 27.64 29.03 29.75 30.50 31.26 C 2087 Bldg Code Compliance Ofc/CEA 25.45 26.72 28.06 29.46 30.93 31.71 32.50 33.31 C 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 31.52 C 2193 Building Inspector 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 31.52 C 2193 Building Inspector 26.51 27.84 29.23 30.69 32.22 33.03 33.85 34.70 C 2458 Building Inspector III 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2690 Building Inspector Supervisor 31.48 33.05 34.71 36.44 38.26 39.22 40.20 41.21 C 2468 Building Maint Worker 24.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 2458 Building Maint Worker II 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.18 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 25.93 C 25.93 25.93 C 25.94 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C 26.95 28.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C 26.95	1				~~~~~						
1931 Bridge & Sign Maint Spec 23.88 25.07 26.33 27.64 29.03 29.75 30.50 31.26 C	l										
2087 Bldg Code Compliance Ofc/CEA 25.45 26.72 28.06 29.46 30.93 31.71 32.50 33.31 C							~				
1950 Building Inspector 24.08 25.28 26.55 27.88 29.27 30.00 30.75 31.52 C	1										
2193 Building Inspector III 26.51 27.84 29.23 30.69 32.22 33.03 33.85 34.70 C 2458 Building Inspector III 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2690 Building Inspector Supervisor 31.48 33.05 34.71 36.44 38.26 39.22 40.20 41.21 C 1468 Building Maint Worker I 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker III 21.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 <td< td=""><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	1										
2458 Building Inspector III 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 2690 Building Inspector Supervisor 31.48 33.05 34.71 36.44 38.26 39.22 40.20 41.21 C 1468 Building Maint Worker I 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker II 21.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800	1										
Z690 Building Inspector Supervisor 31.48 33.05 34.71 36.44 38.26 39.22 40.20 41.21 C 1468 Building Maint Worker I 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker II 21.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C											
1468 Building Maint Worker I 19.26 20.22 21.23 22.30 23.41 24.00 24.60 25.21 C 1659 Building Maint Worker II 21.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C	1										
1659 Building Maint Worker II 21.17 22.23 23.34 24.51 25.73 26.38 27.03 27.71 C 1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C 2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C											
1871 Building Maint Worker III 23.29 24.45 25.68 26.96 28.31 29.02 29.74 30.49 C											
2458 Building Plans Checker 29.16 30.62 32.15 33.76 35.44 36.33 37.24 38.17 C 1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C											
1523 Cadastral Drafting Technician I 19.81 20.80 21.84 22.93 24.08 24.68 25.30 25.93 C 1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C											
1800 Cadastral Drafting Technician II 22.58 23.71 24.89 26.14 27.45 28.13 28.84 29.56 C		<u></u>									
	1										

Banna	Classification	Stor *	Stor 5	Stan C	Sten P	Ston E	40 100	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr 32.75	33.57		C C
2171	Communications Systems Tech	26.29 27.35	27.60 28.72	28.98 30.15	30.43 31.66	31.96 33.24	34.08	34.93	34.41 35.80	C
2277	Compliance Officer							26.77	27,44	C
1638	Compliance Specialist	20.98	22.01	23.11	24.26	25.48	26.11 27.70	28.39	29.10	c
1765	Construction Worker	22.23	23.34 25.66	24.51 26.95	25.73 28.29	27.02	30.45	31.21	31.99	c
1986	Construction Worker, Sr	24.44						16.70	17.12	C
850	Custodian 1	13.08 14.42	13.73 15.14	14.42 15.90	15.14 16.69	15.90 17.53	16.30 17.97	18.41	18.68	C
984	Custodian II	32.32	33.94	35.63	37.41	39.29	40.27	41.27	42.31	c
2774 1835	Dep Ag Com/Sealer of Wgt, Meas	22.93	24.08	25.28	26.54	27.87	28.57	29.28	30.01	C
2178	Dep Public Cons/Guardian/Admin I Deputy Public Cons/Guardian Admin II	26.36	27.68	29.06	30.51	32.04	32.84	33.66	34.50) C
2728	Deputy Surveyor/ Deputy Registrar of Voters	31.86	33.45	35.13	36.88	38.73	39.69	40.69	41.70	c
2406	Elections Supervisor	28.64	30.07	31.58	33,15	34.81	35.68	36.57	37.49	c
976	Elections Support Worker	14.34	15.06	15.81	16.60	17.43	17.87	18.31	18.77	C
	Elections Technician	18.81	19.75	20.74	21.77	22.86	23.44	24.02	24.62	c
	Eligibility Supervisor	25.35	26.62	27.95	29.35	30.81	31.58	32.37	33.18	c
	Eligibility Worker I	16.44	17.26	18.13	19.03	19.98	20.48	20.99	21.52	C
	Eligibility Worker II	18.07	18.97	19.92	20.92	21.96	22.51	23.08	23.65	С
1531	Eligibility Worker II-Translator	19.89	20.88	21.93	23.03	24.18	24.78	25.40	26.04	C
1534	Eligibility Worker III	19.92	20.92	21.96	23.06	24.21	24.82	25.44	26.07	C
	Employment & Training Supervisor	27.31	28.68	30.11	31.61	33.20	34.03	34.88	35.75	c
1572	Employment & Training Worker I	20.30	21.32	22.38	23.50	24,67	25.29	25.92	26.57	c
	Employment & Training Worker II	22.32	23.44	24.61	25.84	27.13	27.81	28.50	29.22	С
1997	Employment & Training Worker III	24.55	25.78	27.07	28.42	29.84	30.59	31.35	32.14	С
2016	Engineering Technician	24.74	25.98	27.28	28.64	30.07	30.82	31,59	32.38	С
	Environmental Health Specialist I	24.96	26.21	27.52	28.89	30.34	31.10	31.87	32.67	ε
2413	Environmental Health Specialist II	28.71	30.15	31.65	33.24	34.90	35.77	36.66	37.58	С
2703	Environmental Health Specialist III	31.61	33.19	34.85	36.59	38.42	39.38	40.37	41.38	С
1465	Environmental Health Technician I	19.43	20.40	21.42	22.49	23.62	24.21	24.81	25.43	С
	Environmental Health Technician II	21.37	22.44	23.56	24.74	25.98	26.62	27.29	27.97	С
	Executive Assistant	26.17	27.48	28.85	30.30	31.81	32.61	33.42	34.26	С
3192	Facilities & Projects Manager	36.50	38.33	40.24	42.25	44.37	45.48	46.61	47.78	E
1901	Facilities & Projects Specialist	23.59	24.77	26,01	27.31	28.67	29.39	30.13	30.88	С
1114	Finance Asst I	15.72	16.51	17.33	18.20	19.11	19.59	20.08	20.58	C
1271	Finance Asst II	17.29	18.15	19.06	20.02	21.02	21.54	22.08	22.63	С
1444	Finance Asst Sr	19.02	19.97	20.97	22.02	23.12	23.70	24.29	24.90	С
1635	Finance Technician	20.93	21.98	23.08	24.23	25.44	26.08	26.73	27.40	С
2277	Finance & Admin Supervisor	27.35	28.72	30,15	31.66	33.24	34.08	34.93	35.80	С
2577	Fiscal Officer	30.35	31.87	33.46	35.13	36.89	37.81	38.76	39.73	С
976	General Services Aide	14.34	15.06	15.81	16.60	17.43	17.87	18.31	18.77	C
3192	Geographic Inform Sys Coor	36.50	38.33	40.24	42.25	44.37	45.48	46.61	47.78	C
1712	Geographic Inform Sys Tech I	21.70	22.79	23.92	25.12	26.38	27.04	27.71	28.40	С
1951	Geographic inform Sys Tech II	24.09	25.29	26.56	27.89	29.28	30.01	30.76	31.53	С
2001	Heavy Equipment Mechanic	24.59	25.82	27.11	28.47	29,89	30.64	31.40	32,19	С
2702	Information Systems Analyst	31.60	33.18	34.84	36.58	38.41	39.37	40.35	41.36	С
2171	Information Systems Specialist	26.29	27.60	28.98	30.43	31.96	32.75	33.57	34,41	С
1692	information Systems Tech I	21.50	22.58	23.70	24.89	26.13	26.79	27.46	28.14	С
1933	Information Systems Tech II	23.91	25.11	26.36	27.68	29.06	29.79	30.53	31.30	С
1990	Learning Center Coordinator	24.48	25.70	26.99	28.34	29.76	30.50	31.26	32.04	С
2160	Legal Assistant	26.18	27.49	28.86	30.31	31.82	32.62	33.43	34.27	С
2277	Legal Office Supervisor	27.35	28.72	30.15	31.66	33.24	34.08	34.93	35.80	С
1509	Legal Secretary I	19.67	20.65	21.69	22.77	23.91	24.51	25.12	25.75	C
1705	Legal Secretary II	21.63	22.71	23.85	25.04	26.29	26.95	27.62	28.31	C
1920	Legal Secretary, Sr	23.78	24.97	26.22	27.53	28.90	29.63	30.37	31.13	С
1150	Library Assistant	16.08	16.88	17.73	18.61	19.55	20.03	20.53	21.05	С
1150	Library Literacy Program Assistant	16.08	16.88	17.73	18.61	19.55	20.03	20.53	21.05	C C
1393	Library Literacy Program Coord	18.51	19.44	20.41	21.43	22.50	23.06	23.64	24.23	C
1311	Library Technician	17.69	18.57	19.50	20.48	21.50	22.04	22.59	23.16	С
	Mail Clerk	14.34	15.06	15.81	16.60	17.43	17.87	18.31	18.77	C
1274	Medical/Psychiatric Records Clerk	17.32	18.19	19.10	20.05	21.05	21.58	22.12	22.67	C

Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
2488	Mental Health Intern	29.46	30.93	32.48	34.10	35.81	36.70	37.62	38.56	С
1215	Mosquito & Vector Control Tech	16.73	17.57	18.44	19.37	20.34	20.84	21.36	21.90	С
976	Museum Asst	14.34	15.06	15.81	16.60	17.43	17.87	18.31	18.77	С
1522	Museum Curator	19.80	20.79	21.83	22.92	24.07	24.67	25.29	25.92	С
2763	Occupational Therapist	32.41	34.03	35.73	37.52	39.39	40.38	41.39	42.42	С
1796	Outreach Specialist	22.54	23.67	24.85	26.09	27.40	28.08	28.78	29.50	
1592	Outreach Technician	20.50	21.53	22.60	23.73	24.92	25.54	26.18	26.83	С
1659	Personal Services Coordinator	21.17	22.23	23.34	24.51	25.73	26.38	27.03	27.71	С
3267	Physical Therapist	37.25	39.11	41.07	43.12	45.28	46.41	47.57	48.76	С
1998	Planner I	24.56	25.79	27.08	28.43	29.85	30.60	31.36	32.15	С
2272	Planner II	27.30	28.67	30.10	31.60	33.16	34.01	34.86	35.73	С
2574	Planner III	30.32	31.84	33.43	35.10	36.85	37.78	38.72	39.69	С
1483	Planning Technician I	19.41	20.38	21.40	22.47	23.59	24.18	24.79	25.41	С
1677	Planning Technician II	21.35	22.42	23.54	24.72	25.95	28.60	27.26	27.95	С
	Power Equip Mechanic I	22.37	23.49	24.66	25.90	27.19	27.87	28.57	29.28	С
	Power Equip Mechanic II	25.80	27.09	28.44	29.87	31.36	32.14	32.95	33.77	С
	Power Equip Mechanic II-Fabrication	28.37	29.79	31.28	32.84	34.48	35.35	36.23	37.14	С
2251	Power Equip Mechanic III	27.09	28.44	29.87	31.36	32.93	33.75	34.60	35.46	С
1786	Printer	22.44	23.56	24.74	25.98	27.28	27.96	28.66	29.37	c
842	Print Shop Assistant I	13.00	13.65	14.33	15.05	15.80	16.20	16.60	17.02	č
1097	Print Shop Assistant II	15.55	16.33	17.14	18.00	18.90	19.37	19.86	20.35	C
2857	Public Conservator/Guardian/Administrator	33.15	34.81	36.55	38.38	40.29	41.30	42.33	43.39	E
1941	Public Works Inspector	23.99	25.19	26.45	27.77	29.16	29.89	30.64	31.40	c
2179	Public Works Lead Inspector	26.37	27.69	29.07	30.53	32.05	32.85	33.68	34.52	c
1931	Public Works Maint Lead Worker	23.89	25.08	26.34	27.66	29.04	29.76	30.51	31.27	č
2289	Public Works Maint Supv	27.47	28.84	30.29	31.80	33.39	34.22	35.08	35.96	c
	Public Works Maint Worker I	17.93	18.83	19.77	20.76			22.90	23.47	c
	Public Works Maint Worker II	19.74	20.73	21.76	22.85	21.79 23.99	22.34 24.59	25.21	25.64	c

	Public Works Maint Worker III	21.70	22.79	23.92	25.12	26.38	27.04	27.71	28.40	C C
	Public Works Project Engineer	31.85	33.44	35.11	36.87	38.71	39.68	40.67	41.69	
	Public Works Sr Project Engineer	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.56	42.59	43.66	44.75	45.87	C
	Public Works Surveyor	33.45	35.12	36.88	38.72	40.66	41.68	42.72	43.78	
	Purchasing Assistant	19.02	19.97	20.97	22.02	23.12	23.70	24.29	24.90	<u>c</u>
	Recorder Clerk I	16.37	17.19	18.05	18.95	19.90	20.40	20.91	21.43	_ c
	Recorder Clerk II	17.99	18.89	19.83	20.83	21.87	22.41	22.97	23.55	
	Recorder Clerk, Sr	19.81	20.80	21.84	22.93	24.08	24.68	25.30	25.93	
	Recorder Clerk Supervisor	27.35	28.72	30.15	31.66	33.24	34.08	34.93	35.80	C
	Secretary	18.72	19.66	20.64	21.67	22.75	23.32	23.91	24.50	
3573	Senior Civil Engineer	40.31	42.33	44.44	46.66	49.00	50.22	51.48	52,76	c
	Senior Building Maintenance Worker	26.37	27.69	29.07	30.53	32.05	32.85	33.68	34.52	C
	Senior Engineering Technician	27.30	28.67	30.10	31.60	33,18	34.01	34.86	35.73	
	Sheriff's Services Asst	17.56	18.44	19.36	20.33	21.34	21.88	22.42	22.99	
1540	Sheriff's Services Technician	19.98	20.98	22.03	23.13	24.29	24.89	25.52	26.15	
1274	Social Services Aide	17.32	18.19	19.10	20.05	21.05	21.58	22.12	22.67	_ C
3375	Social Services Program Manager I	38.33	40.25	42.26	44.37	46.59	47.76	48.95	50.17	E
1774	Social Worker!	22.32	23.44	24.61	25.84	27.13	27.81	28.50	29.22	C
2001	Social Worker II	24.59	25.82	27.11	28.47	29.89	30.64	31.40	32.19	C
2241	Social Worker III	26.99	28.34	29.76	31.24	32.81	33.63	34.47	35.33	С
2401	Social Worker Supervisor I	28.59	30.02	31.52	33.10	34.75	35.62	36.51	37.42	C
3279	Solid Waste Program Manager	37.37	39.24	41.20	43.26	45.42	46.56	47.72	48.92	E
1638	Solid Waste Program Specialist	20.96	22.01	23.11	24.26	25.48	26.11	26.77	27.44	С
2228	Solid Waste Technician	26.86	28.20	29.61	31.09	32.65	33,46	34.30	35.16	
2024	Staff Service Analyst I	24.82	26.06	27.36	28.73	30.17	30.92	31.70	32.49	С
2273	Staff Service Analyst II	27.31	28.68	30.11	31.61	33.20	34.03	34.88	35.75	С
2153	Systems Support Analyst	26.11	27.42	28.79	30.23	31.74	32.53	33.34	34.18	С
	Transportation Officer	15.44	16.21	17.02	17.87	18.77	19.24	19.72	20.21	С
	Treasury Technician	22.55	23.68	24.86	26.10	27.41	28.09	28.80	29.52	C
1485	Victim/Witness Advocate	19.43	20.40	21.42	22.49	23.62	24.21	24.81	25.43	С
2578	Victim/Witness Program Manager	30.36	31.88	33.47	35.15	36.90	37.83	38.77	39.74	E
	Web Programmer/Developer	33.20	34.86	36.60	38.43	40.35	41.36	42.40	43.46	c
					~					

APPENDIX B PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES HOURLY CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE PLAN

1% Increase Effective 10/1/2018

Range	Classification	Step A	Step 8	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 yr	FLSA
2488	Behavioral Health Care Nurse I	29.46	30.93	32.48	34.10	35.81	36.70	37.62	38.56	**
2783	Behavioral Health Care Nurse II	32.41	34.03	35.73	37.52	39.39	40.38	41.39	42.42	**
3106	Behavioral Health Care Nurse III	35.64	37.42	39.29	41.26	43.32	44.40	45.51	46.65	A:x
3375	BHC Prog Mgr (Community Services)	38.33	40.25	42.26	44.37	46.59	47.76	48.95	50.17	E
3472	8HC Prog Mgr (Clinical Services)	39.30	41.27	43.33	45.49	47.77	48.96	50.19	51.44	E
2488	Behavioral Health Care Clinician I	29.46	30.93	32.48	34.10	35.81	36.70	37.62	38.56	ŔŔ
2763	Behavioral Health Care Clinician II	32.41	34.03	35.73	37.52	39.39	40.38	41.39	42.42	ħ#:
3108	Behavioral Health Care Clinician III	35.66	37.44	39.32	41.28	43.34	44.43	45.54	46.68	£¢
2489	Crisis Services Coordinator	29.47	30.94	32.49	34.12	35.82	36.72	37.63	38.58	С
2346	Crisis Services Counselor	28.04	29.44	30.91	32.46	34.08	34.93	35.81	36,70	С
2578	Health Educator I	30.36	31.88	33.47	35.15	36.90	37.83	38.77	39.74	E
2730	Health Educator II	31.88	33.47	35.15	36.91	38.75	39.72	40.71	41.73	Е
2169	Behavioral Health Rehabilitation Specialist	26.27	27.58	28.96	30.41	31.93	32.73	33.55	34,39	E
2579	MHSA Programs Coordinator	30.37	31.89	33.48	35.16	36.91	37.84	38.78	39.75	**
3268	Nurse Practitioner	37.26	39.12	41.08	43.13	45.29	46.42	47.58	48.77	E
3107	Public Health Nurse I	35.65	37.43	39.30	41.27	43.33	44.42	45.53	46.66	E
3464	Public Health Nurse II	39.22	41.18	43.24	45,40	47.67	48,86	50.09	51.34	E
4051	Public Health Nurse Supv	45.09	47.34	49.71	52.20	54.81	56.18	57,58	59.02	E
2468	Registered Nurse (Health)	29.46	30.93	32.48	34.10	35.81	36.70	37.62	38.56	E
2783	Utilization & Quality Management Coordinator	32.41	34.03	35.73	37.52	39.39	40.38	41.39	42.42	8.9.

<u>Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)</u>, The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, equal pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for employees who are covered by the act and are not exempt from specific provisions.

Under FLSA column

C = Covered employees who are entitled to overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) for hours worked pursuant to the FLSA.

E = Exempt employees who are not covered by the FLSA and are not entitled to overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) for hours worked pursuant to the FLSA.

** = Exempt employees not covered by FLSA, but shall receive overtime and or compensatory time off (CTO) pursuant to Section 23.17 and 23.18

^{*=} Includes special 10% pay adjustment

APPENDIX B GENERAL UNIT GRANDFATHER EMPLOYEES CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES 1% Increase Effective 10/1/2018

Range	Classification	Step A	Step B	Step C	Step D	Step E	10 yr	15 yr	20 уг	FLSA
1551	GF-Administrative Asst II-Translator	20.09	21.09	22.15	23.26	24.42	25.03	25.66	26.30	С
1678	GF-Environmental Health Technician I	21.36	22.43	23.55	24.73	25.96	26.61	27.28	27.96	С

Updated 01/04/2018

APPENDIX C

Merit System Positions Department of Social Services

Administrative Assistant I/II Administrative Assistant, Senior Administrative Assistant, Translator Administrative Supervisor Eligibility Worker I/II/III Eligibility-II Translator Eligibility Worker Supervisor **Employment Training Supervisor** Employment Training Worker I/II/III Finance Technician Fiscal Officer Systems Support AnalystSocial Service Aide Social Worker I/II/III Senior Finance Assistant Social Worker Supervisor I Accountant I/II Social Services Program Manager Staff Service Analyst Staff Services Analyst III

A copy of the Merit System Regulations may be obtained by contacting the Amador County Human Resources Department.

APPENDIX D

SIDE LETTERS

A

Omreach Technician Differential

Effective October 1, 2016, the Outreach Technician assigned medical assisting in Public Hesi Informations will receive a 5% per memb stipered. The additional minimum qualifications for this assignment will be: "Completion of medical assisting training program within three months of approintment."

Additional duties will include ordering medical sopplies, assisting medical personnel with setups/preparation for appointments, secretaling vitals, administrating prescribed injections under close supervision, assisting with processing of consent forms, resurting that laboratory specimens are properly processed and assisting Public Health medical personnel with Public Health integrans.

87. mas Malls	9/28/16	
\$12(1) ocal (151	Date	
(coto) hade-	7/29/201G	
SEIU Local 1021 0	Unite	
1000	1 /	
Candida Colle	9/29/16	
Amador County	Data	

Side Letter of Agreement

Medical Assistant differential

Lifertive Outober 14, 2015, the Medical Psych atric Records Clork assigned duties as a Medical Assistant in Rehavioral Health functions will receive a 5% stipend. The minimum qualifications for this assignment will be: "Equivalent to graduation from a manife, assisting training program, and two years of related experience, or four years of responsible clarical experience in a medical setting."

Additional duties will include ordering medical supplies, lassisting medical personnel with setups/preparation for appointments, sectioning vitals, casisting with processing of consent forms, lensuring that aborestory specimens are properly processed, and assisting Behavioral health medical personne with behavioral health programs.

SFIU Local 1021

Dat

214/11

Amader County

Date

C Side Letter

Amadox County 9-09-15 response to SEIU Local 1021 counterproposal dated 9-09-15

AB109 Road Crew Lead Worker Stipend

Effective October 15, 2015, any Public Works Maintenance Lead Worker having been assigned Lead Work duties over AB109 participants will receive a 5% scioend. During those periods when AB109 participants are not assigned to the road crews, the stipend will cease effective the first of the following month; a stipend would again be received when a new cohort of AB 109 participants are designated for the road crews.

130 Local 1021

ocal 1021

Afriador Count

Date

D

Side Letter

Utilization and Quality Management	Coordinator differential
Effective May 1_, 2017, an inc	umbent in the class of Utilization and Quality Management
 Coordinator in Behavioral Realth will 	II receive a 5% stipend upon attainment and providing a copy of a
license issued by the California State	: Board of Behavioral Science Examiners (BBSE) as either a Mardage Clinical Social Worker (LCSW); Licensed Professional Clinical
Counselor (LPCC) or the Board of Clin	
Danis Walls	6/6/12
SEIU Løpal 1021	Date
Fy 1 Mora	6/14/17
Amader County	Date

\mathbf{E}

Side Letter of Agreement

SIDBILETTER AGREEMENT

The Service Employees International Union Local 1021 and Amacor County sures to the following procedures regarding use of County-issued electronic devices:

Data from County-issued electronic devices (including tablets, "smart" pagnes, portable computers) will not be used for contine monitoring at amployees. However, data from county-issued electronic devices may be used in the course of pending disciplinary investigations.

SIGIU Local 1021

Dennis Malicry, Lield Representative (Date)

Following Malicry, Lield Representative (Date)

Robert Taylor, President (Date)

Amador County:

Class Stadiff

Chuck Hey, County Administrative Officer (Date)

Judy Dias, Human Resources Director (Date)

\mathbf{F}

Side Letter of Agreement

Bilingua Stipend

Effective May 1, 2016, Department, Heads may designate employees as bilingual service providers. Designated employees shall be paid a bilingual pay differential of 5%.

fillingual pay may be provided for an employee with proficiency in any language (including sign language or Braille) who has passed a proficiency test administered either by the Human Resources Department or State Merit System, and whose position has been determined by the County Department Head to be necessary to provide primary bi ingual services.

Employees shall be designated as billingual service providers if they are using their billingual skills ϵ minimum of twenty percent (20%) or more in the course of the employee's assigned duties. Exceptions to this requirement will be reviewed by the Human Resources Director on a case by case basis and that determination shall be final. Employees receiving the differential may be required by their Department Head to assist other County Departments' staff in providing bilingual services, where necessary. Employees providing bilingual service in the County will be expected to adhere to Departments' rules concerning confidential information, and may be asked to sign a statement acknowledging their understanding of the confidentiality of information.

The County shall adop; a language proficiency testing process to determine employees' qualifications to serve as a bilingual skill provider. The County shall utilize existing bilingual skilled employees to assess employees' bilingual capabilities when possible. For employees in positions designated in the Memorandum of Understanding as Merit System Positions, testing shall be conducted through the State Ment System

Amador County

Date 5/20/16

By: Chack fley, County Administrator

Muly Dea,

Amador County

By: Judy Dias, Director of Human Resources

Side Letter of Agreement

Side Letter of Agreement

YEARDO JICKIAMA

and

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION

LOCAL 1021

Voluntary Furthugh Schedule—Fiscal Year 2015-17

The parties agree that the Voluntary Recurrent Schedule (Furlough) program for oil General Representation Unit employees, except those employed in the Social Survives (HHS) and Behavioral Health Departments, will again cominise for FY 2016-17, as operationally described in the original Side Letter signed on June 23, 2014 (attached).

This side letter of agreement expires September 29, 2017.

COUNTY OF AMABOR

Ohn Plasse

Chairman, Board of Supervisors

Chuck fley, County Administrative Officer

Date: Starte

ELU LOCAL 1020

Date: 百つ25 **え**た コップ

SALT THOMAS MEANS

Date: June 24, 2016

INDEX

A	I	
Administrative Leave	Illness	17
<u>Agency Shop</u>	Incumbent	69
Attendance19		
	L	
В	L	
D	LAYOFFS	26
Bereavement Leave	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
Breaks		
	3 .6	
	M	
C	Meet and confer	17
C-11 Off.	Meet and confer	4/
Call-Offs 9		
Catastrophic destruction	O	
Catastrophic Leave Bank		
CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES57	OPEN POSITIONS	
Clerical pool	Overtime	24
Compensatory time off (CTO)		
COUNTY RIGHTS8	P	
	•	
D	Part-time employees	52
	Performance Appraisals	
Deferred Compensation53	Personal Necessity Leave (PNL)	
Disability Insurance	Personnel Files	
<u>Discipline</u>	Policies & Procedures	17
	PROBATIONARY PERIOD	19
E	PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES	63
12	Promotions	
Employee Assistance Program (EAP)56		
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS11	D	
Employee Wellness Program	R	
Extra-Help Employees	Range	20
and the second process of the second process	Reclassifications	
F	Recruitment	
F	Retirement	
Family Medical Leave Act36	<u>Kethement</u>	
	_	
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA/CFRA)40	S	
_	O I THEN I	
G	<u>SAFETY</u>	
	Schedules	
GRIEVANCES34	SENIORITY	
	SICK LEAVE	
Н	Standby	
	State Disability Insurance (SDI)	
Harassment	Suspensions	19
Health Insurance Advisory Committee		
Holidays43	Т	
·		
<u>HOURS OF WORK</u> 47	Termination	19

<u>Training</u>	W
U	<u>WAGES</u>
UNION RIGHTS13	
V	Y
V	Y-rate57
Vacation Leave	

Board of Supervisors Agenda Item Report

Submitting Department: General Services Administration Meeting Date: February 5, 2018

SUBJECT

County Negotiators: Brian Oneto, Lynn Morgan, Jon Hopkins & Chuck Iley

Property: APN: 044-540-010

Negotiating Parties: Mark Cunningham Under Negotiation: Terms & Conditions

Recommendation:

Discussion and possible action

4/5 vote required:

No

Distribution Instructions:

Chuck Iley, CAO

ATTACHMENTS

•

Board of Supervisors Agenda Item Report

Submitting Department: County Counsel Meeting Date: February 5, 2018

SUBJECT

County of Amador v. The United States Department of the Interior; In the United States Court of Appeal, Ninth Circuit, Case No. 15-17253

Recommendation:

Discussion and possible action relative to the existing litigation (Government Code 54956.9(d)(1))

4/5 vote required:

No

Distribution Instructions:

BOS

ATTACHMENTS

•

Board of Supervisors Agenda Item Report

Submitting Department: County Counsel Meeting Date: February 5, 2018

SUBJECT

County of Amador v. Department of the Interior, et al: In the United States Court of Appeal, District of Columbia Circuit, Case No. 16-5082

Recommendation:

Discussion and possible action relative to the existing litigation. {Government Code 54956.9 (d)(1)}

4/5 vote required:

No

Distribution Instructions:

BOS

ATTACHMENTS

•